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Shenzhen Investment Limited has been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1997, is
the largest listed real estate company under State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Shenzhen Municipal. The Company’s core business
includes property development (including residential real estate, industrial real estate
and commercial complex), property investment and management. By intensifying its development
in Shenzhen, focusing on the Greater Bay Area and planning for its development in other core cities in
China, the Company is committed to be a first-class real estate developer and real estate operator.

The Group currently has a land reserve with a planned total gross floor area close to 4.36 million square meters
in various cities of China, of which the quality land reserve with a planned total gross floor area of approximately
870,000 square meters is located in Shenzhen. The Company is committed to optimizing its land reserves structure, and
concentrate its assets and business in the Greater Bay Area as well as key first-tier and second-tier cities.

It has all along been the Company’s core strategic goal to promote the long term sustainable development of its
business, with an aim to bring a stable return and create value appreciation for its shareholders.
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The Company intensifies its development in Shenzhen and
focuses on the Greater Bay Area
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Results

£ |

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$ million HK$ million Changes
BEBT BEAT 28
Revenue Wz 18,803.01 14,919.47 26.03%
Cost of sales HERR 9,988.43 9,794.35 1.98%
Gross profits EH 8,814.58 5,125.12 71.99%
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures EihaEnr REE DR
and associates R EE 1,254.29 2,045.79 (38.69%)
Profit before taxation BR T A1 4 A 8,133.60 6,684.54 21.68%
Profit for the year attributable to equity ARAEER R F AL
shareholders of the Company bl 3,722.86 4,062.80 (8.37%)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERRH (BL) 42.03 47.53 (11.57%)
Interim and proposed final dividend per share BRI\ REZRARE
(HK cents) G 18.00 18.00 -

Financial Position

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019

2020% 20194
HKS$ million HK$ million Changes
BEETRT BEAT )
Net assets excluding non-controlling interests BESE (TeEHERER) 50,624.29 44,474.66 13.83%
Cash and deposits (including restricted cash) BeRER (BEZRHER) 18,710.44 12,372.76 51.22%
Net loans FER 12,117.97 11,925.16 1.62%

Net assets per share excluding non-controlling ~ GREEFRE (FEIEIEERER)

interests (HK$) BIT) 5.69 5.03 13.12%
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Key Ratios

£7)%
BEREAEIE

Gross profit margin

Net loan to net assets excluding
non-controlling interests

Dividend payout ratio IR B &

(T BREFER L) 2%

46.88 34.35
23.94 26.81
42.83 37.87

Results (by operating segment)

B (AR
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEAR BEBT
Turnover L
Property development MEER 14,079.64 10,531.57
Property investment MERE 1,223.20 1,070.99
Property management MEER 2,225.95 2,099.29
Manufacturing s 347.29 333.87
Others Hit 926.93 883.75
Total M 18,803.01 14,919.47
Segment Results — Profits/(Loss) PEEE - B (BR)
Property development MEER 7,587.68 4,684.23
Property investment (Note 1) WMERE (H3E1) 294.26 2,081.14
Property management MEER 191.81 225.34
Manufacturing e 71.33 22.73
Others Hoh (14.77) (107.38)
Total ] 8,130.31 6,906.06
Notes: MisE
1. Segment results included the decrease in fair value of investment properties of 1. DEXEEBREREVEARERILE75.5888

approximately HK$675.58 million (2019: increase HK$434.26 million) and the recognition
of decrease in fair value upon transfer to investment properties of approximately HK$1.55
million (2019: increase HK$958.78 million).

2. Details of segment results of the Group is set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

HIT (20194F : $BN43426 B BB L) REEER
BEMEBRERAAERDL1.5585E5 7T (2019
o HBIN958.78 M EATT) ©

2. AKEDBREEFBEHNYBRRMES -
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20205 20194 20184 20174 20164
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THT FAEL THL THEL TET
Results ¥z
Revenue 1§ 18,803,011 14,919,474 16,642,765 10,254,496 21,353,993
Profit before taxation BRBLADERI 8,133,603 6,684,537 6,803,008 7,664,682 8,292,792
Income tax expense Frig R % (4,170,113)  (2,307,247)  (3,104,271)  (2,465,462)  (4,821,911)
Profit for the year FEREF 3,963,490 4,377,290 3,698,737 5,199,220 3,470,881
Attributable to: TR -
Equity shareholders of the Company ARRIERRRE 3,722,856 4,062,796 3,415,223 4,950,941 3,170,581
Non-controlling interests RS 240,634 314,494 283,514 248,279 300,300
3,963,490 4,377,290 3,698,737 5,199,220 3,470,881
Assets, liabilities and non- BE - 86K
controlling interests FERER
Current assets REEE 85,765,676 61,565,489 61,493,029 62,963,238 56,984,059
Non-current assets ERBEE 66,510,150 63,707,453 56,527,120 54,263,909 39,561,506
Total assets BwEE 152,275,826 125,272,942 118,020,149 117,227,147 96,545,565
Total liabilities #aE (96,869,978)  (76,900,647) (72,576,453) (72,126,315)  (60,324,631)
Net assets BEFE 55,405,848 48,372,295 45443696  45100,832 36,220,934
Non-controlling interests TR (4,781,563)  (3,897,639)  (3,739,721)  (3,632,591)  (3,410,121)
Total equity attributable to equity AARIERRRENL

shareholders of the Company BRBE 50,624,285 44,474,656 41,703,975 41,468,241 32,810,813
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The Group will seize the historic
opportunity of development,
strive to achieve sustainable

development and create value and

more satisfactory returns for our
shareholders.
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Shum Yip Zhongcheng 2 2 55

In 2020, COVID-19 outbreak swept across the globe giving a heavy blow to the
global economy and bringing profound impact on social development. In the
early stage of the epidemic, China took unconventional approaches to effectively
contain the epidemic. With the establishment of an effective and regular epidemic
prevention and control system, the implementation of a moderate package of
macro stimulus policies and the promotion of comprehensive resumption of work
and production, China took the lead in getting out of the epidemic dilemma and
was the only major economy in the world to see positive growth this year.

With the implementation of the macro policies, the real estate market gradually
mitigated the impact of the COVID-19 in the second quarter, with stable and
orderly overall development. “House is a place to live instead of a tool for
speculation” and “taking policies according to the local conditions” were still the
main keynote in real estate sector. In the second half of the year, the “Three Red
Lines" regulations were introduced, followed by increasingly tightened financing
supervision. Shenzhen Government introduced the “New Eight Rules” real estate
market regulation policy, enabling the supply of commercial housing to grow
steadily, the housing market turnover to increase significantly throughout the
year, and the price to rise slightly. Affected by the economic situation, the office
market witnessed higher vacancy rate and reduced rent.

20205 - HBRBEFBZIR > HRREEELTE
T8 - GHERREBRRENTE - FREREBIHY
REBEROANN - BUEHRE - BEBRBINE
BRBEHERANEY - RN BT EERIEEK
ENBRARZERIRENKRE - PEREELER
BRR - A2REIBEBERTE-EREELEE -

EZBHENERT - BRETSE_FEESEMR
REYE  BRRRBEAF - [FETY] - [AM
R NREHERROTER - THF[=ELK]
MRLE  BERERERE  Rlba THAN
) BMEERR - AnEHRERSER - £EMH
PERREERAB LK - EREBEM - MXLE
FagE BFETSHRTRREEER  BeAM
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During the pandemic outbreak, the Group has proactively shouldered its social
responsibility as a state-owned enterprise by fighting against the pandemic in
the frontline, maintaining and managing the safety of its residential communities
and industrial parks, and taking active actions to waive rent to weather the
hardship together with customers. At the same time, the Group actively promoted
the resumption of work and production, ensured the on-schedule completion of
projects, and innovated and expanded land resources. It achieved satisfactory
performance in the tough environment.

2020 Results

During the year, the Group achieved a turnover of HK$18,803.0 million,
representing an increase of 26.0% over the last year. Gross profit was
HK$8,814.6 million, representing an increase of 72.0% over the last year. Profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was HK$3,722.9 million,
representing a decrease of 8.4% over the last year. If excluding the net effect of
changes in fair value of investment properties attributable to the Group and fair
value of financial assets, profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$4,553.0 million, representing an increase of 48.7% over the last year.
Basic earnings per share were HK42.03 cents, representing a decrease of 11.6%
over the last year. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK11.00 cents per share for 2020 in cash.

Ensured On-Schedule Construction Progress of Key Projects, with
Significant Increase in Sales Revenue

During the year, the Group overcame the impact of the delay in construction
caused by the epidemic by stepping up efforts to promote the progress of key
projects. The Group ensured the on-schedule occupation of its key projects,
including Shum Yip Zhongcheng and Taifu Square. During the year, the Group
recorded real estate sales revenue of HK$14.08 billion, representing an increase
of 33.7% over the last year. The occupied projects realized high profitability
and the gross profit margin of real estate development was 52.8%, creating
remarkable returns for shareholders.

Steady Sales

During the year, the Group made great efforts to promote sale, overcome the
adverse factors such as the continuous tightening of regulatory policies and the
delay of the sale of some projects due to the epidemic and achieved contracted
sales of approximately RMB14.5 billion, of which the projects in the Greater Bay
Area accounted for approximately 74%. The residential project Parkview Bay was
sold out and Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu was the top-selling project in locality.
With a block trade of approximately RMB3.56 billion of contracted sales achieved,
office projects such as Terra Licheng and Zhifeng Building have delivered
outstanding performance amid the sluggish office building market in Shenzhen.

HHRE  FEEBERNEEECET  BTRE—
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20204 %4
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Outstanding Performance Achieved in the Operation of Property Lease
Business

During the year, business operation was more difficult under the epidemic.
Together with the unfavorable business environment and the increased supply
of office buildings, the average occupancy rate of office buildings in Shenzhen
market dropped to approximately 75%, and the rental of Grade A office buildings
went down by approximately 12.8%. The office lease market witnessed a relative
downturn. During the pandemic outbreak, the Group has proactively shouldered
its social responsibility as a state-owned enterprise. In this regard, the Group
waived rent for the enterprises within the industrial parks and commercial tenants
in the shopping malls for 2 months, and waived rent for private educational
institutions and other tenants for 3 months to overcome difficulties together with
our customers in concerted efforts.

Despite the impaired macro environment and the short-term impact of rent
exemption measures on rental sources of existing properties, the Group has
maintained the stability of its leasing business through a variety of means. By
the end of 2020, the Group managed to maintain the vacancy rate of its existing
properties (excluding parking lots) at about 10% by constantly improving its
operation and service quality, and thus enhancing customer stickiness and brand
image of the Group. In addition, the Group has improved the unit rent of some
properties through upgrading and transforming the existing properties, innovating
and optimizing the business structure and other measures, and the operation of
its investment properties was obviously better than the market level. Furthermore,
the Group actively solicited clients for its commercial projects and new projects.
At present, the leased out rate of the three major shopping malls of the Group
was above 90%, and the commercial rent has increased significantly. Through
unremitting efforts, the Group has offset the impact of rent waive by generating
income from new properties and optimizing and improving unit rent. The rental
income for the year amounted to HK$1.22 billion, representing an increase of
14.2% over the last year. After excluding the accounting impact of rent waive
adjustment, the actual rental income increased 2.0% over the last year.

Expansion of Quality Land Resources

The Group continues to focus on the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area, intensify its development in Shenzhen and plan for its business presence
in key first-tier and second-tier cities. Further, it has made a breakthrough in
resources acquisition. During the year, the newly increased land reserve area was
about 631,000 square meters, with an investment of approximately RMB6.34
billion, and the increase in saleable value was approximately RMB13.4 billion.
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The Group has been proactively stocking projects in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area. During the year, the Group completed the acquisition
of the 52.848% equity interest of Shum Yip Jinzhi Logistics Development Co.,
Ltd. held by its ultimate holding company at a consideration of approximately
RMB537 million and through the acquisition, it obtained the Jinyuan Building,
Zhifeng Building in Luohu District, Shenzhen and other urban renewal resources
in Shenzhen, which started a new round of asset injection. Besides, the Group
won the project in Hengli Island, Nansha, Guangzhou with a total construction
area of 232,000 square meters by auction at a price of RMB4 billion. In addition,
the Group also kicked off the analysis on the land acquisition in respect of the
land held by its ultimate holding company in Shahu, Pingshan District, Shenzhen.

Meanwhile, the Group actively planned for its business presence in key second-
tier cities. During the year, the Group acquired two pieces of land in Chengdu.
Among them, the Chenghua District plot is located in the core downtown area
within the second ring road of Chengdu, a prime geographical location with
strong commercial atmosphere. It has a capacity building area of approximately
68,000 square meters. The land premium for the plot was RMB1.15 billion. The
other plot is in Qingbaijiang District, Chengdu City with a capacity building area
of approximately 284,000 square meters. The land premium for this plot was
RMBG650 million. This land is evidence that the Group has realized resources
acquisition by way of industrial introduction with competitive costs.

Accelerated Development of Operation and Service

During the year, the Group accelerated the development of property service and
park operation business with 66 newly expanded park and property management
projects and a newly signed area of more than 8 million square meters. In
addition, the new business type of ‘property management city” has been
gradually implemented in Huafu Community and Meilin Community of Futian
District, Pingshan Community and Longtian Community of Pingshan District,
Jihua Community of Longgang District and Baguang Area of Dapeng District in
Shenzhen, being an important initiative for the operation and service sectors of
the Group to realize rapid development.

Equity Interests in Hengda Real Estate

The Group, as a strategic investor, contributed RMB5.5 billion for investment in
the equity interests in Hengda Real Estate in 2017 to support its reorganization
in the domestic capital market. Hengda Real Estate announced the termination
of the reorganization in the year, and the Group holds equity interests of
Hengda Real Estate according to the terms stipulated in the original investment
agreement with its shareholding ratio increases to 2.6439%.
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During the year, Hengda Real Estate paid the Group a dividend for 2018 of
approximately RMB790 million and a dividend for 2019 of approximately RMB660
million. The two batches of dividend amounted to approximately RMB1.45 billion
in aggregate have been recognized during the year.

Maintain Sound Financial Position

Under the increasingly stringent financial regulation environment in real estate,
the Group made initiative plans to strengthen its integrated fund planning and
financial management. By means of debt replacement and optimization of
loan portfolio, the Group has improved the capital efficiency and reduced the
borrowing costs, with the average comprehensive interest rate of the Group’s
bank and other borrowings at 3.7%. As at 31 December 2020, net gearing ratio
(inclusive of all interest-bearing liabilities) maintained at a low level of 41.7%.
All indicators of the “Three Red Lines” fell into the green level. Furthermore,
the Group innovated its financing channels, and completed the issuance of
Commercial Mortgage-backed Notes (‘CMBN") with Times Technology Building as
the underlying asset with an issue amount of RMB1.9 billion, among which, the
coupon rate of the senior notes was 3.28%, which expanded financial resources
for further development of the Group.

The Group will continue to seek high-quality assets, improve operational
efficiency, optimize the structure of its profit model and improve its profitability to
create sustained and steady returns for shareholders.

Outlook

Economic Outlook

Leveraging on strong institutional advantages and effective enforcement, China
has achieved great victories in the epidemic prevention and control, and took the
lead in economic recovery. At present, the global landscape and economic order
have been undergoing unprecedented changes in a century. The international
environment is complex and full of uncertainties. However, with the successful
development and application of the vaccine, the global epidemic is expected to
be gradually under control in 2021 and the world economy will see recovery. In
the new development pattern where domestic cycle dominates and the domestic
cycle and international cycle mutually promote, the endogenous driving forces,
such as technological innovation, industrial chain layout and expanding domestic
demand will replace the unconventional stimulus policies to become the basic
force of domestic economic development.
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As the economic development returns to normal track, “House is a place to
live instead of a tool for speculation” and “taking policies according to the local
conditions” are still the main keynote of real estate policies. Financial supervision
on the real estate market will be strengthened continuously, and supply-side
reform of the land market will be launched to promote stable and orderly
development of the real estate market. The policy of “Three Red Lines” will make
real estate enterprises slow down their short-term investment and financing
and speed up cash turnover. The policy of centralized land supply in popular
cities brings challenges to real estate enterprises in terms of land acquisition
planning, capital management, products and sales, which will further promote
the integration of the industry and push enterprises to seek changes in operation
mode.

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area

The Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area is equipped with complete
industrial system and cluster development capability and embraces innovation
enterprises and innovation elements. Against the backdrop of “dual-driven” and
domestic and international dual circulation development, Shenzhen and the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area will strengthen independent
technological innovation and industrial chain security to form a better innovative
ecological industry chain, and the synergy effect of the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area on industries, capital and talents will be further
enhanced. Under the keynote of “House is a place to live instead of a tool for
speculation”, Shenzhen and the Greater Bay Area adopt strict real estate control
policies and the government is determined to curb speculation. Shenzhen has
successively introduced score-based lottery rules, which guide the new house
sales should be weighted toward households in need, and reference price system
for second-hand houses to guide the second-hand house market. In addition,
Shenzhen gradually increases the supply of commercial housing. With the
implementation of the policies and the reform of the supply structure, we believe
that the real estate market in Shenzhen and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area will realize sound and stable development in a long term.

Mapping out the Blueprint for the Coming Five Years to Realize
Transformation and Optimization and Gain Profound Strength

The Group, as an enterprise with years of operation experience in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, will actively integrate into the
national strategy and achieve mutual development with the rapid development
of the country and the region. Leveraging on the efforts of strategic focus and
transformation in the past five years, the asset quality and structure of the Group
have been continuously improved, the profitability has been maintained at a high
level, the net debt ratio has been maintained at a low level, and the Group has
reserved abundant financial resources.
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In the coming five years, the Group will make comprehensive transformation and
upgrading. Positioned as an “innovation-builder of the city and industry”, it will
endeavor to transform into a technology-based industry group focusing on the
development of urban complex and investment in technology industry, so as to
assist the development of the innovative industry in the Greater Bay Area. The
Group will continue to implement “transformation, optimization and improvement’
based on its real estate business featuring deep root in the Greater Bay Area and
distinctive features. The Group will accelerate the expansion of comprehensive
urban operation business that covers a variety of business forms and serves
urban upgrading. It will also enhance the industrial park business, form an
industrial ecosystem through space construction, industry introduction, intelligent
operation, investment incubation etc., and create an endless value cycle of
industry and city innovation. Besides, it will increase its efforts in the investment
and development in the technology industry to empower the transformation and
upgrade of products and businesses. After transformation and optimization in
the next five years, the Group will form a diversified sector, empower different
business sectors by through capital market means such as injection, cultivation
and spin-off, build a group of listed companies and release value.

According to the Group’s planning blueprint, the Group’s land reserve, sales
revenue and profits will double in the next five years, the Group will fortify its
efforts to acquire land reserves in Shenzhen, the Greater Bay Area and key first-
tier and second-tier cities and the land reserves of the Group will reach more
than 10 million square meters in the next five years, income from development
and sales and rental will maintain a compound annual growth rate of 20%
per annum, the Group will accelerate the development of the urban operation
service business with revenue from operations increasing to triple to quintuple
of the current level in the coming five years and spinning off of the urban
operation business for listing at an appropriate timing. The Group will enhance
its industrial park services, cultivate 2-3 listed companies in the science and
technology industry and create an industrial space-service-investment ecology.
While promoting accelerated performance, the Group will gradually increase
the proportion of revenue from operation, industrial parks and scientific and
technological services, and maintain a reasonable debt ratio and stable dividends,
and create satisfactory returns for shareholders.
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Focusing on the Greater Bay Area, Intensifying Development in
Shenzhen and Increasing Resources Acquisition through Multiple
Channels

In the coming five years, the Group will give full play to its strategic positioning
and financial advantages, increase investment in Shenzhen, the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and key first-tier and second-tier cities, accelerate
the expansion of land resources and projects through multiple channels, select
the resource acquisition mode suitable for its own development and proceed at
multiple fronts. First, deepen the in-depth cooperation with the ultimate holding
company to increase land reserves in Shenzhen and the Greater Bay Area;
Second, take the Shenzhen Baguang International Biology Valley (731138 5t BB
#4) and Longhua Future City Scenario Pilot Zone (REZERRHTHEERE) as
the guide, give full play to the core advantages of industrial planning, industrial
introduction and industrial park operation, connect with the government, and
expand industrial park resources; Third, give full play to the Group’s experience
in regional planning and urban renewal, optimize the cooperation model, and
actively seek urban renewal opportunities in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area; Fourth, improve market-based resources acquisition
approaches and expand resources flexibly through various means such as
mergers and acquisitions, cooperative development and real estate funds.

Accelerating Business Development in the First Year of the Period of
“14th Five-Year Plan”

The year of 2021 marks the first year of the 14th five-year period of the Group.
The Group will pay close attention to the changes of policies and markets and
make every effort to promote the operation of the Group. The annual saleable
value of the Group for 2021 is approximately RMB32 billion, and the contracted
sales target for the year is RMB18 billion, representing an increase of 24% over
the year 2020. The Group will take initiative to explore the relationship between
future industry and future urban space, increase investment in the design and
research of whole house intelligence and smart house products, and make
high-quality products. The Group will speed up the acquisition of land projects,
and strive to increase project resources of more than 1.5 million square meters
of construction area in the Greater Bay Area and key first-tier and second-tier
cities through cooperation with the parent company, urban renewal, cooperation
with the government and enterprises, industrial land application, mergers and
acquisitions, and open market auctions. The Group will continue to optimize
the business structure of investment properties, increase commercial operating
income, promote the investment attraction of Shum Yip UpperHills, Shum Yip
Zhongcheng, Taifu Square and other projects, and strive to achieve the target of
20%-30% growth in rental income. Furthermore, the Group will accelerate the
business expansion of the operation and service sectors, expand the “property
management city” business and serve the city on the basis of the operation and
service of traditional residential communities and industrial parks, and strive to
achieve the target of over 30% growth.
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Through continuous efforts, the Group will seize the historic opportunity of
development, steadily improve our capabilities for city servicing and industrial
chain, resource acquisition and professional operating, to achieve sustainable
development and create value and more satisfactory returns for our shareholders.

LU Hua
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Overall Results

The year 2020 was full of uncertainties. The COVID-19 had a profound impact on
economic and social development. At the beginning of the year, the epidemic had
an impact on the operation of real estate enterprises. With the implementation
of the overall macro policies, the real estate market gradually overcame the
impact of the COVID-19 in the second quarter, with stable and orderly overall
development. “House is a place to live instead of a tool for speculation” and
“taking policies according to the local conditions” were still the main keynote
in real estate sector. In the second half of the year, the “Three Red Lines’
regulations were introduced, followed by increasingly tightened financing
supervision. The control over the real estate market in Shenzhen and other
places was upgraded. The transaction volume of the housing market in Shenzhen
increased significantly throughout the year, while the office market was affected
by the economic situation, with a higher vacancy rate and a decline in the overall
rental level. Despite of the constantly changing external environment, the Group
steadily implemented various operations and achieved good performance.

During the year, the Group realized revenue of approximately HK$18,803.0
million, representing an increase of 26.0% over the last year. The overall gross
profit margin was 46.9%, representing an increase of approximately 12.5
percentage points over the last year. Gross profit was HK$8,814.6 million,
representing an increase of 72.0% over the last year. Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$3,722.9 million, representing a decrease
of 8.4% over the last year. If excluding the net effect of changes in fair value
of investment properties attributable to the Group and changes in fair value of
financial assets, profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$4,553.0 million, representing an increase of 48.7% over the last year. Basic
earnings per share were HK42.03 cents, representing a decrease of 11.6% over
the last year.
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Property Development Business

Sales Revenue Booked

During the year, the Group recorded property sales area booked of approximately
432,000 square meters (excluding interests attributable to the major associates
of the Group), representing a decrease of 16.9% over the last year, and
achieved net revenue from property sales of approximately RMB12,511.9 million
(equivalent to HK$14,079.6 million) (net of value-added tax), representing an
increase of 33.7% over the last year. Gross profit margin of property development
and sales was 52.8%, representing an increase of 15.8 percentage points over
the last year. During the year, the percentage of Shenzhen projects over the sales

revenue booked was 75.1%. During the year, the average gross profit margin 43.0% °
of projects of the Group in Shenzhen was approximately 55.4%, whereas the
average gross profit margin of projects in other cities was approximately 43.0%.

Property Sales Booked in 2020 20204 &5 3 5
Property Name Booked Area Net Sales Unit Price
BREME BEBEE HEFE HEEE
(RMB/sg.m.)
(sq.m.) (RMB’000) (ARET,/
(FHXK) (AR®TFT) FHAK)
Shum Yip Dongling Residential Shenzhen 5,299 314,927 59,426
RERE (EE=s el
Shum Yip Zhongcheng Residential/apartment ~ Shenzhen 56,755 6,730,368 118,586
RERE FE/ 18 FI
Guanlan Rose Garden Office Shenzhen 387 8,914 23,016
BRI B¥E il
UpperHills Apartment Shenzhen 1,268 167,862 132,384
RE L YN el
Bofeng Building Office Shenzhen 69 2,952 42,813
BERE BFE il
Shum Yip Taifu Square Office/apartment Shenzhen 38,949 2,162,039 55,509
RAERERES BFE/ DB el
Jiangyue Bay Residential Guangzhou 381 6,465 16,951
TR FE M
Euro-view Garden Shop Dongguan 2,815 21,464 7,625
BRB Ll R=
Gaobangshan No. 1 Residential/shop Huizhou 80,317 778,912 9,698
S FxE /A LY
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Property Name Booked Area Net Sales Unit Price
BRLE RHEBEE HE HEEE
(sq.m.) (RMB’ 000)

(F7K)  (ARETE)
Garden Hills Residential/shop Huizhou 59,507 501,923 8,435
FIER T,/ A B
Wanlin Lake Residential/shop Huizhou 2,489 25,436 10,221
B Fx /A =M
Shum Yip City Residential/shop Foshan 13,370 261,045 19,525
RE, T,/ @ 1L
Saina Bay Villa/shop Heyuan 1,181 11,316 9,579
E3) RIE AR
Shum Yip Rui Cheng Residential/shop Changsha 27,982 203,454 7,271
REBRW F= /i 2373
Shum Yip Xihui Shop Changsha 3,108 21,502 6,918
REEE Gl =9/
Yihu Rose Garden Residential Chengdu 25,662 205,591 8,012
e ER5E F=x PR
Jinxiu Workshop Shop Chengdu 1,790 27,103 15,138
HEL5 Ll g
Nanhu Rose Bay Shop Wuhan 162 6,641 40,896
BB E EE] Y-
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu  Residential/shop Ma’anshan 105,048 908,946 8,653
SRIRRER T,/ @ Sl
Royal Spring Garden Residential Chaohu 5,073 81,592 16,083
FHERIE T= &5
Parking space sales (Note) Parking space - 63,446 -
BAHE (M) B
Total &5t 431,612 12,511,898 -

Note: 439 parking spaces were sold.

Biet : BRI HE4391H -



Contracted Sales

During the year, the Group realized contracted sales area of approximately
567,000 square meters and contracted sales income of approximately RMB14.46
billion. The average price per square meter was RMB25,521. The contracted
sales were mainly attributable to the residential project of Parkview Bay in
Shenzhen which realized a contracted sale of approximately RMB3.53 billion,
the office building project of Shum Yip Terra Licheng in Shenzhen which realized
bulk sales of RMB2.15 billion and the office building project of Shum Yip Zhifeng
Building in Shenzhen which realized bulk sales of RMB1.41 billion. Besides,
sales of the Group’ s projects in the third-tier and fourth-tier cities beat the
expectations.

By geographical location, projects in the Greater Bay Area accounted for 74% of
the realized contracted sales, 15% was contributed by projects in the second-tier
cities, and the rest 11% was in the third-tier and fourth-tier cities. By the types
of products, residential products accounted for 58% of the realized contracted
sales, and commercial products (including office and apartment) accounted for
42%.

Contracted Sales in 2020
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Shum Yip Dongling Shenzhen Complex
RERE sl meE
Shum Yip Zhongcheng Shenzhen Complex
RER sl e
Shum Yip Zhifeng Building Shenzhen Office
REZSERE el WNE
Bofeng Building Shenzhen Office
BEXRE el WNE
Shum Yip Taifu Square Shenzhen Complex
REREES el meE
Shum Yip Terra Licheng Shenzhen Complex
IRE RN wA meEe
Parkview Bay Shenzhen Residential
BEE T = F=
UpperHills Shenzhen Complex
s Zl e
Tanglang City** Shenzhen Complex
VERA wI e
Jiangyue Bay Guangzhou Residential
AR = =

20204 4 7] $H &
Sales Area Sales™
tHE A HESH"
(sg.m.) (RMB’000)
(FAK)  (AR¥ETT)
5,299 330,270
9,562 1,040,000
42,722 1,408,260
68 2,974
9,381 607,108
36,623 2,154,787
35,578 3,529,517
1,268 176,250
4,974 329,769
275 6,226
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Sales Area Sales™
$HE E AR HESRE"
(sq.m.) (RMB’000)
(FAXR)  (AR¥ETT)
Gaobangshan No. 1 Huizhou Residential 45129 500,635
=L = =
Garden Hills Huizhou Residential 36,213 315,189
F 1A = =
Wanlin Lake Huizhou Residential 7,084 35,008
=2 Vi =N F=
Shum Yip Qishan Yayuan Foshan Residential 800 16,377
R TEILHESE #1L =
Shum Yip City Foshan Residential 17,387 306,956
R 1L F=
Saina Bay Heyuan Residential 614 6,089
RN E AR F=
Shum Yip Qinglong Mansion Nanjing Residential 478 13,545
REBRLLT EZP F=
Shum Yip Upper Life Nanjing Residential 34,778 905,128
RESELE AR F=
Shum Yip Heron Mansion Changsha Residential 66,356 900,636
REBEN 8297 F=
Shum Yip Rui Cheng Changsha Residential 25,481 188,880
IREBEW 82972 F=
Shum Yip Xihui Changsha Residential 2,302 11,558
REEE 82972 F=E
Yihu Rose Garden Chengdu Residential 10,427 96,140
T8 BRE e F=E
Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan Complex 190 17,141
AR E 9z e
Changzhou Shum Yip Huafu Changzhou Residential 924 2,212
BNIREER B F=
Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Ma’anshan Residential 95,476 911,046
BRILREERN b5l F=
Shenyue Bay Taizhou Residential 77,290 650,407
A ZM F=
Total &%t 566,679 14,462,108
* Including parking space sales. * BEBAHEE -

ok

The project was co-developed with Shenzhen Metro Group, as to 50% owned by the »* REBHERYMEEESIERE  BFAES0%E
Group, and it is accounted using equity method. o EREZE -
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Project Development JHH U
During the year, the Group had a new construction area of approximately — FR » AEBHFFIEBLN748EF K » BIEE
748,000 square meters and a completed area of approximately 768,000 square M76.8BFHK -

meters.
New Construction Projects in 2020 20204¥i B TIE B
Property Name Type Total GFA Saleable Area
EHE & A EE HEEH AR AIEHEE
(sg.m.) (sg.m.)
(FAK) CFEAK)
Four Seasons Mansion Chengdu Residential 59,131 40,958
ATy B #B =
Taifu Square Phase 2 Shenzhen Complex 106,106 41,909
RERES2H el e
Tuen Mun (Land Plot 520) Hong Kong Residential 43,938 43,938
T P9520H 18 BB =
Shum Yip Songhu Dongguan Residential 170,081 117,040
Yuncheng Garden = x=
IRFENAE A E
Garden Hills Phase 3.2.2 Huizhou Residential 147,984 108,543
F 1L #763.2.2 8 =N F=
Gaobangshan Phase 2.2 Huizhou Residential 160,169 116,899
mE2.2 8 =N F=
Nanjing Hexi 2019G77 Nanjing Residential 60,727 40,671
Project =) *=
R RUR FH2019G7718 B

Total &5t 748,136 509,958
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Completed Projects in 2020 2020%% T H
Property Name Total GFA  Saleable Area
BB A MRIEESEEE AIEHEE
(sg.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHXK) CEAK)
Shum Yip Rui Cheng Phase 3.2 Changsha Residential 66,505 48,521
REE3.2 87 =D =
Shum Yip Garden Hills Phase 3.2.1 Huizhou Residential 87,617 80,346
REFILE3.2.1H BN F=
Shum Yip Gaobangshan Phase 2.1 Huizhou Residential 192,347 142,488
RESEL2.18 =M =
Yihu Rose Garden — Longjing Chengdu Residential 45,026 40,174
18R B 58 e B B ED =
Terra Licheng Shenzhen Complex 133,248 101,763
TR Ll ek
Chaohu South Phase 2 Chaohu Residential 7,421 7,161
E¥ir = 2 B b =
Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Ma’gnshan Residential 235,600 181,952
Phase 2.2 (North) B F=E
BEIREEN2H2EE LR
Total &5 767,764 602,405
Expansion of Land Resources B U L
The Group continues to focus on the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay ~ ANEEHETEEHBLEE - FHFEI - HREH
Area, intensify its development in Shenzhen and plan for its business presence in ~ — £ - EERER S EMREGRE o

key first-tier and second-tier cities. Further, the Group has made a breakthrough
in resources acquisition.

In May 2020, the Group won the bid for a piece of residential land in Henglu ~ 202095813 » REE11.5E T AREFHIRESK
North, Shuanglin, Chenghua District (5\ZER&M1L#E5 ), Chengdu City at a  #HHKEREMIEREEWE - BEHBE416,800
consideration of RMB1.15 billion with an average floor area price of approximately 7t/ FK - HREHA2.3BF 5K - ;B EEMA
RMB16,800 per square meter. The project has a site area of approximately — B#16.8BF K » EFEBREFEIABELRK - )
23,000 square meters and a capacity building area of approximately 68,000 EEEE23EFHK o

square meters, of which 31,000 square meters and 23,000 square meters were

planned to be built into foreign-style houses and low-rise residential buildings,

respectively.



In June 2020, the Group, by way of industrial introduction, acquired a piece
of commercial and residential land, i.e. the Phoenix New Town in Qingbaijiang
District, Chengdu City with an average floor area price of approximately
RMB2,300 per square meter at a consideration of RMB650 million. The project
has a site area of approximately 114,000 square meters and a capacity building
area of approximately 284,000 square meters, of which 139,000 square meters
and 145,000 square meters were planned to be built into residential buildings as
well as commercial and office buildings, respectively.

In July 2020, the Group acquired 52.8485% equity interest of Shum Yip Jinzhi
held by Shum Yip Group, the ultimate holding company of the Company, at a
consideration of approximately RMB537 million. Through the acquisition, the
Group obtained a range of high quality assets in Luohu District, Shenzhen.

In August 2020, the Group acquired the land plot of Hengli Island, Nansha,
Guangzhou with an average floor area price of approximately RMB19,140 per
square meter at a consideration of RMB4.005 billion plus the construction of
23,000 square meters of subsided talents housing. The project has a site area of
66,000 square meters and a capacity building area of 232,000 square meters,
including 202,000 square meters for saleable housing and 23,000 square meters
for subsided talents housing.

Land Reserves

By the end of December 2020, the Group had land reserves with an aggregate
planned gross floor area (GFA) of approximately 4.36 million square meters
(interested in 3.78 million square meters), and a capacity building area of 3.29
million square meters (interested in 2.89 million square meters), of which, the
projects under construction had a total planned GFA of approximately 1.95 million
square meters and a capacity building area of 1.45 million square meters. The
capacity building area of land reserve in the first-tier and second-tier cities and
in the Greater Bay Area accounted for 64% and 50% of its total capacity building
area respectively. Besides, the value of completed properties in stock amounted
to approximately RMB14.78 billion.

In the future, the Group will continue to focus on the Greater Bay Area, and
intensify its development in Shenzhen by proactively seeking for project resources
and also opportunities to invest in quality projects in the major first-tier and
second-tier cities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B 0 5
Distribution of Land Reserves (As at 31 December 2020) L HfEE M (R20204E12A31H)
By type — Planned GFA "¢ (sq.m.) By type — Capacity Building Area "2 (sq.m.)
ERERMH - REREEBEY™ (FHXK) ERERMH — SAREEEE (FHXK)
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Property Investment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has investment properties of approximately
1.29 million square meters, of which 81.8% is located in Shenzhen. During
the pandemic outbreak, the Group has proactively took its social responsibility
as a state-owned enterprise. In this regard, the Group exempted rent for the
enterprises within the industrial parks and commercial tenants in the shopping
malls for 2 months, and exempted rent for private educational institutions
and other tenants for 3 months. The impact of rent exemption is made in the
accounting adjustments based on the amortisation in the lease term. Although the
rental income of the existing investment properties has decreased significantly
due to the implementation of the rent exemption policy, the negative impact of
rent exemption has been completely offset by the Group’s efforts to generate
income from new properties and optimize and improve unit rent. During the
year, the Group recorded an income from property investment of approximately
HK$1,223.2 million, representing an increase of approximately 14.2% over
the last year. Excluding the impact of accounting adjustments on exempted
rental amortization, the actual rental income was approximately HK$1,092.5
million, representing an increase of approximately 2.0% over the last year. The
gross profit margin of property investment business was approximately 72.9%,
representing an increase of 4.6 percentage points over the last year.

Due to the fact that the overall office building rental market was sluggish in
Shenzhen impacted by the pandemic, the Group recorded a revaluation decrease
in the fair value of its investment property portfolio of HK$677.1 million during
the year.

Urban Integrated Operation Business

The urban integrated operation business of the Group includes commercial
operation business, property management business, intelligent park operation
business and property management city business. During the year, the area
of urban integrated operation business of the Group was approximately 46.88
million square meters. The urban integrated operation business contributed
approximately HK$2,225.9 million to the revenue of the Group, representing an
increase of 6.0% over the of last year. During the year, the urban integrated
sector of the Group added approximately 66 park and property management
projects, increasing more than 8 million square meters of management area, and
the property management urban sector added 6 projects, covering an area of
approximately 5 million square meters. Furthermore, its mixed-ownership reform
was being propelled orderly.
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Since March 2020, the commercial operation management companies had
actively assisted all the major commercial tenants in the resumption of work and
conducted online and offline campaigns to increase foot traffic, so as to boost
sales. At present, operation of all the shopping malls runs well. More precisely,
the occupancy rates of UpperHills, Tanglang City and Shum Yip Dongling are
93%, 92% and 90%, respectively, whereas the new commercial project of Taifu
Square is available for leasing now.

Properties under the management of our property management companies
was approximately 42.3 million square meters, mainly in the Pearl River Delta,
Yangtze River Delta and Central China, covering governmental authorities, offices,
residence communities and villas. During the year, our property management
companies acquired 63 new projects of approximately 6.44 million square meters
in Guangdong, Jiangxi, Jiangsu and other areas.

The Intelligent Park Operation Company manages approximately 4.58 million
square meters of properties in industrial park which are mainly located in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. During the year, the Intelligent
Park Operation Company expanded Baguang Biological Valley, Hengming
Industrial Park and other projects, with a new management area of approximately
1.67 million square meters.

Our property management companies and intelligent park operation companies
have actively explored “property management city” as a new urban management
model to deliver a demonstration reform project in market-oriented and
professionalized urban management and operation. Currently, efforts have been
made in Huafu Community and Meilin Community of Futian District, Pingshan
Community and Longtian Community of Pingshan District, Jihua Community of
Longgang District and Baguang Area of Dapeng District in Shenzhen to implement
the development roadmap in serving the city, being an important initiative for
property management companies and intelligent park operation and management
companies to realize rapid development.

Hotel Operation Business

The Group owns five hotels in operation and one hotel under construction. Those
in operation are Suzhou Marriott Hotel (with 293 guest rooms), Chaohu Shum Yip
Bantang Hot Spring Hotel (with 20 spring villas), Holiday Inn Resort Chaohu Hot
Spring (with 203 guest rooms), Muji Hotel (with 79 guest rooms) in UpperHills,
Shenzhen and Tanglang City Project Hotel in Shenzhen (with 200 guest rooms),
which is co-developed with Shenzhen Metro Group. The hotel under construction
is Mandarin Oriental Shenzhen (with 190 guest rooms planned).

During the year, the business operation of hotel industry was unsatisfactory due
to the severe impact from the pandemic. The Group’s hotels recorded operating
income (included under other operating segment) of approximately HK$116.5
million, representing a decrease of 41.2% over the last year.
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Manufacturing Business

The Group’s manufacturing business mainly represents the LCD manufacturing
and metal materials processing business held by the companies under the Group
over the years. During the year, the manufacturing business recorded operating
income of approximately HK$347.3 million, representing an increase of 4.0%
over the last year.

Performance of Major Joint Ventures and Associates

During the year, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development Limited (@ 51%
owned company of the Group) made a profit contribution of HK$395.6 million to
the Group, representing an increase of 241.9% over the last year. The principal
activity of the company is to assist local government in primary land development.
During the year, the local government arranged for transfer or return of land of
approximately 172,000 square meters.

Shenzhen Langtong Property Development Company Limited (@ 50% owned
company of the Group) made a net profit contribution of HK$23.4 million,
representing a decrease of 96.2% over the last year. The company and Shenzhen
Metro Group jointly developed Shenzhen’s Tanglang City Project.

Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park (Group) Co., Ltd. (@ 37.5% owned company of
the Group) made a net profit contribution of HK$326.9 million to the Group,
representing a decrease of 29.6% over the last year.

During the year, the associates invested by the Group performed as expected.
Road King Infrastructure Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong, made a net
profit contribution of HK$465.2 million to the Group, representing a decrease of
43.3% over the last year.

Other Income and Gains

During the year, the Group’s other income and gains were HK$2,133.5 million,
representing an increase of 576.3% over the last year. During the year, other
income was mainly attributable to the dividend for 2018 of approximately HK$885
million (equivalent to RMB790 million) and the dividend for 2019 of approximately
HK$742 million (equivalent to RMB660 million) paid by Hengda Real Estate to the
Group.
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Other Operating Expense

During the year, other operating expense amounting to HK$577.8 million,
representing a decrease of 1.53% over the last year, mainly includes the
provision for impairment recognised on fixed assets of approximately HK$117
million, which was one-off. In 2019, the other operating expense mainly
represents the deficits on fixed assets revaluation amounted to approximately
HK$268.3 million.

Significant Investment

On 31 May 2017, the Group, through Shenzhen Shum Yip Shenheng Investment
Co., Ltd. ORYITIRZE FEREBARLDA) (“Shum Yip Shenheng”, formerly known
as BHIIMEXRHRT£RAR A (Maanshan Maowen Technology Park Co.
Ltd.)), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an investment
agreement (the “Investment Agreement”) with Guangzhou Kailong Real Estate
Company Limited (‘Kailong Real Estate”) and Hengda Real Estate Group Company
Limited (‘Hengda Real Estate’) (both being subsidiaries of China Evergrande
Group) to contribute an amount of RMB5.50 billion to the capital of Hengda
Real Estate in exchange for 1.7626% equity interests in Hengda Real Estate.
Hengda Real Estate is a company established in China with limited liabilities and
principally engaged in property development in China.

Under the terms of the Investment Agreement, Kailong Real Estate and Hengda
Real Estate have undertaken that the net profit of Hengda Real Estate for 2017,
2018 and 2019 shall not be less than RMB24.3 billion, RMB50.0 billion and
RMB55.0 billion, respectively. Hengda Real Estate will distribute at least 68%
of its net profit under the performance undertaking period to its shareholders in
cash, till the entering into a reorganization agreement (i.e. the listing of Hengda
Real Estate in China as an A-share company through reorganization of China
Evergrande Group). Pursuant to the Investment Agreement, Hengda Real Estate
has paid dividends of approximately RMB28.41 billion, RMB44.61 billion and
RMB27.52 hillion respectively for 2017, 2018 and 2019 to all shareholders. In
the second half of 2018, the Group received dividends of approximately RMB0.5
billion for 2017, while in January and July 2020, the Group received dividends of
approximately RMBO.79 billion for 2018 and approximately RMBO0.66 billion for
2019, respectively.
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On 13 January 2020, Shum Yip Shenheng, Kailong Real Estate, Hengda Real
Estate and Mr. Hui Ka Yan entered into a supplementary investment agreement in
relation to the Investment Agreement to extend the original listing deadline of the
proposed reorganization by one year (i.e. from 31 January 2020 to 31 January
2021) and, as a result of the extension of the original listing deadline, to extend
the scope of performance undertaking and indemnity and the minimum dividend
payment mechanism to cover the financial year of 2020 (i.e. one additional year).
To this end, Kailong Real Estate and Hengda Real Estate further undertake to
Shum Yip Shenheng that the amount of net profit of Hengda Real Estate for the
financial year ending 31 December 2020 will not be less than RMBGO billion.

On 22 November 2020, Shum Yip Shenheng, Kailong Real Estate, Hengda Real
Estate and Mr. Hui Ka Yan entered into the fifth supplementary agreement to the
Investment Agreement in view of the termination of the proposed reorganization
before the listing deadline. Shum Yip Shenheng agreed to hold Hengda Real
Estate equity according to the terms stipulated in the Investment Agreement, and
its shareholding ratio in Hengda Real Estate increased to 2.6439%. The dividend
for year 2020 will be paid according to the undertakings in the Investment
Agreement.

According to the requirements under accounting standards, the equity interests
held by the Group in Hengda Real Estate was included as financial assets
through profit or loss in the financial statements and accounted for at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss for the period. As at 31
December 2020, the fair value of the said financial assets was HK$6,737.0
million, representing 4.43% of the total assets of the Group. During the year,
profits or losses arising from changes in fair value amounted to approximately
HK$462.5 million.

For details on the investment in Hengda Real Estate and valuation technique used
for fair value measurement, please refer to note 24 and 40(a) to the financial
statements respectively.

The net profit of Hengda Real Estate for 2017, 2018 and 2019 was RMB42.00
billion, RMB72.24 billion and RMB42.87 billion, respectively. Since its investment
in Hengda Real Estate in June 2017, the Group, as a financial investor, received
total dividends of RMB1.95 billion from Hengda Real Estate, representing
accumulated return on investment of approximately 35.5%.
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Financing

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$30,828.4 million (31 December 2019: HK$24,297.9 million),
of which HK$28,000.9 million were floating rate loans, and the remaining
were fixed-rate loans. Long-term loans amounted to HK$18,088.6 million,
representing approximately 58.7% of total borrowings, and short-term
loans were HK$12,739.8 million, representing approximately 41.3% of total
borrowings. Offshore borrowings amounted to HK$17,410.5 million, representing
approximately 56.5% of total borrowings, and the remaining were onshore
borrowings denominated in Renminbi, representing approximately 43.5% of total
borrowings.

With the gradual implementation of the “Three Red Lines” regulations, the
external financing environment continues to tighten. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group’s asset-liability ratio, excluding advance receipts, was 58.2%, the
net gearing ratio was 23.9% (the liabilities only including bank loans and other
borrowings) and the short-term cash debt ratio was 1.47 times (the liabilities only
including bank loans and other borrowings), all fell into the green level of the
“Three Red Lines” (£%12). In 2021, the Group will replace the short-term loans
that are about to due, and continue to improve the short-term cash debt ratio.

During the year, the Group implemented financing innovation, and the CMBN
issuance with Times Technology Tower, a property owned by the Group, as the
underlying asset was completed with an issue amount of RMB1.9 billion, among
which, the coupon rate of the senior notes was 3.28%. During the year, the
average comprehensive interest rate of the Group in respect of its bank and other
borrowings was approximately 3.7% per annum, representing a decrease of 1.0
percentage point from the whole of last year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash balance (including restricted cash)
was HK$18,710.4 million (31 December 2019: HK$12,372.8 million), of which
approximately 73.6% and 23.3% were denominated in Renminbi and USD
respectively, and the remaining in Hong Kong dollars.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net assets (excluding non-controlling
interests) of HK$50,624.3 million (31 December 2019: HK$44,474.7 million). The
net gearing ratio with the liabilities including bank loans and other borrowings
only was 23.9% and the net gearing ratio with the liabilities including loan from
shareholders of the parent company and all other interest-bearing liabilities was
41.7%, representing an increase of 1.0 percentage point over the end of last
year.
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Key Financial Indicators
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HK$ million
HEER
Bank and other borrowings RITERREMEE

— Long-term borrowings — RHEE

— Short-term borrowings — BHEE
Due to the immediate holding company e BRI A RIFIA
Due to the ultimate holding company JEf S 445 A R FUR
Cash (including restricted cash) A (AEXBRHER:)

Net gearing ratio with the liabilities including
bank and other borrowings only

Net gearing ratio with the liabilities including
all interest-bearing liabilities

FREX (RERBRRITREMLET)

FEEX (REREMEFRAR)

FEBER/I
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R2020F 720194
12A31H 12H31H
30,828.4 24,297.9
18,088.6 15,891.7
12,739.8 8,406.2
1,770.7 1,263.8
9,415.5 1,936.5
18,710.4 12,372.8
23.9% 26.8%
1.7% 40.7%

Effect of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s assets are mainly denominated in Renminbi. 43.5% of the bank and
other borrowings are denominated in Renminbi, while 56.5% are offshore HK$
borrowings. HK$ is adopted as the reporting currency in the Group’s financial
statements. The effect of the increase in RMB exchange rate on the Group’s
finance was mainly reflected in the appreciation of the asset and earnings
denominated in Renminbi against HK$, the reporting currency. During the year,
such fluctuations in the asset and earnings denominated in Renminbi against
HK$, the reporting currency, resulted in a gain of HK$3,700.4 million in other
comprehensive income. The Group will closely monitor and proactively avert
foreign exchange risk through various ways.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total loans of HK$2,592.3 million (31
December 2019: HK$383.2 million) that were pledged with assets (please refer
to note 30(a) to the financial statements for details).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has given guarantees amounted to
RMB1,351.7 million in respect of bank loans and other borrowings to Guangzhou
Pik Sum Real Estate Development Company Limited and Taizhou Shum Yip
Investment Development Limited, both are joint ventures of the Group (please
refer to note 42(b) to the financial statements for details).
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Impacts of COVID-19 Pandemic

In 2020, the global economy was severely hit by the COVID-19. Amidst the
complex market environment brought by the COVID-19, the Group proactively
shouldered its social responsibility by taking active actions to weather the
hardship together with homeowners and tenants. The Group has actively
promoted the resumption of work and production while maintaining stable
results with rising trend. In 2021, the epidemic will be under control in China,
and the management believes that the impact of the epidemic will be gradually
reduced. The Group will endeavor to promote all business activities under normal
prevention and control.

In terms of sales, due to the impact of epidemic prevention and control, the
sales centers of the Group were temporarily closed in February 2020, which
significantly affected the contracted sales in January and February 2020. In view
of the epidemic situation, the Group, in line with the epidemic prevention and
control needs, launched an online sales platform, which enables the customers to
inquire, subscribe and sign contracts online. Thus, the sale of projects can still be
properly carried out while guaranteeing public security. For the whole year, due
to the epidemic, the saleable value has been reduced compared to the original
plan, and the contracted sales have also been affected to a certain extent. The
annual planned sales value was adjusted to about RMB28 billion according to the
adjusted business plan, and the contracted sales realised for the year was about
RMB14.5 billion, with the selling rate basically the same as the previous year.

In terms of rental income, the Group, together with its ultimate holding
company, Shum Yip Group Limited, actively responded to the requirements of
Shenzhen Municipal Government and the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission (SASAC), to weather the hardship together with
enterprises by implementing rent waive measures. At the beginning of the
epidemic, the Group waived rent for the non-state-owned enterprises, scientific
research institutions, medical institutions and individual industrial and commercial
households for two months, followed by an extension of another month of rent-
waive period for private educational institutions and other tenants. The rent waive
measures benefited more than 7,000 enterprises and individual industrial and
commercial households.
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In terms of construction schedule, in order to strengthen the epidemic prevention
and control work, all construction sites of the Group were suspended in February
2020, and all construction projects resumed no earlier than 1 March 2020. The
construction schedule was affected to some extent, and the construction of about
6% of the project value was delayed. However, according to the construction
schedule in 2020, the delayed resumption of work did not have a significant
impact on the important engineering nodes of the key projects planned to be
completed in 2020.

With respect to capital, the Group had sufficient capital and the reduction of pre-
sale had no significant impact on the liquidity of the Group, while in terms of
short-term debt, the Group had multiple resources of financing available with
sufficient current fund and no pressure on liquidity. As at the end of 2020, the
cash balance of the Group was approximately HK$18.71 billion.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 20,452 employees (2019:19,444)
of whom 21 were stationed in Hong Kong (mainly managerial and finance related
personnel), and the rest were in mainland China. The total remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (excluding remuneration of the Directors)
amounted to approximately HK$2,075.2 million (2019: HK$1,919.7 million).

Employee benefits and bonuses are based on their individual performance, the
Group’s profit condition, benefit level of the industry and the current market
condition. The remuneration packages are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure
internal equity and its competitiveness in the market. In driving performance,
we also grant share options, under the share option scheme of the Group, to
employees based on individual performance and the results of the Group.
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Dr. LU Hua
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Chairman
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Dr. LU Hua, aged 57, an Executive Director since 21 June 2011 and the
Chairman of the Board since 31 January 2013. Dr. LU was the President of
the Company during the period from 21 June 2011 to 30 January 2013 and
the Acting Chairman of the Board during the period from 24 April 2012 to 30
January 2013. He is also the chairman of the board of directors of Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. Dr. LU is also a director
of various members of the Group. Dr. LU holds a doctorate degree in Political
Economics from The Nankai University and a master’s degree in Finance from The
University of Reading in UK. Dr. LU held the position as the president of Shum
Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited from May 2011 to
December 2012. Prior to this, Dr. LU served as the chairman of Shahe Industrial
Co., Ltd. (000014.S2) and Shum Yip Shahe Group Co., Ltd. and the general
manager of Shenzhen Property Development Company Ltd.. Dr. LU also served
as a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Ltd. (2318.HK) and Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). At present, he
is a director of Shenzhen SEZ Construction and Development Group Co., Ltd.
and Shenzhen Talents Housing Group Co., Ltd.. He has vast experience of over
twenty years in property development, corporate governance and administrative
management.
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Mr. HUANG Wei, aged 50, an Executive Director and President since 21 July
2015. Mr. HUANG graduated from the Department of Chinese of Sun Yat-sen
University with a bachelor’s degree, and was a postgraduate in Law at Guangdong
Academy of Social Sciences. He also holds a master’'s degree in Business
Administration from Guanghua School of Management, Peking University. Mr.
HUANG is currently a director and president of Shum Yip Group Limited and
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He is also a director of various members
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he served as a deputy secretary of the
Party Working Committee, a deputy director of the Management Committee and
a director of Social Work Committee of CPC Shenzhen Dapeng New District and
served as a member of the Standing Committee, a director of District Committee
(district government) Office and a district government party member of Longgang
District and the Longgang District Youth League secretary. Mr. HUANG has
extensive experience in comprehensive urban development and operation,
corporate governance and administrative management.
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Ms. CAI Xun
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Executive Director
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Ms. CAI Xun, aged 45, an Executive Director since 27 August 2020. Ms. CAl
graduated from Central South University of Technology (now known as Central
South University) in investment economics with a bachelor’s degree in economics.
Ms. CAl is currently a director of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited. She is also a director of various members of the Group. Ms.
CAl was the chief of the Cadre Division 1 of the Organization Department of
Shenzhen Municipal Party Committee before joining the Group. Ms. CAl worked
in the Organization Department of Shenzhen Municipal Party Committee during
the period from 2002 to 2019 and served as the chief of the Research and
Publicity Division and the chief of the Cadre Supervision Division etc.. Ms. CAl
has extensive experience in human resources management and administrative
management.
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Mr. DONG Fang, aged 47, an Executive Director since 23 July 2020 and a
Vice President of the Company since April 2013. Mr. DONG is currently a vice
president of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited.
He is also a director of various members of the Group. Mr. DONG graduated from
The Hunan University with a master's degree and a senior engineer qualification.
He joined the Group since 2009 and served as a general manager of the real
estate department and investment department of the Company. He was a deputy
general manager of Huizhou Canton River Expressway Co., Ltd.. And prior to
this, he worked in the Transport Commission of Shenzhen Municipality. Mr.
DONG is currently the non-executive director of Road King Infrastructure Limited
(1098.HK), a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd (000014.SZ). He has extensive
experience in corporate management, property investment and operation
management.
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Mr. LIU Shichao
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Executive Director
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Mr. LIU Shichao, aged 49, a Non-executive Director since 18 January 2017
and an Executive Director since 23 July 2020. He is a director and the chief
financial officer of Shum Yip Group Limited and a director of Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited. He graduated from Zhongnan University of Finance and
Economics (now known as Zhongnan University of Economics and Law) majoring
in accountancy. He holds a bachelor's degree in economics and the title of
senior accountant. Mr. LIU was the deputy head of statistics and assessment
(budget finance) department and the deputy head of the second division of
enterprise department of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government. Mr. LIU was
a director of China Resources SZITIC Investment Co. Ltd (ZEEZEBRIRIZRESR
BRA®]). Mr. LIU was a director and the chief financial officer of Shenzhen
Energy Group Co. Ltd. (000027.SZ). He is currently also a director of Shahe
Industrial Co., Ltd (000014.SZ), a director of Kashi City Shenzhen Investment
and Development Co., Ltd. (WM FIBEEEREERADF). Mr. LIU has
considerable working experience in financial management and financial auditing.
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Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 71, an Independent Non-executive
Director since 9 October 2002. He was formerly the deputy chairman of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and a commissioner in the Strategy & Development
Committee of the China Securities Regulatory Commission. Prior to that, he
was the deputy chairman, chief operating officer and executive director and
responsible for the Intermediaries Division, comprising the Licensing and
Intermediaries Supervision Departments of the Securities and Futures Commission
until 31 December 1997. In addition, Mr. WU also served as an independent
non-executive director of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (188.HK),
an independent non-executive director and chairman of Cypress Jade Agricultural
Holdings Limited (renamed as China Finance Investment Holdings Ltd.) (875.HK)
and an executive director of Tradelink Electronic Commerce Ltd. (536.HK).
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Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 64, an Independent Non-executive Director since 27
September 2004. Mr. LI graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds
a master's degree in Business Administration from The University of East Asia.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LI had worked for
Henderson Land Development Company Limited (12.HK). He was an independent
non-executive director of Sun Century Group Limited (1383.HK), a director of
Shenzhen City Airport (Group) Company Limited (000089.S7), an executive
director and financial controller of GDH Limited, an executive director of
Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited) (124.HK) and a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment
Limited (270.HK). Mr. LI is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hans Energy Company Limited (554.HK), China South City Holdings Limited
(1668.HK) and Centenary United Holdings Limited (1959.HK). In addition, he
was appointed as a committee member of the 12th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Guangdong Province on 17 January 2018 and
appointed as a standing committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Guangdong Province on 27 January 2018. Mr. Ll is
also the chairman of the Council of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited,
a management accounting advisor of the Ministry of Finance, PRC, the vice
chairman of the Financial and Accounting Affairs Steering Committee of the Hong
Kong Chinese Enterprises Association, and the honorary president of Hong Kong
Business Accountants Association Limited.
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Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP, aged 63, an Independent Non-executive
Director since 13 June 2013. Dr. WONG received a doctorate degree in
Economics from the University of Chicago in 1987. Dr. WONG has extensive
experience in manufacturing, direct investment and international trade. Dr. WONG
is active in public service. He is a Hong Kong deputy of the National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China (ZEIARKREZAE). He is also the
chairman of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. Dr. WONG was
appointed as a Justice of Peace (JP) in 2010 and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia
Star (BBS) and Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) in 2012 and 2017 respectively for his
valuable contribution to the society.

Dr. WONG is currently an independent non-executive director of Huayi Tencent
Entertainment Company Limited (419.HK), Redco Properties Group Limited
(1622.HK), Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (934.HK) and Guangnan (Holdings)
Limited (1203.HK), which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. XU Lnli, aged 45, a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip Group
Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from Tianjin
University with a master’s degree and is a qualified senior engineer. He joined the
Group in 2010 and previously served as the chairman and general manager of
Shum Yip Land Co., Ltd., general manager of Shenzhen Science & Industry Park
Group Co., Ltd., deputy general manager of Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings)
Co., Ltd., deputy general manager of Shum Yip Pengji (Holdings) Co., Ltd., deputy
general manager of Shum Yip Shahe Group Co., Ltd., and assistant to general
manager and manager of investment control department of Shenzhen Tianjian
Real Estate Development Industry Co., Ltd.. Mr. XU has extensive experience in
real estate development, operation and infrastructure construction.

Mr. YAN Zhongyu, aged 45, a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip Group
Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from Wuhan
University with a master’s degree in Business Administration. Mr. YAN joined the
Group in 2020. He was the head of capital market department, the deputy head
and the head of strategic development department and the deputy head and a
senior supervisor of investment development department (investment project
assessment center) of Shenzhen Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., and a director,
deputy executive general manager, secretary of the board, head of administration
office and deputy manager (investment department) of Shenzhen Great Ocean
Shipping Co., Ltd.. Mr. YAN has extensive experience in project investment and
financing, corporate management and capital operation.

Mr. YEO Kee Whye, aged 55, a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from
Imperial College London and holds a master's degree in Computer Science from
University of Oxford. Mr. YEO joined the Group in 2021. Prior to this, he served
as the Co-president of Sinobo Land, the general manager of Hopson Commercial
Properties Ltd., the general manager of a commercial company of Financial Street
Holdings and the managing director of CapitaMalls Asia in China. Mr. YEOQ has
extensive experience in project investment, business development management,
asset management in commercial real estate sector.
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Mr. ZHU Guoqiang, aged 47, is currently the General Manager of Capital
Market Department of the Company. He obtained a master's degree in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology. He
joined the Group in 2004, and held positions as general manager of investment
department and strategic management department of the Company. Prior to
this, he worked in Shenzhen Construction Investment Holdings Ltd.. Mr. ZHU is
currently a non-executive director of Coastal Greenland Limited (1124.HK). Mr.
ZHU is familiar with the real estate market and property development process and
has maintained good communication with investors.

Ms. WONG Yin San, aged 54, is the General Counsel of the Company and
the Secretary of the Board. Ms. WONG joined the Group in September 2014,
She is a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance Professional. She holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree and a Bachelor of Laws degree. Prior
to joining the Group, she worked in the corporate department of an international
law firm. She also previously held a senior position in a listed company in Hong
Kong. Ms. WONG has extensive experience in the legal, regulatory, corporate
finance, compliance and corporate governance fields.

Ms. HUANG Jiong, aged 54, is currently the admin director and the General
Manager of Human Resources Department of the Company and Shum Yip Group
Limited. Ms. Huang graduated from Shenzhen University with major in Human
Resource Management and Business Administration, and the title of senior
political analyst. She joined the Group in 1989, and held positions as general
manager assistant and deputy general manager of human resources department
of the Company. Ms. HUANG has extensive experience in corporate management
and human resources management.

Mr. YANG Jianhui, aged 51, is currently the General Manager of Finance
Management Department of the Company and Shum Yip Group Limited. Mr. YANG
graduated from Heilongjiang Bayi Agricultural University and holds a bachelor’s
degree in economics and the title as senior accountant. Mr. YANG joined the
Group in 2007 and held the position as deputy general manager of Shum Yip
Land Company Limited. Mr. YANG has extensive expertise and experience in
finance management.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in presenting to
shareholders their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group consist of property development for sale,
property management and property investments for rental income. The property
development process is vertically integrated from land acquisition, project
planning, material sourcing, construction and project management to sales and
marketing to ensure high standards in every aspect. The Group’ professional
property management team manages a variety of types of properties including
government offices, office buildings, residential estates, villas an science and
technology parks mainly located in Pearl River and Yangtze River deltas as well
as the central region. Our investment property portfolio includes commercial,
residential and industrial buildings and car parking bays, which are located
mainly in Shenzhen. Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are set out in note 21, note 22 and note 23 to
the financial statements, respectively. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the financial
position of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 110 to 263.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK11.00 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: a final dividend of HK11.00
cents per share), which subject to the approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, will be payable in cash on
or about Thursday, 8 July 2021 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 11 June 2021. Together with the
interim dividend of HK7.00 cents per share already paid, the total dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 amounts to HK18.00 cents per share (2019:
HK18.00 cents per share).

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” respectively from pages 10 to 19 and pages 22 to 39 of this report
(which from part of this Directors’ Report) and the paragraphs below.
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Law and Regulations

The Group is principally engaged in property development, property management
and property investment in the PRC and is therefore subject to the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC. In respect of the laws and regulations relating to
the environment, which include, but not limited to, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Environmental Protection (% AR EMBIREZREE), Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution (%
2= AR LMEIE RIS 23 558 7%) and the relevant environmental protection
laws and regulations of Shenzhen Special Economic Zone as well as other
provinces where the Group operates etc.. The Group attaches great importance
to legal compliance, and carries out all the business activities in compliance with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations.

Key Risk Factors

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses, financial conditions,
operational results or growth prospects leading to a divergence from expected or
historical results. The following paragraphs list out the key risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined below, and there may be other
risks which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could become material in the future.

Epidemic Risks

The novel coronavirus has brought substantive impact on macro economy and the
industry where the Group operates. The implementation of measures in respect
of epidemic prevention and control and enhanced efforts on property services, as
well as the occurrence of unexpected factors in the future, will have a continuous
impact on the Group’'s development and sales business, property investment
business as well as property service business. The Group will keep an eye on the
trend of the epidemic at all times, and develop corresponding solutions to cope
with the risks caused on development and operation on the premise of ensuring
public safety.

Macroeconomic Risks

The Group’s development and operations may be affected by external
macroeconomic and capital market fluctuations. The geo-political instability in the
international arena will have uncontrollable long-term effects. The systematic risk
in China’s economic transformation, the shocks on macro economy arising from
the epidemic situation and the fluctuating capital market will bring uncertainty
to the Group’s operating environment. The Group will keep track of the
macroeconomic changes at all times and take corresponding measures to cope
with the risks as and when necessary.
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Inaustry Risks

Affected by epidemic prevention and control, policy control, liquidity and other
factors, the real estate industry in China is facing complex environment and
high uncertainty, which shall have an impact on the Group’s development and
operations. The income from property business represents mainstream income
of the Group, and in the Group’s income from real estate sales, the income
from the real estate sales in Shenzhen market has a higher proportion. If there
is a downside risk in the real estate market in Shenzhen, this will have a more
substantial impact on the Group’s sales revenue and profitability. The Group
closely monitors the sales position at all times and adopts strategies with
flexibilities to cope with the risks.

Policy Risks

Policy guidance has a profound impact on the real estate market. In 2020,
key cities in China continued to be under an environment with stringent policy
control, and Shenzhen launched the most stringent regulatory policy among first-
tier cities in July. The changes and the efforts in implementation of the policies
have a certain impact on trading volume and selling price of real estate market.
In August, the government delivered the credit policy of “three red lines” for the
financing of real estate enterprises, which proposed a long-term development
mechanism for real estate enterprises, aiming to urge real estate enterprises to
pay attention to the utilization of funds, cooperation and the quality of projects,
S0 as to promote the transformation of the real estate industry, strengthen the
service attributes and stabilize the real estate market. The Group will carefully
interpret the policies and closely monitor the market situation, and flexibly adjust
the Company’s strategy and sales plan to cope with the risk from policy changes.

Exchange Rate Risks

There is fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate. The Group’s main assets are
located in mainland China while the reporting currency of Group's financial
reports is Hong Kong dollar. The fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate will
cause changes in the value of the Group’s assets and earnings denominated in
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, the reporting currency. The Group did not
adopt any financial instrument to hedge against exchange rate risk in the year.
In future, the Group will monitor the exchange rate fluctuations, and actively
address exchange rate risks through a variety of ways.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operations may be affected by multiple risk factors related to the real
estate business. Inadequate internal processes, personal misconduct, external
partner's breach behavior or other factors beyond control may have certain
negative impacts on the Group’s operation. The Group will continue to optimize
its management, improve its internal control system and enhance its operational
capabilities so as to avoid such risks.
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Highlight of ESG Report

In 2020, the Company was still making persistent efforts to achieve sustainability
goal of the Group. Specifically, we have facilitated steady business operation
and sustainable development by aligning with national and regional development
strategies and seizing the opportunities arising from the “dual-driven” (¥2[&)
policy launched in Shenzhen Special Economic Zone, while proactively performing
the environmental and social liabilities of the Group. During the year, we have
been improving and strengthening the environmental, social and governance
framework, and have specified the responsibilities for overall planning and
implementation of sustainability affairs and related work reporting mechanism.
We pursue the balanced development among economic, environmental, and social
benefits by actively promoting our own steady and sustainable development, so
as to better shoulder our responsibilities towards all stakeholders.

We have always been keeping corporate social responsibility in mind and sticking
to the concept of “Health, Quality and Culture”. On one hand, we encourage the
development of green construction and healthy building. On the other hand, we
advocate cleaner production by employing new energy-saving and emission-
reduction technology to maximize its utilization. Through the above efforts, we
are committed to creating and establishing an ecological and livable construction
environment, so as to achieve a win-win situation for both environmental quality
and green ecology. Meanwhile, we actively explore a “smart +" industry model
to implement the smart city planning under the 14th Five-Year Plan. We also
build an intelligent park that guides the trend of new technology and leads a new
lifestyle, thus realizing our vision of building a sound and sustainable community.

Adhering to the human resources concept of “morality headed and making good
use of talents”, we have always been completing the talent selection mechanism
to ensure a steady stream of vibrant talents for the Group, as well as establishing
and improving human resource management policy to promote the construction
and quality of our talent pool. In addition, we attach great importance to our
employees’ safety and health as well as training and development, aiming at
providing the employees with a healthy, harmonious, fair and just working
environment and atmosphere where they are respected. Our intelligent property
platform offers more convenience to customers’ lives, thus enabling them to enjoy
better service. Our voluntary teams of emergent fire-fighting and traffic order
etc. continue to help the building of a harmonious community. Besides, we have
successfully fulfilled our task of targeted poverty alleviation, which contributed
to the completion of the battle against poverty in China by 2020. We actively
participate in community construction, carry out diversified community activities,
and contribute to the building of a harmonious society. With firm determination
to win the fight against the epidemic, we have paid close attention to epidemic
prevention and control, and improved the normalized prevention and control
mechanism as well as the mechanism of joint prevention and control and group
prevention and group control. Furthermore, we have shouldered the responsibility
as a state-owned enterprise and relied on our advantages to support the
development of small and medium-sized enterprises and overcome difficulties
together with them in concerted efforts by waiving rent and other ways.
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We highly value the recommendations and views provided by all stakeholders and
undertake to create long-term values for our stakeholders including homeowners,
tenants, investors, business partners, employees, and broad communities.
To this end, we have been committed to building a diversified and efficient
communication mechanism, establishing close contact with our stakeholders,
and proactively understanding and responding to their concerns, ensuring the
stakeholders’ right to know and privacy, and achieving a harmonious and win-
win situation. During the year, we conducted effective communication with the
management and employees of relevant functional departments and second-
and-third-level enterprises through site visits, training, interviews, etc.

We will take initiative to assume our social responsibilities, strive to improve the
Group's environmental, social and governance issues, and integrate the fulfillment
of social responsibilities into the entire process of construction and business
operation to ensure the Group’s sustainable development strategy plays an active
role in all aspects, thereby achieving the Group's vision.

Please refer to the “2020 Environmental, Social and Governance Report” to be
issued by the Company for details.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published results of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements as appropriate, is set out on page 7. This summary
is not part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 and 17 to the
financial statements respectively.

Properties
Particulars of major properties held by the Group are set out on pages 264 to
270.

Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in note 21, note 22 and note 23 to the financial statements
respectively.

Reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
amounted to HK$2,432,503,000.00 of which HK$978,988,000.00 have been
proposed as final dividend for the year. Details of movements in the reserves
of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 114 to 115 and note 38(c) to the
financial statements respectively.
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Interest Capitalisation

Interest (excluding interest accrued on contract liabilities) of approximately
HK$398,255,000.00 was capitalised during the year in respect of the Group’s
property development projects.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s sales and purchases
respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest of the Group’s five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

Donations
During the year, the Group has made donations of approximately HK$690,319.11
for charitable or other purposes.

Directors
The Directors in office as at the date of this report are listed on Page 4 of this
report. The changes in Board membership during the year are set out below:

Mr. MOU Yong retired as an executive director on 26 May 2020
—  Mr. LIU Chong resigned as an executive director on 23 July 2020
—  Mr. DONG Fang was appointed as an executive director on 23 July 2020

—  Mr. LIU Shichao was re-designated from non-executive director to executive
director on 23 July 2020

—  Ms. CAI Xun was appointed as an executive director on 27 August 2020

Dr. WU Jiesi resigned as a non-executive director on 14 September 2020

In accordance with article 100 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. HUANG Wei, Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election.

Mr. DONG Fang and Ms. CAI Xun were appointed by the Board as Directors
to fill casual vacancy on 23 July 2020 and 27 August 2020, respectively. In
accordance with article 91 of the articles of association of the Company, Mr.
DONG Fang and Ms. CAIl Xun will hold office as Director only until the next
following general meeting following their appointment and, being eligible, they
have offered themself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.
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The list of directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the
Company during the year of this report is available on the Company’s website at
www.shenzheninvestment.com under the “Corporate Governance” section.

Update on Directors’ Information
Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David resigned as an independent non-executive director of
CSSC (Hong Kong) Shipping Company Limited (3877.HK) on 10 November 2020.

Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 40 to 49 of this report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transaction, Arrangement and
Contract

None of the Directors or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group where were entered into by
the Group and subsisting during or at the end of the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors has any direct or indirect interest
in a business which competes or may compete, with the business of the Group
as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

Dr. LU Hua is the chairman and a director, Mr. HUANG Wei is the president and
a director, Ms. CAI Xun and Mr. LIU Shichao are directors of both Shum Yip
Holdings Limited (‘SYH”) and Shum Yip Group Limited (‘SYG"). SYH and SYG,
through their subsidiaries and associates, have interests in property investment
and development businesses in the PRC.

In addition, Mr. DONG Fang is a non-executive director of Road King Infrastructure
Limited (1098.HK), an associated company of the Company, whose shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and engages in property
investment and development businesses. Mr. DONG Fang and Mr. LIU Shichao
are also directors of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. (000014.SZ), whose shares are
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange and have interests in property investment and
development businesses in the PRC.

Emoluments of Directors and Chief Executives and the Five
Highest Paid Employees

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments and of the five highest
paid employees in the Group are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the financial
statements respectively.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 June 2012 (“Share Option
Scheme”). The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and reward
to the participants to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefits of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

2. The eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are the employee or
director (including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
director) of any member of the group comprising the Company, Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
Shum Yip Group Limited, the holding company of Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited, and their subsidiaries and associated companies from
time to time (the “SY Group”) or any employee, partner or director of any
business consultant, joint venture partner, financial adviser and legal
adviser of and to any member of the SY Group, as the Board may at it
absolute discretion determine.

3. The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of adopting the Share Option
Scheme. That 10% limit was refreshed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 19 June 2014 whereby the Company was authorized
to grant further options carrying rights to subscribe for up to 538,252,770
shares, representing 10% of the total number of the Company's shares in
issue as at the date of the said meeting, under the Share Option Scheme.
As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme was 514,912,865 (of which options to
subscribe for 153,604,958 shares had been granted and were outstanding),
representing approximately 5.79% of the shares in issue of the Company.

4. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
to each Participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in an 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue, unless otherwise separately approved
by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting. Further, any
grant of option to a participant who is a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
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respective associates, which would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
him in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant (i)
representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue; and (i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, is subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting.

5. The exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option Scheme
is to be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, and shall expire
no later than the 10th anniversary of date upon which the option is granted
and accepted in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

6.  There is neither any minimum period for which an option must be held, nor
any performance target which is needed to be achieved before the option
can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the Board and specified
at the time of the offer.

7. The period open for acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option shall
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion provided that it shall
not be opened for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of the date upon
which the option is granted and accepted in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is
earlier. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option shall be made
with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee.

8.  The exercise price shall be a price determined solely by the Board and shall
be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant; and (i) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.

9.  The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until 22 June 2022
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms stipulated
therein.

Please refer to note 37 to the financial statements for further information of the
Share Option Scheme.

There was no grant, lapse or cancellation of share options during the year. As
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at 31 December 2020, 153,604,958 options granted under the Share Option 128318 - {REBERE 2% H 2 153,604,95817 8
Scheme were still outstanding. IRBE R ARITE ©

The particulars of, and movements in, the share options outstanding under the X EIFIF NEBRER 818 T WAR{TE 2 BREZ &
Share Option Scheme during the year are set out below: BEREE :

Number of share options

Date of Exercise Exercise

At Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled - Other changes At 31 grant of period of price of
January during during during during during ~ December share share share
2020 the year the year the year the year 2020 options options options

20205
128318

Directors
EZ
LU Hua 8,895,000 - - - - 410948 9,305,948 20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022" 2902
nE (Note 1)
(BsE1)
HUANG Wei 8,449,789 - - - - 390,380 8,840,169  20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022* 2.902
ER (Note 1)
(1)
DONG Fang N/A - - - - 275,386 6,236,143 20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022" 2.902
9] il (Note 1)
(Note 2) (H&1)
(R2) 5,960,757
(Note 2)
(z2)
MOU Yong 5,960,757 - - - - 275,386 - 20062017 20/6/2019-19/6/2022" 2.902
BE (Note 1)
(W)
(6,236,143)
(Note 3)
(z£3)
LIU Chong 5,960,757 - - - - 275,386 - 20062017 20/6/2019-19/6/2022" 2.902
s (Note 1)
(W)
(6,236,143)
(Note 4)
(Hiz4)

29,266,303 - - - (4,884,043) 24,382,260
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Number of share options
BENE

Date of Exercise Exercise

At1 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled - Other changes At 31 grant of period of price of
January during during during (uring during December share share share
2020 the year the year the year the year the year 2020 options options options

3
H

Other participants 94,473,994 - - -

4,089,304 105,074,827 20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022* 2.902

EftSmE the 1)
(1)
(5,960,757)
(Note 2)
(fh3t2)
12,472,286
(Note 3 and
Note 4)
(RisE3%
fizt4)
23,081,514 - - - - 1,066,357 24,147,871 8/2/2018  20/6/2019-19/6/2022" 2.869
117,555,508 - - - - 11,667,190 129,222,698
Igaggregate 146,821,811 - - - - 6,783,147 153,604,958
=AY
* Options shall be exercisable in the following manner and subject to performance review: * FERREBIE T ARTEL T RIREZEE
Maximum percentage of Share Option exercisable Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the Share Option
ATEBRERSLLH AR A L Bl BB IR 2 1T e A RS
at any time from 20 June 2019 to 19 June 2020
40% 2019476 A 20 H £20204°6 A 19 B Z fE Al 5
at any time from 20 June 2020 to 19 June 2021
70% 202046 A 20 H £202146 4198 2 F{alE5 R
at any time from 20 June 2021 to 19 June 2022
100% 202146 420 B £20224F6 519 B Z (E ]
Notes: et

1. The number of unexercised share options and the exercise price may be subject to 1. RITEBREZHE RITEESEARRRALE

adjustment in case of alteration in the capital structure of the Company. Pursuant to the BEEMAE - BIE2020F817HZAE » &
announcement dated 17 August 2020, the Company adjusted the exercise price and
number of options outstanding with reference to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the supplementary guidance attached to the letter of the Stock Exchange relating to
share option schemes dated 5 September 2005. The adjusted number and exercise prices
for each batch of share options and presented in note 37(a) to the financial statements.

Mr. DONG Fang was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 23 July
2020 and therefrom, the options he held were transferred from the category of “Other
participants” to “Directors”.

Mr. MOU Yong has retired as an executive director of the Company with effect from 26
May 2020 and remains a participant of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LIU Chong has resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from 23
July 2020 and remains a participant of the Share Option Scheme.

A ER R RS B 5T B A R 3R I B X P B BE AR S T
2l B B HIA200549 A5 B &Y K {4 BE M 69 7 T 45
Sl MARTTHEERBITEERREMEAZ - &
AL 2 AR E RITEER M B REM
37(@)7R °

B EAER2020F7 A23 BEEERA D AT
B HRACERERZEEHA [Hb2mE]
BE[EE|D8R-

BEBEENR2020FE5 A26 B ETARAIMITE
= NAEBRETEZ2NE -

B2 L ER2020E7 A3 BEARARB®MITE
F - DABRESE ZZ2ME -
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Directors’ Interests in Shares EHRZ R

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the directors and 7202012 A31H » AR A ZESRESTHA
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures ~ ERAR T REREEER (T RES RS EH
of the Company and any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part ([ &EHREIEEH ) EXVE) ZBkD ~ BERND K
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (‘SFO") which were notified to the  BEEFHEEREESFRBERHIEXVEETRESD
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange’)  #SBME@ARRRBEABAERSZMBER DA ([HX
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short  Ffl) Z#EZ kAR (AEREZL RS KN ZE
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SF0),  EXHWEESBAEA 2 AR ZH#) » HDHEAR
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352  BEHMHEGIERIEI2EEFEZ BRM R
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock A& * SBERDAIRM 7 FHRITAESERTESR
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of A Z &SR ([2EE||) BRERD T KR

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) adopted by the Company were as follows: FrzEmsoREmT
Long positions in the shares (‘Shares’) and underlying shares of the Company: ERa ([H 1) RIBERD 278

Underlying shares

Number of pursuant to Aggregate Percentage of

Name of director Capacity Shares share options Shares in issue

REBREL EE BTG

EEMA 7 Bin 2B HERHHE B ZEDE

LU Hua Beneficial owner 1,154,562 9,305,948 10,460,510 0.12
BE ESHEBA

HUANG Wei Beneficial owner - 8,840,169 8,840,169 0.10
oy ERBAA

DONG Fang Beneficial owner - 6,236,143 6,236,143 0.07
9] ESHEBA

LI Wai Keung Beneficial owner 1,180,880 - 1,180,880 0.01
FER ESHBA

Note: The percentage was calculated based on 8,899,893,115 Shares in issue as at 31 e : B TIREEZ2020F12 831 A ZE %7
December 2020. 198,899,893,115f% 51 & -

Interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company are stated in detail ~ EZRAARARERE 2 E—& [ EkEE ] $
in the preceding section “Share Option Scheme’. FHES -
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2020, any interests or short positions in
any Shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (which is the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SF0), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or its associated corporations and none
of the Directors, or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any rights
to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or its associated
corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

Substantial Shareholders

So far as is known to any director or chief executive of the Company, as at 31
December 2020, the interests and short positions of the shareholders (other
than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

B EXFREES  BE2020F12A318 © HER
NAIZEERZEITBRAERAR R R EE M %E
(TERBELERPEEGISEXVE) 2 FRRHD RABERK
NAEFTFHEEREELFRPAEROIEXNVDBETRE
B MANEARA KB ERTAR (BERE
FHERBERN 2 BEBGEIEEERIRABRERZAR
ZHER) - HERHRNRIEE S RS EAE 3521588
ADRFEZECMZERIAR  SURBEETE
BRNEADERBIZERIAR

BREXBEEI  REREFERE - AREHAE
AMBRAMELREMNTE - SESURUBAR
AIRERBZE RN EBES (BEER) ME
Mo TEENES - ARSEZEBIETN\EATF
THEETMAREARRRERBAE 2 B S X EH
BN RETEEMZEER

EXY 3
RARAEMESHERITHABAA + K2020%F
12A318 * BR (ARAESSRHBITHRAERN)
RARRBRG RIEBROTEEAREEFRPEK
BIEXVERE2 REIDE 2 KA AR BT 2 B &
KB REHRADRREES LHEKIE336K
BRBEZELMZESRARNT ¢
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Interest in Shares: BRipkERS -

Number of Shares
B8 E

Percentage of

Capacity Long Position Short Position Shares in issue
HEZTRM
H15 K ZEAHK
(Note 1)
(PtaE1)
Shum Yip Group Limited* (“SYG") Interest in controlled corporation 5,622,994,189 %‘;i’) - 63.18
AEEBERRR (DREER]) RIEE
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (‘SYH")  Beneficial owner 5,546,307,730 - 62.32
*E (RE) BRAR (A% (£8) 1) ERABA
Interest in controlled corporation 76,686,459 ‘(N;T‘;’) - 0.86
REEE 2 B
ALPHA-OMEGA CORPORATION Beneficial owner 795,819,417 - 8.94
EGBEAA
Notes: Mzt -

1. The percentage was calculated based on 8,899,893,115 Shares in issue as at 31 1. BB EEE2020FE12 A31 B 2 2 BTG
December 2020. 8,809,893, 11555 -

2. SYG is deemed to be interested in the 5,622,994,189 Shares which SYH is interested in 2. BARX(RE) ARXKECEEZEMBAF
by virtue of SYH being its direct wholly-owned subsidiary. WEEERERARAE (SB)EEEEZ
5,622,994,189 & AX (5 R HE B #E %5 ©

3. These 76,686,459 Shares were held by Goldclass Industrial Limited, a wholly-owned 3. #%%76,686,459 1% fi% {5 B3 Successful Years Holdings

subsidiary of Successful Years Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Shum Limitedz 2 EMBRARMABEEERARFH -
Yip Finance Company Limited (‘SYF’). SYF is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SYH and i Successful Years Holdings Limited (9054 5 & B4 81 75
accordingly, SYH is deemed to be interested in these 76,686,459 Shares. BRAR (FESR]) 2888 - ZESBAR

¥ (£E)M2EMBRAR Bt - FE (£E)
W iR A A 255 76,686,459 AL AL (D R B AE S ©

* For identification purpose only

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company had not been  Bx EXFTRES I - 8 £2020F12 8318 » HET
notified by any person (other than directors and chief executives of the Company) AL (ARRBEERZETRAERN) BHMERR
who had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the — BIERARARKRG MABEKROTHEREEALPE
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or  &PIEXVEE2REID B2 G R HRREEF L
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the ~ HAEIEBHIFEI36KEFE 2 Bt 2SS KE -
SFO.
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Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed above, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or
that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are provided under note 43 to the financial statements.
Some of these transactions also constituted non-exempt connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, for which the Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements.

Connected Transactions

Set out below is the information in relation to the connected transactions carried
out by the Group during the year, particulars of which were previously disclosed
by way of announcement and are required under the Listing Rules to be disclosed
in this report.

1. On 2 July 2020, Shum Yip Taifu Logistic Group Holding Co., Ltd. (the
“Purchaser’), a subsidiary of the Company, and Shum Yip Group Limited
(the “Vendor”), the ultimate holding company of the Company, entered into
an equity transfer agreement (‘Equity Transfer Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell the 52.848% equity interest (‘Equity
Interest”) held by the Vendor in Shumyip Jinzhi Logistic Development Co.,
Ltd. (the “Target Company”) for a consideration of RMB537.48 million (the
“Acquisition”). The consideration will be paid by the Purchaser in cash (i) as
to 50%, being RMB268.74 million, within 30 working days from the day the
Equity Transfer Agreement becomes effective; and (i) as to the remaining
50% within 30 working days after completion of the Acquisition.

The major property interests held by the Target Company include,
amongst others, the Qingshuihe Renewal Project and a potential urban
renewal project (‘Sungang Phase | Project”), all located in Luohu District,
Shenzhen. Due to historical reasons, certain assets and interests of
the Target Company, namely relating to 4 land parcels (the “Excluded
Properties”) which have already been included in the Sungang Phase |
Project are unclear and cannot be reliably valued. The Purchaser and the
Vendor agreed not to include the Excluded Properties in the scope of the
Acquisition and all rights and interest and related expenses associated with
the Excluded Properties (to the extent of the Equity Interest) shall be that of
the Vendor.

B 5% 4 4 ik

W ERAEE 2 AR R ZERER IS - RERSRE
EHERE - ARABET YR FEENR SR EH
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BB 7 22 5
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Bf > HFBEFEURETARBYLRRE LA
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As the Vendor is the ultimate holding company of the Company, it is
therefore a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Details of the Acquisition were set out in announcement of the Company
dated 2 July 2020. Supplemental information regarding the Acquisition is
set out below:

(1) The Excluded Properties

The Target Company is the owner of the Excluded Properties as
evidenced by various ownership-related documents including
agreement and/or correspondence and/or confirmation letters
and/or land parcel map with/from the relevant government
department and/or entities in respect of each of the Excluded
Properties. And, the Excluded Properties have been occupied
and used by the Target Company all along. A majority of the
Excluded Properties has been included in Sungang Phase |
Project for development and construction and currently the final
planning of Sungang Phase | Project has not been materialized,
the Target Company has not obtained the property ownership
certificates in respect of the Excluded Properties.

The book value of the total assets and net assets of the
Excluded Properties are nil in the accounts of the Target
Company and the revenue, loss before taxation and loss after
taxation attributable to the Excluded Properties for the two
years ended 31 December 2019 are as follows: revenue (2018:
RMB1.23 million; 2019: RMB1.25 million), loss before taxation
(2018: RMB2.74 million; 2019: RMB1.84 million) and loss after
taxation (2018: RMB2.81 million; 2019: RMB1.90 million).

Upon completion of the Acquisition, the Target Company will
continue to own the legal interests in the Excluded Properties.
And, as the Group will have legal ownership of the Equity
Interest in the Target Company which constitutes control over
the Target Company, as such, the Group should consolidate
all assets and liabilities of the Target Company (including the
Excluded Properties) in its financial statements according to
HKFRS 10. Correspondingly, non-controlling interests will
be increased to reflect the Vendor's interest in the Excluded
Properties.
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Arrangement regarding the Excluded Properties

As the Target Company has not obtained the property ownership
certificates in respect of the Excluded Properties, reorganization in
respect of such property interests is not viable. Besides, any asset
reorganization requires the consent of all shareholders of the Target
Company and the third-party shareholder is not intended to and
would not agree to strip off the Excluded Properties from the Target
Company by way of reorganization. Therefore, it is not possible
to undergo reorganization in respect of the Excluded Properties
before the Acquisition. As the Excluded Properties cannot be reliably
valued for the pricing of the Acquisition given their status, they
have not been separately valued and no value has been assigned to
each of the Excluded Properties for the purpose of the Acquisition.
The Purchaser and the Vendor therefore agreed to deal with the
corresponding interests in the Excluded Properties by way of
contractual arrangement that such interests will continue to be owned
by the Vendor upon completion. And, the third-party shareholder of
the Target Company has given its written consent to such contractual
arrangement. In accordance with the arrangement, the Vendor and
the Purchaser entered into an entrustment agreement in respect
of the management of the Excluded Properties and agreed on the
undertakings and indemnity to be provided by the Vendor in relation
to the Excluded Properties.

Mechanism for dealing with losses, expenses and liabilities in relation
to the Excluded Properties

Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement, the Vendor undertakes to
bear all the losses/expenses/liabilities incurred by the Purchaser in
respect of the Equity Interest, due to the potential losses/expenses/
liabilities in relation to the Excluded Properties and other liabilities or
losses of the Purchaser, directly or indirectly, due to reason of the
Excluded Properties (the “Vendor's Undertakings”).
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The mechanism for dealing with claims under the Vendor's
Undertakings is set out below:

(@

For recurring operating expenses/losses

The Target Company will keep a separate record for the income
and expenses attributed to the Excluded Properties in the
accounts of the Target Company, where the income is based on
the rental income from the lease of the Excluded Properties and
the expenses are recognized in the amount actually incurred by
the operations management department of the Target Company
in respect of the Excluded Properties, including but not limited
to personnel remuneration, office expense, utilities expenses
property management fee and repair and maintenance
expenses. In the event the income cannot cover the expenses
52.848% of the shortfall shall be borne by the Vendor and
paid by the Vendor to the Purchaser. In this regard, the Target
Company will issue a settlement note in respect of the amount
of the shortfall to be borne by the Vendor on a quarterly basis
to the Vendor and the Vendor shall pay such amount to the
Purchaser accordingly.

For other potential liabilities

In the event of any potential liabilities, the Target Company shall
be responsible for the handling and accounting of such event
and record all the expenses/losses thereof. The Vendor shall
then pay the Purchaser a sum representing 52.848% of the
relevant expenses/losses so recorded by the Target Company.
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(4)

Safeguards available to the Purchaser in the case the Vendor fails to
fulfill its obligations under the Vendor’s Undertakings

The Company believes that the risk of the Vendor not fulfilling its
obligations under the Vendor's Undertakings is very minimal as the
Vendor is the ultimate holding company of the Company with good
financial position and there is mechanism in place to deal with claims
under the Vendor's Undertakings and such mechanism has been
endorsed by the top management of the Vendor and the Group and
become approved internal operation procedures to be followed in
future. In addition, there are safeguards to further protect the interest
of the Purchaser in this respect, as follows:

)

(i

(i)

(v

The Vendor has been providing loans to the Purchaser
continuously for years. The Vendor has agreed that in the case
the Vendor fails to pay the relevant losses, expenses, and/
or liabilities in respect of the Excluded Properties as required
by the Purchaser or the Target Company under the Vendor’s
Undertakings, the Purchaser can settle such amount from the
principal of the loan or the interest payable thereon;

In the case the Purchaser decides to purchase the relevant
rights and interests of the Excluded Properties in accordance
with the terms of the Equity Transfer Agreement when the
Excluded Properties meet the development conditions in future,
the Purchaser can deduct all the outstanding amount payable
by the Vendor under the Vendor's Undertakings, if any, from
the consideration to be paid by the Purchaser to the Vendor in
respect of the acquisition;

In the case the Excluded Properties meet the development
conditions and the Purchaser is not purchasing the relevant
rights and interests of the Excluded Properties, the Purchaser
can deduct all the outstanding amount payable by the Vendor
under the Vendor's Undertakings, if any, from the profit it
received, as the registered shareholder of the Target Company,
in respect of the Excluded Properties after completion of the
project and then pay the balance of the profit to the Vendor;
and

If the Vendor is not fulfilling its obligations under the Vendor’s
Undertakings, the Purchaser can apply to the Shenzhen
Arbitration Commission for arbitration in accordance with the
terms of the Equity Transfer Agreement and require the Vendor
to fulfill its obligations in accordance with the Equity Transfer
Agreement.

(4)
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Reasons for the entrustment agreement and the Vendor's
Undertakings

The Company is of the view that as Shenzhen has been identified as
a pilot demonstration zone for socialism with Chinese characteristics
and is an important city in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area, the real estate prospects of Shenzhen is the best in the
country. Whilst the relevant interest in respect of the Excluded
Properties is not included in the scope of the Acquisition, the Target
Company’s main assets are located in the core areas of Shenzhen.
Acquiring the Equity Interest sooner rather than later will enable the
Purchaser to enjoy maximum benefits from property appreciation in
the Shenzhen real estate market in the future. The Purchaser and the
Vendor have agreed that the above contractual arrangement in respect
of the Excluded Property is a more feasible way for the Acquisition
under the circumstances. There are provisions as to the arrangement
of the Excluded Properties and the Vendor's Undertakings under the
Equity Transfer Agreement and safeguards available to the Purchaser
in the case the Vendor fails to fulfill its obligations under the Vendor's
Undertakings. Furthermore, the Target Company and its assets
(including the Excluded Properties) will be managed by the Purchaser
upon completion. As such, the Company believes that the Acquisition
is beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Mechanism in case the Purchaser is not purchasing the Excluded
Properties when the Excluded Properties meet the development
conditions

As the Target Company will act as the principal of the development
project in respect of the Excluded Properties (‘Excluded Properties
Project”) when the Excluded Properties meet the development
conditions, the development of the Excluded Properties Project will
be continued and implemented by the Target Company. In the event
the Purchaser is not purchasing the interests associated with the
Excluded Properties from the Vendor when the Excluded Properties
meet the development conditions, all rights and interest and related
expenses associated with the Excluded Properties (to the extent of the
Equity Interest) will continue to be that of the Vendor and the Vendor's
Undertakings will remain.
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The operating mechanism in respect of the Excluded Properties
Project is as follow:

)

(i)

Funding for the Excluded Properties Project

In respect of funding for the Excluded Properties Project, the
Vendor shall prepay 52.848% of such funding according to the
development progress of the Excluded Properties Project on a
regular basis as per the following mechanism. At the end of
each quarter, the Target Company will provide the Purchaser
and the Vendor a funding payment schedule for the Excluded
Properties Project for the following quarter, which is prepared
according to the development progress of the Excluded
Properties Project. In addition, the Target Company will give the
Vendor and the Purchaser 5-days advance notice when payment
is to be made. The Vendor shall pay the amount on a pro rata
basis i.e. 52.848% to the Purchaser one business day prior to
the day payment is to be made by the Target Company.

Independent audit and separate accounting

The Target Company will do independent audit and separate
accounting in respect of the Excluded Properties Project
based on the approved development planning of the Excluded
Properties Project. Upon completion of construction or sales
of the Excluded Properties Project, the Target Company will
engage an audit firm to conduct asset and capital verification
on the Excluded Properties Project in accordance with the
applicable accounting principles. Where necessary, the Target
Company may engage an asset appraisal agency to determine
the profit of the Excluded Properties Project. The profit from
the Excluded Properties Project will be distributed after same
having been reviewed and considered at the board meeting and
shareholders meeting of the Target Company.

Profit distribution

Profits from the Excluded Properties Project will be distributed
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Target Company in such manner as provided
in the articles of association of the Target Company, i.e. the
profit from the Excluded Properties Project will be distributed to
the Purchaser, as the registered shareholder, on pro rata basis
as per shareholding. The Purchaser will then pay the profit it
received to the Vendor. Or alternatively, the Purchaser may
choose to designate the Vendor as the receiving party of such
profit distribution.
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(7)  The latest development of the Excluded Properties
As of the date of this report, the status of the Sungang Phase |
Project and Excluded Properties were the same as that at the time of
the Acquisition.

2. 0On 3 August 2020, Shenzhen Nongke Holdings Company Limited (‘Nongke
Holdings”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Shenzhen
Shumyip Jinsui Bio Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shumyip Jinsui”) entered into an
equity transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”) pursuant to
which Nongke Holdings has conditionally agreed to sell and Shumyip Jinsui
has conditionally agreed to acquire 16% equity interest of Shenzhen Space
Technology Co., Ltd. (‘Shenzhen Space Technology”) for a consideration
of RMB42.87 million (the ‘Disposal’). The consideration will be paid by
Shumyip Jinsui in cash within 7 days from the completion of the Disposal.
The Disposal enables Nongke Holdings to streamline its business operations
and to realize its investment in Shenzhen Space Technology at a profit,
where the gain before tax from the Disposal is expected to be approximately
RMB2.5 million. As Shumyip Jinsui is a subsidiary of Shum Yip Group
Limited, the ultimate holding company of the Company, it is therefore a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Disposal constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of
the Disposal were set out in announcement of the Company dated 3 August
2020.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of its listed securities during the year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, throughout the year and up to the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
Shares are held by the public.

Continuing Disclosure Requirements Under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

Banking facilities with covenants in relation to specific performance of the
controlling shareholder:

By an agreement (“1st Facility Agreement’) dated 29 May 2015 entered into
between the Company as borrower and a bank, up to a principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 term loan facility (“1st Facility”") was provided to the Company.
The 1st Facility shall be fully repaid by the Company in three instalments with
the last repayment date falling 60 months from the date of the 1st Facility
Agreement.
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By an agreement (‘2nd Facility Agreement”) dated 9 August 2017 entered into
between the Company as borrower and a bank, up to a principal amount of
HK$500,000,000 transferable term loan facility (‘2nd Facility”) was provided to
the Company. The term of the 2nd Facility is 48 months commencing from the
date of the 2nd Facility Agreement.

On 16 August 2017, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (*3rd
Facility Agreement”) relating to a transferable term loan facility up to a principal
amount of HK$600,000,000 (or its equivalent in United States dollars) (‘3rd
Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The Company shall repay in full to the
lender each borrowing of a portion of the 3rd Facility on the date falling 48
months from the date such borrowing is made and all other sums (if any) then
owing under the 3rd Facility Agreement on the date falling 54 months from 21
August 2017.

On 18 August 2017, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“4th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to US$65,000,000 (or
its equivalent in Hong Kong dollars) (“4th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender.
The 4th Facility shall be fully repaid by the Company in three installments with
the last repayment date falling 36 months from the acceptance date of the 4th
Facility Agreement.

On 18 December 2017, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (‘5th Facility Agreement”) relating to a transferable term loan facility of
up to HK$400,000,000 (‘5th Facility”) with a bank as lender. The term of the 5th
Facility is 48 months commencing from the date of the 5th Facility Agreement.

On 26 February 2018, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (‘6th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$500,000,000 (‘6th
Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The last repayment date of the 6th Facility
is the day falling 3 years from the acceptance date of the 6th Facility Agreement.

On 11 April 2018, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (‘7th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$1,500,000,000
(‘7th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 7th Facility is 4 years
from the date the first drawdown under the 7th Facility is made.
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On 26 June 2018, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(“8th Facility Agreement”) relating to a transferrable term loan facility of up to a
principal amount of HK$10,000,000,000 (‘8th Facility”) offered by certain banks
as lenders. The Company shall repay the borrowings under the 8th Facility by five
installments with all outstanding amounts under the 8th Facility fully repaid on
the date falling 60 months from the date of the 8th Facility Agreement.

On 14 September 2018, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“9th Facility Agreement”) relating to an uncommitted term loan facility of up to
US$185,000,000 (or its equivalent in Hong Kong dollars) (‘9th Facility”) offered
by a bank as lender. The last repayment date of the 9th Facility is the day falling
4 years from the acceptance date of the 9th Facility Agreement.

On 26 June 2019, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“10th Facility Agreement”) relating to a revolving loan facility of up to
RMB1,000,000,000 (“10th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The Facility is
subject to annual review by the lender.

On 14 September 2020, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“11th Facility Agreement”) relating to an uncommitted term loan facility of up to
US$185,000,000 (or its equivalent in Hong Kong dollars) (“11th Facility”) offered
by a bank as lender. The last repayment date of the borrowing under the 11th
Facility is 48 months from the date of the first drawdown under the 11th Facility
Agreement.

On 17 September 2020, the Company as borrower accepted the facility
letter (‘12th Facility Agreement’, together with the 1st Facility Agreement,
2nd Facility Agreement, 3rd Facility Agreement, 4th Facility Agreement, 5th
Facility Agreement, 6th Facility Agreement, 7th Facility Agreement, 8th Facility
Agreement, 9th Facility Agreement, 10th Facility Agreement, and 11th Facility
Agreement collectively referred to as the “Facility Agreements’) relating to a
term loan facility of up to HK$800,000,000 (“12th Facility”) offered by a bank
as lender. The term of the 12th Facility is 3 years from the date of the first
drawdown under the 12th Facility Agreement.

Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited ceases to own beneficially at least 35% of the issued share
capital of the Company, ceases to be the single largest shareholder of the
Company, ceases to have management control of the Company, or ceases
to remain beneficially owned as to at least 51% by the Shenzhen Municipal
People’s Government of the People’s Republic of China and at any time after the
happening of an event of default, all amounts due under the facilities may be
declared to be immediately due and payable.

Shenzhen Investment Limited 342275 R A 7]
Annual Report &% 2020

EREHRE

R2018F6A260 » A0E (FAEZRA) B
ETRT (EARRA) B — 2554288
10,000,000,0008 T2 AT ETHBEFHE ([EN
ERE )AL ERERE ([E\DhBERRE]) -
ARAEADEHEEENEREBETI2EN - ENE
MEBATNZMAEAEESEERNE N \DBEHZ B
B Em6OEAE ARAUEE -

R2018F9F 148 - AAR (fEAERA) ElHiR
7 (EBHFEA) B —£55¢545185,000,000%
T (SBEREIAET) CHEAATHETRE ([ 8
NERE]) 2EF R (TENORERZE]) - FN
SRENGRENBHASNNRE HEEHA IR
HEmaFEzBEE -

B2019F6A268 © A0F (EABEXA) &M
BT (EARBA) B — 2528 AARE
1,000,000,000 L2 EREHRBE ([F+ERE])
ZEFH ([E+-nmERZE]) - ZERETHXK
ANGERE -

R2020F9A 148 - KRR (fEAERA) BREE
miR1T (EABEA) 1R &=7%185,000,000% T
(REBLEE) ([E+-28E])) OFEAHETHE
FREZEFRG ([B+—haiHhE]) - £+
SHEEMEFNRRERBRAZT—HREHE
ETERERA SR 48EA -

R2020F9R17H - ARE (fEAEBRA) EmiE
17 (EBHFA) B —£&5 2% A800,000,000
AT THEFRE ([B+-2m%]) 2EREH
(IBT-hBERR]  HE—OBERR - £=H
BEWRE  F-OBERS  FEMBERE  Fh
NERERE - FA0DBERE  FtHBERE 5
NABEHE  BARREDRS FHHBERERK
Ft—OBERZHEREA[ZERERS]) - B+=
ERABRAEET - NBEABZEETHNIENER
HET3E o

REZSRERS - WAX (RE) ERARITEE
HREBARAED35% L EBHTRA - ITBRAELR
AZE—RARR - ATBRHARAZEE » %
TERPEARANBRIMARBRERREE S

51%2 182 - BIRHRIER R - RN EEEME
RpFEEREMER - ZEBERTMELRLE

WA S MBI LA TEE



Shenzhen Investment Limited A& G R A
Annual Report 3k 2020

EREHRG

As at 31 December 2020, all advances made under the 1st Facility Agreement,
4th Facility Agreement and 9th Facility Agreement had been fully repaid.

Permitted Indemnity

The articles of association of the Company provides that each Director, Secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Ordinance) which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. In
addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors and officers.

Audit Committee

The Group’s results for the year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Information on the work of Audit Committee and its composition are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 75 to 102.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by KPMG (Certified Public Accountants
and Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance), who will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Board has resolved to recommend the appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants, as the auditor of the
Company following the retirement of KPMG and such appointment is subject to
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By Order of the Board

LU Hua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance.
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) strongly believes that good
corporate governance is essential for effective management, a healthy corporate
culture, successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The
Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (‘CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(‘Listing Rules”) throughout the year 2020.

Looking ahead, we will keep our corporate governance practices under continual
review to ensure their consistent application and to improve our practices having
regard to the latest developments including any new amendment to the CG Code.
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Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company, supervising and evaluating
business and financial performance of the Company, determining appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company's circumstances and
ensuring operational efficiency and effectiveness by establishing a comprehensive
corporate governance framework with appropriate risk control measures and
aiming to enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated certain functions to respective committees, including
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, the
details of the responsibilities, membership and activities during the year of
each of them are set out in the section headed ‘Board Committees” below.
These Board committees assist the Board to discharge its duties while the
responsibilities of the day-to-day operations and business management are
delegated to the executive directors and senior management. Matters specifically
reserved to the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant changes in corporate structure, mergers and acquisitions, major
investments, material acquisition and disposal of assets, selection of directors,
changes to remuneration policy for directors and senior management, terms of
reference of board committees, as well as major corporate policies.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the conduct of the
business and development of the Company, including reports on significant
matters. Besides, all Board members are provided with monthly management
updates which contain periodic financials with summaries of key events, outlook
and business related matters of the Group. Should independent professional
advice be considered necessary by the directors, such kind of services would be
made available to the directors upon request.

The Company has arranged Directors & Officers Liability and Company
Reimbursement Insurance for its directors and officers in respect of legal
proceedings and other claims against them arising from their office and execution
of their powers, duties and responsibilities.
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Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors. Our independent non-executive directors constitute not
less than one-third of the Board.

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung, our independent
non-executive directors, have served the Board for more than nine years. The
Board considers that they have continued to exercise independent judgment
on the matters of the Group and there is no evidence that length of tenure is
having an adverse impact on their independence. The Board therefore considers
that Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung remain independent,
notwithstanding the length of their tenure.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director a
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the criterion set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

All directors have a specific term of appointment which is not more than three
years. Each director has entered into an appointment letter with the Company and
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. One third of the
directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
one-third) shall retire from office at each annual general meeting and eligible for
re-election by shareholders. Also, any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall retire at the next general meeting of the Company and be eligible for
re-election by shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed for the re-election
of each director.

The Board members do not have any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Brief biographical particulars of the
directors are set out from pages 40 to 47 of this report.
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Chairman of the Board and President

The roles of Chairman of the Board are performed by Dr. LU Hua, whereas the
roles of President are performed by Mr. HUANG Wei. The Chairman of the Board
is responsible for leading the Board to formulate good corporate governance
practices and procedures together with the directors, determine the strategic
directions, business plans and investment proposals of the Company, assess
its performance and supervise the business affairs of the management in
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board, whereas the President is responsible for
overseeing overall operations of the Company and ensuring the implementation of
plans efficiently.

Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating performance of
the Company and to discuss future strategy. Four regular Board meetings and
six special Board meetings were held in 2020. At the Board meetings, the Board
reviewed significant matters including the Company’s business development,
proposals for final and interim dividends, annual report and half-year report and
connected transactions. At least fourteen days’ notice of a regular Board meeting
was given to all directors who were provided with an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and the accompanying board
papers were sent to Directors at least three days before the intended date of a
Board meeting. Draft and final versions of minutes of each Board meeting were
circulated to directors for their comment and record respectively. In addition to
the Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board also held a separate meeting with
the independent non-executive directors without the present of other directors on
an annual basis.

Shenzhen Investment Limited 342275 R A 7]
Annual Report &% 2020

1 36 A 96 ol

L AR
EFCIRZACHAERLEE  MERzAGH
HELAET EZXEIFABRRETCHLE
SAAMNERFNHEEEREHRIERF - REARF
MREE T8 - RBEENRENR - FHEERAME
BEEEENTEEBURRESSNANIE - MAK
RIBEEBARAMEREE - REREMLRTA

-

ERAER
EXQTHRTERUERARANMBEREERR
URERAKERE « 2020 F 8T THAERESES
SERNRFHEZE SR - REZQERL BF
SRANEAFE  BEARANEBER - B2
MRPBES - FREFFERENBERS - BH
ESCQRMNBANZLRATORAZBESHL -
PRESHARERLRAN ZFRIAZET - &
BERESEERNMHARTESEEZRMEL=
AAERES - BEFCER L ERCRNIRER
BREIRGERRLES - IRHEERERSR - MERE
RANERCHZA - REFEERN  EFEIRNE
FHAMEZTEROBATEBUFATESERS
M| °



Shenzhen Investment Limited J&312 % B2 2 &)
Annual Report 3k 2020

R B

Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and ~ FHEE# - EFEH & & & SR i i 8k
General Meeting
The attendance record of each director at Board meetings, Board committee 720205 @ KEFHFEETe e  EEEEee

meetings and general meeting in 2020 is set out below: FRBEAGHWESENMT
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
=g EREEE REZEE FMZzEES RRBE
a5 =f =f =E g
No. of meetings held BITHEHAE 10 3 3 4 1
Executive Directors BiTES
LU Hua (Chairman) BE (FE) 9/10 N/A 2/3 N/A v
HUANG Wei (President) wE (18#) 9/10 N/A N/A N/A v
CAI Xun (Note 1) 2F (fI3x1) 3/10 N/A N/A N/A
DONG Fang (Note 2) g7 (M52) 4/10 N/A N/A N/A -
LIU Shichao 2|t 10/10 N/A N/A N/A v
MOU Yong (Note 3) 25 (f133) 1/10 N/A N/A N/A -
LIU Chong (Note 4) 2= (M5E4) 4/10 N/A N/A N/A v/
Non-executive Director FHTES
WU Jiesi (Note 5) BED (ME5) 7/10 N/A N/A N/A v/
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
WU Wai Chung, Michael RiEH 10/10 3/3 N/A 4/4 v/
LI Wai Keung FE®R 10/10 3/3 3/3 4/4 v
WONG Yau Kar, David BERE 10/10 3/3 3/3 4/4 v
Notes: PftsT -
1. Ms. CAl was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 August 2020. 1. gﬁi%ZOZOEBH TREZERRNDTIMITE
2. Mr. DONG Fang was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 23 July 2020. 2. §§%$%2020¢7 RA23BRZEARERRRNIT

3. Mr. MOU Yong has retired as an executive director of the Company with effect from 26 3. EBEER2020F5826 AREADRGRITES »
May 2020.

4. Mr. LIU Chong has resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from 23 4, BISRTER2020F7 A3 BB I A RGEITES ©
July 2020.

5. Dr. WU Jiesi has resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from 14 5 HEEBBIN2020FIA4BEBTARANMITE
September 2020. E



Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”) as the code of conduct of the Company for dealing in securities of the
Company by the directors. Having made specific enquiry to all the directors, all
directors confirmed that throughout the year, they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development Programme
Each newly appointed director will be provided with necessary induction
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an on-going process, all directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company also updates directors on any latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

A summary of the training records reported by the directors for year 2020 is set
out as follow:
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FrRE Iy |

LU Hua aE
HUANG Wei "
CAl Xun ==
DONG Fang i)
LIU Shichao 2t
MOU Yong 25
LIU Chong =
WU Jiesi HER
WU Wai Chung, Michael RE5
LI Wai Keung EIEE

Hot

WONG Yau Kar, David BR

12,3
12,3
12,3
1,23
12,3
12,3
12,3
12,3

1,2
1,2
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1. Attending briefing/training seminars/conferences relevant to the industry, business and
their duties.

2. Reading industrial and regulatory updates/monthly management reports etc.

The Board is regularly kept up-to-date on key events, the performance, position and
outlook of the Group through the monthly management reports.

3. Site visit

Board Committee

The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge its functions. The
respective roles, responsibilities and activities of each Board committee are set
out below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors, who
are all equipped with commercial and financial skills and experiences required for
understanding of accounting information. It is chaired by Mr. LI Wai Keung and
other members are Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David.

Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Audit Committee include, but
not limited to, making recommendations on the appointment of external auditor
and monitoring the effectiveness of external audit, supervision of internal audit
and oversight of the integrity of financial information and the financial reporting
system, overseeing internal audit, risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and ensuring such functions are adequately resourced. The
full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (‘Stock
Exchange”).
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The Audit Committee performed the following in 2020:

Financial reporting/external audit and internal review

Reviewed the 2019 annual financial statements, annual report and results
announcement and recommended the same to the Board for approval,

Reviewed the 2020 half-year financial statements, half-year report and
results announcement and recommended the same to the Board for
approval;

Reviewed report submitted by external auditor on their statutory audit of the
2019 annual financial statements and their independent review of the 2020
half-year financial statements;

Reviewed and discussed the observations and recommendations on the
financial reporting and control matters set out in the 2019 management
letter submitted by external auditor;

Reviewed the representation letter issued by management to external
auditor in connection with their audit of the 2019 financial statements;

Reviewed with the external auditor their plan for statutory audit of the 2020
annual financial statements, including the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations.

Risk management, internal control and internal audit

At the meeting held on 26 March 2021,

Reviewed the evaluation report on internal control and risk management
systems for year 2019 issued by the risk management department;

Reviewed with the risk management department on the risk management
and internal control systems and their effectiveness, the overall risk
management, internal control and internal audit work progress and findings,
and the adequacy of resources and staffing for such functions.

the Audit Committee reviewed and

approved the 2020 annual financial statements, annual report and results
announcement and considered reports from the external auditor, and reviewed
the evaluation report on internal control and risk management systems for
year 2020 issued by the risk management department. The Audit Committee
also considered the proposed change of auditor of the Company and made
recommendation to the Board on the appointment of new auditor.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in
the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David and other members are Mr.
LI Wai Keung and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael.

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior management according to its
terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration matters of non-executive
directors, the setting up of adequate and transparent procedures for setting such
remuneration. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

No director or any of his/her associates is allowed to determine their own
remuneration. In making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
directors and senior management, the Remuneration Committee shall consider
factors such as industry remuneration level, time commitment and responsibilities
of directors, employment conditions of other positions within the Group and
whether their remuneration are performance-related.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the director fees
of non-executive directors and the remuneration of executive directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee also reviewed the overall
remuneration structure of the Group and considered the forms and adequacy of
the various performance-based incentive arrangements.

The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out below:

Remuneration Bands

HMEZEE
FHZEEH=-2BUFNTESAN - HHZES
HEREBLEEIR  HOREATERALERR
fBE%L -

ARAIERMEFHZE S ARREABEREL(E
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AIEH - MR e BEEE2 XA RAR R B
R PR AER -

EMESHIHEMBEALIEETETAATNH
M- EREEERIEENSRERABOFHE -
FMEEEREZRAEXHMKT - ESHMNHMNER
MBE  SEREABUNZEREFIETRERRS
REMEEHMH -

R FHRESCERFRTEINESHES - 4
TEERRREEEZHM - FMRE ST TA
SENEBFMRE YRR TSEURRSEEN
BEZHOE AR -

BE2020F12A31HIEFE - ZHENEEI DS
HEBANE 2 FHESIWT -

Number of Individuals

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 2,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,00187C% 2,500,000/ 7T 3
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7% 3,000,000/ T 1

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the financial statements.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is
set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members of which two of them are
independent non-executive directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David
and other members are Dr. LU Hua and Mr. LI Wai Keung.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive directors, identifying and evaluating individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members as required and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and re-appointment of directors. The full terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

During the year 2020, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and opined that it has the skills, experience
and diversity of perspective appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee also reviewed and recommended to the
Board in relation to the re-election of the retiring directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 26 May 2020, the re-designation of Mr. LIU
Shichao as executive director and the appointment of Mr. DONG Fang and Ms.
CAl Xun as executive directors having due regard to the Board diversity policy and
nomination policy. The Nomination Committee also assessed the independency of
the independent non-executive directors.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set
out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

The Board recognizes the benefits of a diverse Board with members possessing
a balance of skills, experience and expertise which complement to the business
success of the Group, and seeks increasing diversity at Board level to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development. The Board diversity policy sets out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board, namely through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis having due regard
to the overall effective functioning of the Board as a whole. And, the Nomination
Committee will review at least annually the appropriateness of the structure, size
and composition of the Board to ensure its effectiveness.
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The Board nomination policy sets out the principles which guide the Nomination
Committee to identify and evaluate a candidate for nomination to (i) the Board for
appointment or (i) the shareholders of the Company for election, as a director
of the Company with a view to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. The Nomination Committee shall propose a candidate for
nomination or a director for re-election based on merit and other considerations
including the Board diversity policy, the expected contribution the candidate
would add to Board and whether the candidate is able to commit and devote
sufficient time and attention to the Company's affairs etc. The Nomination
Committee may take such measures that it considers appropriate in connection
with its identification and evaluation of a candidate and make recommendation to
the Board for the Board’s consideration.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for, and has performed during the year, the following
corporate governance duties:

e 1o develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and directors;

e 1o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Responsibility

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems. Management is responsible for
designing and implementing an internal control system to manage the risks to the
Company to the maximum extent, in order to identify and manage these risks so
as to understand, reduce, mitigate, divert or avoid these risks. The Board hereby
explains that the systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk
of failure to meet business objectives, and only to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Structure

Board Oversight

Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board

Ensure that an appropriate and effective risk management framework is
established and maintained by the Company.

Oversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management framework.

Oversee management in their risk mitigation efforts.

Risk Management, Reporting and Communication

Risk Management Department

Being the specialized risk management department, is responsible for
the establishment and operation of the comprehensive risk management
system of the Company; guide and supervise the overall risk
management of other departments and the respective enterprises which
they belong to.

Risk management: Regularly conduct systematic risk evaluation and
carry out risk audit to major businesses in advance.

Internal control: inspect, evaluate and optimize the implementation of
internal control system, to avoid execution risks.

Internal audit: conduct multi-level audit, implement auditing issues
rectification work, prevent operational risks.

Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
framework has been conducted at least annually and provide such
confirmation to the Board through the Audit Committee.
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Performing Daily Risk and Monitoring Responsibility

Functional Departments, Risk Management Departments of Subsidiaries and
Individuals

AERAREEATRAREERFRAME

1R ©

° Responsible for carrying out risk management procedures and internal °
control measures in their daily operations.

EHEGRBAARRAE B2 ERBESR
BAnERFAREREESNLEEEETESR -

o Regularly review the risk profile and report to the risk management o
department and management on the risks within their respective
operating and functional areas.

R i B
AEEATETHL]I T AES THLm T HEE
Rlgizstief - EROABEHMFIREBHHATES
HERZERR - MARBEBLORRRET - 21
REEHIE - RBEE - XHRE - B0k - RA
RE - NEEERAREES - UER

Risk Management Process

The Company adopts an integrated “bottom-up” and “top-down” risk review
process, requiring the heads of functional departments and business units of the
Company to participate in identifying operational risks and incorporate them into
various business and decision-making processes, including strategy formulation,
business development, business planning, capital allocation, investment
decisions, internal controls and daily operations, to enable

REBAARNFAENERER - WETE
KR

(1) comprehensive identification and prioritization of all significant risks within 1)
the Company;

(2)  reporting of significant risks to the appropriate management level; 2 BEXER-HREEENERELRA
(3) the management to effectively communicate about the risks. () BRERERERMETEWER -

Bottom-up Process BT mLENER

e Business units and functional departments of the Company conduct risk o

identification and evaluation of specific businesses with the scope of
responsibility, propose and implement risk management solutions and
report annually to the risk management department of the Company the
significant risks identified during the risk management process.

All departments of the Company are responsible for sorting out their
own business processes, collecting and collating internal and external
risk initial information within their scope of functions extensively and
continuously. The risk management department regularly screens,
refines, compares, classifies and combines the initial risk information
collected by each department and draws the risk coordinates map
based on the risk evaluation results of each department to initially
determine the management priorities of various risks of the Company,
formulate risk management strategies, and propose and implement risk
management solutions.

EHBAMARBEBFIERARERNNA
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The Risk Management Department of the Company, through collection,
screening and sequencing and interview procedures, compiles the
annual comprehensive risk management work report and the “Evaluation
Report on Internal Control and Risk Management Systems”.

The Risk Management Department of the Company reports their works
to the Audit Committee annually and submits “Evaluation Report on
Internal Control and Risk Management Systems” to the Audit Committee
and the Board for their review.

Top-down Process

The Audit Committee reviews the new risks or significant strategic risks
that may have a significant long-term impact on the Company, and
reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company on an annual basis.

In addition to the risk evaluation function, the management from the
functional departments is responsible for identifying and evaluating the
financial and other risks in different areas of the Company from the
aspects such as investment auditing and strategic planning, financial
management and legal compliance respectively, and forms a normalized
mechanism for risk evaluation to regularly conduct systematic significant
risk evaluation, so as to achieve dynamic management of significant
risks.

Formed a normalized mechanism for risk evaluation to regularly carry
out systematic significant risk evaluation, identify, evaluate and analyze
all kinds of existing or potential risks in current business development,
and timely track and monitor the moving trend of significant risks,
control the progress and effectiveness, so as to achieve dynamic
management of significant risks.

For major businesses such as land bidding, equity acquisition, joint
venture cooperation etc., a comprehensive risk assessment and audit
must be conducted in advance to achieve the operating mechanism
where audit opinions without prior risk evaluation may not be submitted
for approval so that significant business risks are effectively controlled.

Annual review is performed to strengthen the institutionalization and
standardization of internal audit work.
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Internal Control

The internal control system of the Company is based on the principles under the
COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission).
The risk management department of the Company conducts an annual
assessment and review of the internal control and risk management systems.
The review covers five aspects including control environment, risk assessment,

control

activities, monitoring measures and information and communication, in

order to assess whether the internal control and risk management systems of the
Company is sound, appropriate, effective and sufficient. The risk management
department annually prepares an evaluation report on internal control and risk
management systems of the Company.

Principal Policies and Measures of Internal Control

Control Environment

The Company has established a code of discipline of corporate
governance policy, human resource management policy, regulatory
business operation and governance, as well as regular review and
refresher training on key ethical practices.

The Company has compiled a compilation of human resource system,
and through implementation of this system, the human resource
concepts, policies, systems are unified and standardized, and the
policies are more transparent. Each employee is subject to an
accountability system for internal control responsibilities.

The Company has, based on the need of management, formulated a
number of management measures, including the Emergency Response
Plan for Safe Production, Management Measure for Property Right and
Management Measure for Asset Valuation, the Management Measure
for Fund Investment and the Management Measures on Engagement
of Intermediates, to strengthen its business management and further
facilitate its standardized development.
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Risk Assessment
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The risk management functional department identifies and assesses the
systemic risks faced by the Company through regular risk management;
controls the risk position of subsidiaries as well as identifies and
assesses changes that may have a significant impact on the internal
control system through periodic risk management reporting systems of
the subsidiaries and risk assessment and monitoring of major projects
and businesses.

The relevant functional departments of the Company are responsible for
identifying and assessing financial and other risks in different areas of
the Company from the aspects such as strategy planning and investment
auditing, financial management and legal compliance.

Compile a comprehensive risk management report and submit it to the
Audit Committee for consideration and timely take corresponding risk
management measures.

Control Activities

Ensure that policies are implemented effectively through the
development of policies with well-defined policies and procedures.

Key control systems and processes, including budget and cost control,
submitting management report, corporate policies and corporate daily
activities, for approval, review and division of duties through financial
reporting systems and processes. The internal control system of the
Company clearly defines the responsibilities and powers of each
unit. The Company has established policies and procedures for major
business functions and business units.

The Company established the “Administrative Rules on Supervision and
Management of Audit Rectification”, which included the completion
of audit rectification into annual appraisal indicators for related
subsidiaries, and complete a closed-loop management accountability
mechanism for auditing rectification supervision.

Through the “Request System on Key Issues’, the Company has
established strict decision-making mechanism for major businesses
and issues, such as major investments, appointments and removal of
key personnel and large-scale capital operations to ensure that the
Company’s major decision-making arrangements are in place.

Rl E BB RAE HRRRRNE -
BAFHERARFERNETIERR BB
Pt 8 4B 3% T 3 B B R e 5 | R AN B K OR
B~ EBRRERFGEEEE - HHBLER
RAVLETTIES - BB AR NS
PERELBATENEE -

AR ERABEBMAD HCHRERERRER
% MBEE ARAREITEAEZMR
FHE R BT RIEEHE S R EMRR o

EemArERREERELIRIEREZE
FF - YNERIVARMRRE R -

ETE)

BBHI BRARNBRE RS - iR
BRBANERIT ©

TEERZRRRE - BRBEERMAE
T EAMBEBRAGLARRZEER
E - ARABKRRARBBESETHEL -
BRRBEE, - ARANANEERRBE
REREMMBERES - HEBXBD
REBEFISIET T RR R -

ARABIE T BB RARRNEEEEA
BI) - BESABRERBERIIALFELR
MERERER  TEBTEREEMRE
BERE#H -

ARBBCEATEFENHE)  HEAK
B EEALHER  AEEESEFFEX
ABMSRZYBBARRES - BERAR
BERRRHEBZEIN -




Shenzhen Investment Limited J&312 % B2 2 &)
Annual Report 3k 2020

1

EERmE

Monitoring Measures

Continuously check compliance and conduct risk management and
internal control reviews.

The secretariat of the Board and relevant functional departments
are responsible for the overall assessment and monitoring for the
established procedures to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and
to monitor the compliance with applicable laws and other key provisions.

The internal audit is performed by the Risk Management Department
of the Company, which is responsible for independent auditing of risk
management and internal control.

The Company developed the model clauses of contracts through the
‘Management Measures for Contracts” to finalize an integrated system
combining corporate decisions and legal risk prevention and control and
highlight the function of legal risk control.

The Company strictly follows the related published systems, such as the
‘Management Measures for Real Estate Investment” and the ‘Request
System on Key Issues”, for investments in real estate projects, as well
as implements the approval procedures required for project investments.

The Company implements business integrity risk prevention and
control over key areas, key processes and key posts. It oversees the
entire purchase bidding procedures for significant projects of the
Company and its subsidiaries and regulates the standard operation of
evaluation process to promote the company wide application of the
Sunshine Procurement Platform and realize sunshine transaction, online
information transparency and big data monitoring.
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Information and Communication
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o Implement, maintain and continuously develop business and information
management systems to support the business and operations of the
Company, including financial, information disclosure and collaborative
oversight.

o Disseminate corporate information in a timely manner through the
intranet of the Company, collaborative office systems and e-mail system
of the Company.

° Establish and implement the Company's website and shareholder
communication policies to ensure that shareholders receive
comprehensive, clear, transparent and timely information about the
Company.

o Establish a unified stock property management information system to
make the stock asset management more transparent and instant.

o The Company constructed the cloud platform to ensure data security
and realize the dynamic extension of the computing platform in line with
business demand.
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Internal Auditing

The Risk Management Department is responsible for the internal audit of the
Company. It reviews the risks involved in daily operations of the Company
and its subsidiaries by using the audit plans and procedures set out in the
“Comprehensive Risk Management Manual” and the “Interim Measures for
Internal Audit Management” it established, and conducts regular post-evaluation
reviews on internal audit items to ensure the effectiveness of risk management
framework.

Each year, the Risk Management Department determines the internal audit work
priorities and formulates annual internal audit plans according to the Company’s
strategic deployment, business management needs and annual work schedule.
The annual internal audit plan shall include the following basic elements:

1) Annual work objectives of internal audit;

2)  The specific audit items to be implemented and their sequence;

3)  The audit resources allocated to each audit item.
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According to the Interim Measures for Internal Audit Management, matters that ~ RIR( NEEAF TIEBBRETHE) - WEETETH

must be audited shall include the following: EREBETIIEE
Type of Audit Content
Firn AE
Economic Responsibility Audit During the three-year tenure of the corporate management team, at least one internal
EREET economic responsibility audit shall be performed

CRLEMFIFERDE - FREETEMREALBEEET

The departure of a leader of enterprise requires an economic responsibility audit
PEREBART - FEETLBEREES

[tem Audit For significant investment projects, at least one audit in every three years is required
A& EARAER - SIFARBETEDIREH

For on-going operating projects, at least one audit in every three years is required
FEKEEE - G3FAREETEMIREF

Post-Evaluation Audit After an investment project is completed, a comprehensive post-evaluation audit of its
BT EER operation and economic benefits is required

RERA2BEAK - FEHEEENEEREFET2ENKTER

In addition to the above, the Risk Management Department will also conduct % Fiish - EREBUFTeRCEEEEEEN -
specialized internal audit on the operational priorities of each functional ~ ATIEEIEEE - LRARGEEV LA DA
departments and subsidiaries according to the actual operational and  FEEGEIELR - FSBAEF  MBLELESH#
management situation, the annual work priorities of the Company, as well as the ~ {TEERNIETIE - HhEARERSHATMBES
risks faced by the Company as assessed at the beginning of each year. The risk & ~ EROE T FEETALHFHEE -
management department conducts internal audit supervision on the following

matters of the wholly-owned and controlled enterprises of the Company:

e The implementation of the relevant financial laws, regulations, rules and o  BX - BFM AT E DTGB EE2 - %
regimes by the state, government and superior authorities; B BEMNENERRTER ;

e The implementation of the operating guidelines, policies, rules and o FB2% - ERAOEHTHELHEH - BE -
regulations formulated by the wholly-owned and controlled enterprises of BEHENEFNTER
the Company;



e  The soundness, rationality, effectiveness and implementation of internal
control systems and regimes;

° Financial revenue and expenditure, asset quality, operating performance
and other related economic activities;

° The establishment and implementation of various operating plans, planned
budgets;

° Important economic contracts, investment projects, mortgages loans or
provision of guarantees, infrastructure projects, etc.

Review of Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control and
Main Procedures to Address the Lack of Internal Control

Based on the above risk management and internal control systems, the Risk
Management Department of the Company conducts regular review and evaluation
in accordance with three aspects of risk management, internal control and
internal audit, to identify the deficiencies of internal control and improve the
system process.

The Risk Management Department establishes a work plan for the coming year in
the later part of every year, which sets out the objectives and scope of the audit.

Internal audits include the testing of the Company’s financial, operational
and compliance controls. The Risk Management Department engages an
external accounting firm to issue an annual internal audit report, and the Risk
Management Department will, towards the deficiencies in monitoring raised by
the accounting firm, make rectification on the details of the audit disclosed by
the internal audit report and on the audit results of the department concerned.

In response to the identified internal control deficiencies, the Risk Management
Department will promptly communicate the issues with the relevant functional
departments or subsidiaries, put forward measures of rectification and establish
corresponding policies after discussion with the management, and issue a
rectification notice to the functional departments or subsidiaries to urge them to
complete the rectification within the prescribed time.

The implementation of the rectification of various enterprises in the year
was good, and passed the second round of internal control conducted by the
accounting firm.

In the internal control work carried out during the year, the Risk Management
Department did not find any significant deficiencies. According to the relevant
audit results and management responses, the management believes that the
existing internal control system is still valid as a whole.
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Review on Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control in
2020

The Risk Management Department has predicted and analyzed the possible
risks the Company’s operations and management may face in 2020. After
evaluation, the 3 major risks faced by the Company in 2020 were market
changes and market competition risk, resource risk (relative limited ways for
resource acquisition and weak sustainability for some resources) and strategy
implementation risk (strategy implementation progress is slower than expected).
In addition, there were also risks at macro-economic level, which mainly include
rent cut and surrender arising from the outbreak of COVID-19, the waiver of
highway tolls according to the epidemic prevention and control policies, prolonged
construction period, the rise in the price of materials, delayed delivery of the
property, the fact that the hotels was hard hit with decrease in turnover seen in
the short run and other operational risks, etc. The Risk Management Department
has put forward operational and responsive measures and strategies for these
risks. At the same time, during the year, it strengthened pre-examination of
major business risks, conducted special risk audits on key projects, and regularly
evaluated financial risk early warning indicators such as solvency, asset operation
capability, profitability and capital operation capability to monitor changes in
corporate financial risks.

During the year, the Risk Management Department has conducted internal audit
and examination on rectification of audit opinions for its subsidiaries:

° Conducted special audit covering the implementation of the spirit
of China’s eight-point frugality code. The Company conducted
a special audit covering the implementation of the spirit of China’s
eight-point frugality code, with the audit on three of its subsidiaries
intensified. The focus of the audit fell on eight aspects involving the
establishment and implementation of various systems, namely training
fees, travelling expenses, entertainment expenses, conference expenses,
trade union funds, funds of the board, management of official vehicles
and compensation for the responsible persons of enterprise, and based
on which the “Special Audit Report 2019 on the Implementation of the
Spirit of the Eight-point Frugality Code” was produced. There was no
significant inadequacy identified in the audit. For those problems and risks
identified, the Company has put forward corresponding suggestions and
issued rectification notices to relevant enterprises without delay for timely
rectification.
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Conducted special audit on the implementation of rent-waiving policy
for properties. In March 2020, the Company conducted a special audit
on its implementation of rent-waiving policy for properties and produced
the “Special Report of the Company on the Implementation of Rent-waiving
Policy for Properties”. On this basis, the Company conducted a special audit
on the management of the properties of its subsidiaries subleased by sub-
land lords from July to October. In full knowledge of the general condition
and sublease management of the leased properties of its subsidiaries, the
Company also conducted an audit on key processes such as the promotion
and implementation of the waiver policy and the extent of waiver from
sub-landlords to actual lessees. Besides, we paid close attention to the
impact of the epidemic on annual rental income. There was no significant
inadequacy identified in the audit. For those problems and risks identified
during the process of audit, the Company has put forward suggestions for
improvement.

Conducted special audit on the control and use of capital. The
Company conducted a special audit on the control and use of capital during
the period from 2017 to 2019 over its directly managed enterprises as
scheduled. Based on the “three red lines”, namely the net gearing ratio, the
cash to short-term debt ratio and the debt-to-asset ratio after exclusion of
the advances, this audit focused on the completeness and effectiveness
of the internal control of capital as well as the benefits and efficiency
of capital utilization of its subsidiaries. Three subsidiaries selected on
a sample basis were subject to the audit. On-site audit on these three
subsidiaries and the audit report on each of them were completed by the
Risk Management Department as scheduled. In the audit, the Company
identified certain audit problems and risks involving the aspects of system
design, the implementation of system and detailed operation, and produced
the “Report on the Special Audit on the Control and Use of Capital”.

Conducted economic responsibility audit during the term of office.
According to its arrangement, during the year, the Company organized
an economic responsibility audit during the term of office of the legal
representatives of four companies, issued audit reports on economic
responsibility during the term of office, and provided suggestions for
improvement on operation and management problems. The audit works
focused on the business results, financial revenue and expenditure, asset
quality and related operating activities, major operational decisions during
the term of office, so as to objectively evaluate the performance of the
leaders during their term of office, and check the implementation of the
rectification of the problems identified in the audit.

Shenzhen Investment Limited 342275 R A 7]
Annual Report &% 2020

1 36 A 96 ol

HREZNEFHEEHRYTHERERE - 0
AIR202053 7 - HARHEMER S RN
TERRRETEEEGLE UK T (LAH
NARNERE BRI TERNTARE) - &
WEEF - RANRTA-10AHFBAE-_ER
BRHVEEEBARREREN - RO TH
EEMBLREESRAREANEEEET
EMER L HALBENEERE - —FR
HERABARRBERASERRONDETR
it UBRIRBEHFREEERENTE - Bt
BERREATRZE - HEATFEREERA
B RREBERE -

HRESELREABERBER - A81Es
ZFREHEECE2017TER2019FENESE
IREAERNERET o U =8B4&F] - F
BEX  ReREL - IRBUFENEES
BEERAREE  BUHIMBLCEESNNER
HEZENBRYE EeFRANEEENRE
e WRBHAMET=ZRBLE - ARERE
PR BTN THE-RTB O EMNBRSE T
EUREMBEEMNETRSE - BREHEAE
LERSEHER;ER - fENTER - £
BBEEENRRE IR TCELERRFERRE
MBERTWE) o

RREMSEREET - RRAFAZH - FR
HEBER THIZFTBLEENATRRALE
KEEEES  LATHEEEERTRE
THELERRBRLMWERS - BTEHH
FEHNEELERR - BBRX - BEEE
MEBEEERD  EAEZERRERNR B
$EEANTHIRRERERBFTE - Uit
B RERNBREERRETRE -



Shenzhen Investment Limited J&312 % B2 2 &)
Annual Report 3k 2020

(e SERTE 4

e  Conducted annual internal control audit. The Company engaged KPMG
to conduct an annual audit of its internal control in 2019, with a focus on 4
subsidiaries of the Company. KPMG issued the “2019 Internal Control Audit
Report” with its unqualified opinion. As shown in the report, the Company
has maintained effective internal control related to financial reporting in
accordance with “Basic Norms for Enterprise Internal Control” and the
relevant requirements in all material aspects during the reporting period.

During the year, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management Department
reviewed the risk management and internal control system of the Company for
the year 2020, covering financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as
the progress of overall risk management and internal control. The annual review
has also taken into account the adequacy of the resources, qualification and
experience of staff in accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
of the Company; and the adequacy of the training courses received by the staff
and related budgets.

The Audit Committee and the Board have also reviewed the “Evaluation Report
for Internal Control and Risk Management System for the Year 2020 issued by
the risk management department. The Board is of the view that the existing risk
management and internal control system is effective and sufficient as a whole.

Procedures For Handling Inside Information and Internal
Control Measures

The Company requires any department or individual to keep any information
which may constitute inside information in strict confidentiality and not to leak
or report the contents involving inside information without the prior approval of
the Board. The Board makes timely disclosure decision on the inside information
(if necessary), and disclosure of the inside information is in charge by the
Board Office. In this connection, executive management and other relevant
employees who are privy to unpublished inside information are reminded of their
responsibilities to comply with the provisions of the Model Code.

Whistleblowing

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy which provides employees with
reporting channels and guidance to raise concerns about possible improprieties
related to the Company, a copy of which is available on the Company’s website.
In 2020, the Board had not received any whistleblowing enquiry or complaint.
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Company Secretary

The Company has appointed a representative from an external secretarial
services provider as the company secretary of the Company, who has confirmed
his compliance with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Our primary corporate contact person is Ms. Edith Wong, our
General Counsel.

Constitutional Documents
There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company during
the year.

Director’s Responsibilities on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group that give a true and fair view of the Group’s affairs, its
results and cash flows in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and in compliance with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the Company is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report in this report.

Dividend Policy

It is the Company’s long term policy to provide stable ordinary dividends that are
linked to the underlying earnings performances of the business of the Group.
The Company aims to ensure that whilst allowing the shareholders to participate
in the Company’s earnings, adequate balance for future business expansion is
retained.

Generally, the Company pays dividends twice a year (annual interim dividend and
final dividend) regularly. The overall dividend plan including the amount and form
of any dividend is to be proposed/determined by the Board. The Board may also
declare/propose the payment of special dividends when there is special income
or circumstances and at any time as it deems appropriate.

In determining/recommending any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account:

e the actual and expected financial performance of Group;

e the cash-flow position, the expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans of the Group;
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e the general economic conditions, business cycle and other internal and
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group;

o the contractual restrictions imposed on the payment of dividends (if any);
and

e any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

Independent Auditor

The Group engages KPMG (Certified Public Accountants and Public Interest Entity
Auditor registered in accordance with the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance)
as our external independent auditor. During the year, the services provided by
KPMG and the fees for such services were as follows:

Audit fees:
Financial statements audit fees: HK$4,750,000 (2019: HK$4,530,000)

Other service fees:
Interim review: HK$1,300,000 (2019: HK$1,300,000)

Communication With Shareholders

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication channel setting out
the dialogues that the Company are in place to promote effective communication
with shareholders, with the aim of ensuring shareholders are provided with timely
information about the Company and encouraging them to engage actively in
communication with the Company and to exercise their rights as shareholders in
an informed manner.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group
to public in a timely manner. The Company maintains a corporate website
(www.shenzheninvestment.com) where important information about the
Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual and interim reports to
shareholders, announcements, business development and operations, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public’s access. The
Company's annual general meeting provides a useful platform for face-to-face
communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions are
proposed on each issue at the general meetings.
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Investors Relations

The Company recognizes its responsibility to update its business activities to
persons with legitimate interests and respond to their questions. We meet
with investors on a regular basis to update them on our business progress and
strategy. In addition, we endeavor to share both financial and non-financial
information that is relevant and material, for instance, we publish unaudited
contracted sales performance voluntarily on a monthly basis, and respond
promptly to enquiries arising from general public and individual shareholders.
And, in all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no inside information is
disclosed to selected parties.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “CO”), the
Listing Rules, and the articles of association of the Company as amended from
time to time, shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) may call general
meeting, put forward proposals at annual general meetings (‘AGM”) and direct
enquiries to the Board in accordance with the following procedures:

- Convening of General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the Company may request the directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections 566 to 568 of the
CO.

In accordance with Section 566 of the CO, the directors are required to
call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do so from
Shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state
the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and may
include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the Company and attention
to the Company Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered
office of the Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science
Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board)
or in electronic form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); and must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it. In accordance with Section 567 of the CO, the
directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they become
subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the CO and such meeting must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting.
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—  Putting Forward Proposals at AGM
To put forward a resolution at AGM, Shareholders are requested to follow the
requirements and procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the CO.

Section 615 of the CO provides that the Company must give notice of a resolution
if it has received requests to do so from (a) the Shareholders representing at
least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM of the Company to which the requests relate;
or (b) at least 50 Shareholders who have the rights to vote on the resolution at
the AGM to which the requests relate.

Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the Company
Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the
Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or in electronic
form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is
to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM to
which the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting. Section 616 of the CO provides that the Company that is required under
Section 615 of the CO to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at
the Company’s own expense to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the
AGM (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same
time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

The detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director can be found on the website of the Company headed “Investor Relations”
under the “Corporate Information” section.

Procedures for directing enquiries to the Company

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board in writing through the Board
Office at the below contact details:

Address:  8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre,
No. 9 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: ir@shumyip.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2723 8113
Fax: (852) 2723 2263

Share registration related matters

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration,
change of name or address, loss of share certificates or dividend warrants, the
Shareholders can contact the Share Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at the
below contact details:

Address:  Level 54 Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2861 1465
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Shenzhen Investment Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen Investment
Limited (‘the Company”) and its subsidiaries (‘the Group”) set out on pages 110
to 263, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(‘HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(‘HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘the
Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters (continued)

B at 3E (B0)

Valuation of investment properties
REMEME

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 127 to 128.
AN F 17 RE127 2128 EAIGEBIR °

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

The aggregate fair values of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$35,651 million,
representing 23% of the Group’s total assets as at that date.
R2020612A318 - EEEREMENDAERFER356.5118
BT HERERZBREERN23% °

The net change in fair values recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represented 8% of the Group’s profit
before taxation for the year ended 31 December 2020.
FARERERPNAAEZSFRNERER2020F128318
IEFERRBATFRE98% °

The Group’s investment properties, which are located in mainland
China, comprise shopping malls, office premises, residential
premises and car parking bays.
EEEURFEAENRENEBEEYES
EREES -

CRBFE - EED

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties were assessed
by the board of directors based on independent valuations prepared
by an external property valuer.
BEEEREAMEN A AEBESEREIIMEGEMERNE
N HEEITAE ©

How the matter was addressed in our audit
REFTHNERF %

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
properties included the following:

EAERENEOBEETIENEZRF BE -

° assessing the competence, capability, experience of the
locations and types of properties subject to valuation,
independence and objectivity of the external property valuer;

o GHEINIMEMAEMHEE - 820 - FEEUGERERLY
FNEBLR - BUMRESL

° with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, evaluating the valuation methodology used by
the external property valuer based on our knowledge and
experience of other valuers for similar types of properties;

o TEFMAFMEGEZRNGHT - BEFMEELEEY
ERE M EERMARRLR - SR A ERMAER
HIEERE

° comparing, on a sample basis, the tenancy information
included in the valuation models, which included committed
rents and vacancy rates, with underlying contracts and
related documentation;

o DRMBEAABEEREPAEANEERSS (AP BHEREN
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B EE (B)

Valuation of investment properties

REMEME

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 127 to 128.
FRHE A BRANT 17RE127 E128 BRI B51HE ©

The Key Audit Matter
HMEETZE

We identified valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter because of their significance to the consolidated financial
statements and because the determination of the fair values
involves significant judgement and estimation, including selecting
the appropriate valuation methodology, capitalisation rates and
vacancy rates.
ERRENEHRAUBRRNEEEUARAABNEE S REX
EREHENMGE  DREBEENMERE  ERNMEENZEE
o BMEREMENEERTA—BHERERSE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RESHHEER %

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
properties included the following: (continued)

BEMHRENEOEEETHENEREFRE : (B)

o discussing the valuations with the external property valuer in
a separate private session and challenging the key estimates
adopted in the valuations, including those relating to vacancy
rates and capitalisation rates. With the assistance of our
internal property valuation specialists, comparing them
with historical rates and available market data, taking into
consideration comparability and other local market factors;
and

o STHENBMEREMEFIREE - CHEERARA
MEZMGG (BREAZEENENMCEEBNMGET) REE
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LERMSRARBBELLL - WEBA L RE M E 5 A
E-S 4

o conducting site visits to investment properties, on a sample

basis, to observe the vacancy rates and comparing the
observed vacancy rates with the related assumptions adopted
by the external property valuer in the valuation models.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ng Yu Hei.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 & %2020 128318 L FE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (Fr 5 #8808 57 )

Revenue g 5 18,803,011 14,919,474
Cost of sales SHE AR (9,988,431) (9,794,350)
Gross profit EA 8,814,580 5,125,124
Other income and gains HA A R F5 6 2,133,520 315,462
(Decrease) /increase in fair value of financial FBRER ?ﬁ@‘*f AEZERBE

assets at fair value through profit or loss, net DRE CRD) /EnFE 24 (469,433) 340,676
(Decrease) /increase in fair value of investment REMERAAE i),/

properties B 17 (675,583) 434,258
(Decrease) /increase in fair value upon transfer EBEEREMEEALE

to investment properties CR2) /3gm 17 (1,545) 958,779
Selling and distribution expenses HE R A (319,443) (352,393)
Administrative expenses THRX (1,032,961) (1,035,193)
Other operating expenses H &Y (577,779) (586,751)
Finance costs A 7 (992,038) (561,210)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures EEEE AR REE AR

and associates m AR E e 1,254,285 2,045,785
Profit before taxation BBt AR A 8 8,133,603 6,684,537
Income tax st 9 (4,170,113) (2,307,247)
Profit for the year FERER 3,963,490 4,377,290
Attributable to: T3
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAIERRR 3,722,856 4,062,796
Non-controlling interests el g £ 240,634 314,494

3,963,490 4,377,290

Earnings per share (HK cents) SRER (B4WL) 12

Basic E-YN 42.03 47.53

Diluted & 42.03 47.53

The notes on pages 118 to 263 form part of these financial statements. Details
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the

profit for the year are set out in note 13.

F1182 263 BERNMABRZSHEREN—H -
BRADRERRREGRFNERNERRS 25

FAMIEE13 ©
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020%12A31H ILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& % 800857 )

Profit for the year FREEF 3,963,490 4,377,290
Other comprehensive income for the year FRHMEE K E
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: BreEmsBeBaER ¢
— Surplus on revaluation of investment property — mhE - BERREERES
transferred from property, plant and equipment REYESH B
— Changes in fair value —RREE - 61,221
— Income tax effect — IBHyE - (15,305)
- 45,916
— Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land — BEERAMMEE LR
and buildings held for own use BFEGLBH
— Changes in fair value — pnEE - 485,070
— Income tax effect — 3R E - (121,267)
- 363,803
- 409,719
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently g EEN D EEEEIER
to profit or loss:
— Share of other comprehensive income of joint — EHEEE AR REE QA
ventures and associates H{‘@i@ﬂﬁlm 415,545 (185,026)
— Exchange differences on translation of —RERINEB B EE
foreign operations 3,700,390 (1,229,187)
4,115,935 (1,414,213)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FRHEMEENE & BREi%
net of tax 4,115,935 (1,004,494)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREARRAE 8,079,425 3,372,796
Attributable to: TR :
Equity shareholders of the Company AREERRR 7,572,287 3,119,739
Non-controlling interests R 507,138 253,057
Total comprehensive income for the year FRENRAE 8,079,425 3,372,796

The notes on pages 118 to 263 form part of these financial statements.

F118E263 AN BN AS I HIHREN— 517 -
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A £ 1 85 IR D

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (F7% & 88196457 )

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
20205 20194
128311 12A31R8
$'000 $'000
Tr ~=ID
Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment M - BE SR 14 6,307,594 6,103,243
Prepaid land lease payments B AERNRK 15 33,486 32,580
Goodwill RS 16 381,982 358,892
Investment properties REME 17 35,650,870 34,241,821
Interests in associates REE N RER 22 5,836,961 5,319,511
Interests in joint ventures REEARIER 23 8,060,608 6,811,843
Other financial assets HinepEE 24 7,606,248 9,036,933
Deferred tax assets BLERIBEE 35(b) 2,632,401 1,802,630
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 66,510,150 63,707,453

Current assets RBEE
Biological assets EMEE 25 2,939 2,205
Completed properties held for sale RBEFE 2B AR ME 18 17,562,192 21,457,104
Properties under development BRAYE 19 40,746,833 22,277,161
Inventories JEa 26 176,558 195,177
Trade receivables FEUER X 27 875,138 593,612
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRAFOE « fT& R EfREKRIE 28 7,654,310 4,636,375
Other financial assets Hitne@EE 24 37,266 31,095
Restricted cash XRHRE 29 2,543,969 2,719,521
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReFEY 29 16,166,471 9,653,239
Total current assets REEELSE 85,765,676 61,565,489

Current liabilities REAE
Interest-hearing bank and other borrowings FERITRHAMES 30 12,739,824 8,406,211
Lease liabilities HEBE 31 115,046 103,476
Trade payables e AR R 32 3,863,062 2,625,609
Other payables and accruals HA B FIE R ERTE A 33 10,966,533 13,074,208
Contract liabilities ENEE 34 19,718,224 18,100,667
Due to the immediate holding company [EREEERARIFIE 29(c) 1,071,781 562,926
Due to the ultimate holding company e SRR AR A Bl FA 29(c) 8,206,911 1,936,473
Tax payable FERTIE 35(a) 10,331,306 6,247,561
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& % 800857 )

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

20204 20194

12A318 12A31H

$'000 $'000

Tr S

Total current liabilities REBEELSE 67,012,687 51,057,131

Net current assets REEEFE 18,752,989 10,508,358

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 85,263,139 74,215,811
Non-current liabilities *RBEE

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STERITREMBEE 30 18,088,589 15,891,707

Lease liabilities HERE 31 340,587 401,541

Deferred income EIEIA 36 29,114 28,193

Due to the immediate holding company B ERER AR FIE 29(c) 698,963 700,920

Due to the ultimate holding company JEN B E R R RIFR 29(c) 1,208,557 =

Deferred tax liabilities ELEWIBEE 35(b) 9,491,481 8,821,155

Total non-current liabilities FRBEELE 29,857,291 25,843,516

NET ASSETS BEFHE 55,405,848 48,372,295
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRfF#E

Share capital B 38(b) 22,071,756 21,910,268

Reserves A 38(c) 28,552,529 22,564,388

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of "2 Al RE RS AR TR fE(h 2548

the Company 50,624,285 44 474 656

Non-controlling interests R 4,781,563 3,897,639

TOTAL EQUITY R AE 55,405,848 48,372,295

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2021, EFE202143 530 BHLE RIRETIE -
Huang Wei Liu Shichao
EE 2R
Director Director
EZ EZ

The notes on pages 118 to 263 form part of these financial statements. F118E 263 AN HERZ S BHEN—7 -
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 & %2020 128318 L FE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (Fr 5 #8808 57 )

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FARRERREL

Share Asset Fair value  Exchange Non-
Share Other option Capital revaluation  Statutory reserve  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  (recycling) reserve profits interests equity

BhE BEEf MERE  ERSE FER
EttHRE s E5ERE BE  ieRE  (UBR) BE  REEF i BREE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
bt r T T T T T r T T

Balance at R2020%

1 January 2020 118248 21,910,268 (184,386) 95,498 59,019 610,127 3,608,120 - (2,258,754) 20,634,764 44474656 3,897,639 48,372,295
Profit for the year FRgF = = = = = = = - 3,722,856 3,722,856 240,634 3,963,490
Other comprehensive ERAHAE

income for the year: s -

Share of other

comprehensive income

of joint ventures and A2 ERE

associates - - - - - - (17,039) 432,584 - 415,545 - 415,545
Exchange differences HERNEE

on translation of foreign JEXEE

operations - - - - - - - 3,433,886 - 3,433,886 266,504 3,700,390
Total comprenensive EREENEEE

income for the year - - - - - - (17,039) 3,866,470 3,722,856 7,572,287 507,138 8,079,425
Final 2019 dividends W9EXHRE 13 161488 - - - - - - - (o767 (810,190) - (810,190)
Wterim 2020 dividends ~~ 202054ERE 13 - - - - - - - - (622993 (622,999 - (622999
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WE—EHBAF - - - - - - - - - - 593353 593,353
Equity-settled share PUUSTipa

option expense BRERS 37(0) i) - - 10,525 - - - - - - 10,525 - 10,525
Dividends declared tonon-  3EIAMARE

controlling shareholders ERZRE - - - - - - - - - - (216,567)  (216,567)
Transfer from retained profits 5 A REET - - - - - 343834 - - (343,834) - - -
Balance at 31 R2020E

December 2020 128318268 22,071,756 (184,386) 106,023 59,019 610,127 3,951,954 (17,039) 1,607,716 22,419,115 50,624,285 4,781,563 55,405,848
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Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
s
Share Exchange Non-

Share Other option Capital ~ revaluation Statutory ~ fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital Teserve Teserve TServe Teserve Teserve TeServe profits interests equity

EEGE RE&R

$'000 $'000

I i

Balance at R2019%

1 January 2019 11828 20,688,259 (132,447) 89,087 59,019 219,851 3,375,004 (925,421) 18,330,623 41,703,975 3,739,721 45,443,696
Profit for the year Emg| = = = = = = - 4062796 4,062,796 314,494 4377,290
Other comprehensive income ~ FRE2ENE :

for the year:

Surplus on revaluation of B% - BER

investment property transferred  REEEZHRE

from property, plant and NEE-RRR

equipment = = = = 43,989 = = = 43,989 1,927 45,916
Surplus on revaluation of FEERNEE

leasehold [and and buildings THREF

held for own use EfES - - - = 346,287 = = = 346,287 17,516 363,803
Share of other comprehensive  EFAE AR

income of joint ventures and REBEATLM

associates 2ENE - - - - - - (185,026) - (185,026) - (185,026)
Exchange differences on BERNER

translation of foreign LEREE

operations - - - - - - (1,148,307) - (1,148,307) (80,880)  (1,229,187)
Total comprehensive income FR2EhEEE

for the year - - - - 390,276 - (1,333333) 4,062,796 3,119,739 253,057 3,372,796
Final 2018 dividends 018ERHHRE 13 675,777 - - - - - - (928,407) (252,630) = (252,630)
Interim 2019 diidends N19E2ERE 13 478,407 - - - - - - (0761 (129,054) - (12905
Change in non-controlling FEER-H

interests arising from increase  MBA Ak

of the Group’s shareholding ENEEL

in a subsidiary FEREREE = (51,939 = = = = = = (61,939) 51,939 =
Exercise of share options friEERE 3700)) 67,825 - (10,096) - - - - - 57,729 - 57,729
Forfeit and lapse of share options  EERRERMR AN - - (10,329) - - - - 10,329 - - -
Equity-settled share option WRASZ

expense ERERS 37 (b)) - - 26,836 - - - - - 26,836 - 26,836
Dividends declared to non- MIEERRR

controlling shareholders ERZBE - - - - - - - - - (147,078 (147,078)
Transfer from retained profits ~~ E& B RZER - - - - - 233,116 - (233,116) - = =
Balance at R2019%

31 December 2019 120318 2E8 21,910,268 (184,386) 95,498 59,019 610,127 3,608,120  (2,258,754) 20,634,764 44,474,656 3,897,639 48,372,295

The notes on pages 118 to 263 form part of these financial statements.
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 & %2020 128318 L FE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (Fr 5 #8808 57 )

31 December
2020

20204

12A31H
$'000
Tr

31 December
2019

20194
12A318

$'000
TG

Operating activities REER
Cash (used in)/generated from operations REER (A / EEZHS 29(b) (115,861) 8,289,241
Interest paid ERAE (1,366,784) (1,264,068)
Mainland China taxes paid [RENGAEPN A (2,498,090) (3,013,137)
Net cash flows (used in) /generated from TeT® (A Bz

operating activities RERERE (3,980,735) 4,012,036
Investing activities REED
Interest received EA S 350,124 154,562
Dividends received from equity investments BUBRERER S 1,626,639 1,825
Dividends received from associates B E A RIRE 223,094 242 144
Dividends received from joint ventures BRAERFRE 1,104,180 157,136
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - BEKEEER

plant and equipment SRR 10,033 7,438
Purchases of items of property, plant EADE  BEKXEEEB

and equipment (299,506) (551,856)
Additions to investment properties REMEIEN - (618,792)
Capital injection to joint ventures AEEARTE (553,701) =
Acquisition of joint ventures WEEENT - (11,163)
Disposal of an associate HE—MHE N 48,242 =
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired ~ WE—FEKBELR - HKRFTER S (568,043) =
Net (decrease) /increase to interests in RE&AAIER ORD),/

joint ventures EIEE (41,475) 794,198
Net decrease in loans to joint ventures BYTRERNRIZETRDFE 463,842 =
Net decrease in loans to associates BYBENRZETRDFE 1,125 1,137
Increase in loans to a non-controlling B —REERBRR

shareholder Egm (1,942,212) -
Net cash flows generated from RETHEECHERE

investing activities FE 422,342 176,629
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for the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020%12A31H ILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& % 800857 )

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
20204

20194
12A31H 12A318

$'000 $'000
Tr T

Financing activities

Proceeds from shares issued under

MEEE
RIEERESBID BTG

share option scheme TSR0 37(0)(i) - 57,729
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENHEERE 2 EAT R 29(c) (122,667) (93,175)
Dividends paid ERRE 13 (1,433,183) (381,684)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders FRER TS (421,648) (147,078)
Proceeds from loans from non-controlling 3FT‘£H§HX%%“?KW%§A’

shareholders 29(c) - 30,386
Repayment of loans from non-controlling IR ER

shareholders 29(c) (501,804) (193,324)
Proceeds from loans from related parties B EREH0E 29(c) 13,162,665 9,503,427
Repayment of loans from related parties EREH T ER 29(c) (6,937,524) (12,194,580)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREAMIEEFERE 29(c) 15,786,414 8,148,401
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EEBITREMEE 29(c) (10,061,410) (8,846,436)
Net cash flows generated from,” (used in) BMETBHELE (FFA)

financing activities ZRERERE 9,470,843 (4,116,334)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRBLEEYENTEE 5,912,450 72,331
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ENZRERBREEEY

of year 9,653,239 9,832,226
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net MEERS BT ERE 600,782 (251,318)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEERBEEZEY 29(a) 16,166,471 9,653,239

The notes on pages 118 to 263 form part of these financial statements.

F118E 263 AN BN A S U BEHREN — 10



118

Shenzhen Investment Limited 734232 E R A 7]
Annual Report &%} 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
T 75 e 2% B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5455) » HrE £ 1B THR)

Corporate information

Shenzhen Investment Limited (‘the Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of the Company is located
at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) are described in note 4.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of the
Company is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (‘Shum Yip Holdings” * &
# £E)5R A7), which is a private company incorporated in Hong Kong.
The ultimate holding company of the Company is F£ £ B AR A F (‘Shum
Yip Group”), which is a state-owned company established in Shenzhen, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

A B

AIERERLE ([ARF]) B—RARER
AL BEREERA - KRR ZEMPRE
BRUREENENBEBIFHREMED LS
B ARAREMBRR (RBEATAEE])
ZEBEBRM 4N -

EZRR FARAIZERERAAARER
AMRLZIARE —FRE (RB) BRAF
(IRE (&E) |) - FRRAZERERARR
RAEARANE ([HE]) RYKLIZBER
Al — AFXEEARAR ([RX&EE]) -

EEG R

(a) EHEH
ZEVBRRCREREUBRE LD
(I BB BRESER]) OB RARE
RE - BENBERESLENRERERES
FEAE ([BALHMAE]) BHKM
BERERNBEREREER - B
FPER ([RBGER]) MRE - B
PREFRIRBBRAGHNBET © %
SHBERENTABABRARIAERD
B ([Bzml) 85 LEmRAEARER
T o AEEFANEZSHBIREENT
X o

BREGHMASRME TN AREAS
R ERERH A HRARA B BN
BRELBNERT - HiFE2(c)REERER
ZEEF (MASHHRARNZFHBERE
ARBKZBRREERERR) MaolBz
SHBRIMEG2ER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 & #5855} » B & B9 BT F7)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the
Group’s interests in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following assets
are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

— investment properties (see note 2(h));

— leasehold land and buildings within property, plant and
equipment (see note 2(i));

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 2(g)(i));

- equity investments (see note 2(g)(ii)); and

biological assets (see note 2(m)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period except for the
amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions,
which provides a practical expedient that allows lessees not to
assess whether particular rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications and,
instead, account for those rent concessions as if they were not lease
modifications. Impacts of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are
discussed below:

Amendment fo HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that allows a lessee
to by-pass the need to evaluate whether certain qualifying rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic (‘COVID-19-related rent concessions”) are lease
modifications and, instead, account for those rent concessions as if
they were not lease modifications.

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendments and applies
the practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19-related rent
concessions granted to the Group during the year. Consequently, rent
concessions received have been accounted for as negative variable
lease payments credited to profit or loss in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers those payments occurred (see Note
20). There is no impact on the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2020.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with notes 2(p) or (q) depending on
the nature of the liability.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture (see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)(iii)).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement,
and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
the investment, and any direct investment into the associate or joint
venture that forms part of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes 2(f) and (k)(iii)). At each reporting
date, the group assesses whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate
or the joint venture (after applying the expected credit losses (ECL)
model to such other long-term interests where applicable (see note

2(k)(0)-

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)

(il).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(k)(iii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Derivative financial instruments and other financial assets

()

(i)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. On derecognition
of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained
less any new liability assumed) shall be recognised in profit or
loss.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets include investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures. The Group’s accounting policies for these
investments are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those financial assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note 40.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Derivative financial instruments and other financial assets
(continued)
(i) Other financial assets (continued)
Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection
of contractual cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest. Interest income from
the investment is calculated using the effective interest
method (see note 2(v)(vii)).

fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) —
recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest and
the investment is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to profit or
loss.

fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment does
not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in profit or
loss.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Derivative financial instruments and other financial assets
(continued)

(@

(h)

()

Other financial assets (continuead)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer's perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained
profits. It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from
an investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the policy set out in note
2(v)(vi).

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in

the course of construction or development at the end of the reporting

period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the

retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted

for as described in note 2(v)(iv).
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with note 2(i) up to the date of change
in use, and any difference at the date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
and recognised in asset revaluation reserve within equity until the
retirement or disposal of the property (when it is released directly
to retained profits). For a transfer from completed properties held
for sale to investment properties, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use are stated at their
revalued amount, being their fair value at the date of the revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount of these assets does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair values at the end of
reporting period.

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2(K)):

—  right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is not the registered owner of the

property interest (see note 2(j));

—  right-of-use assets arising from other properties leased for own
use; and

— items of plant and equipment;
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land and buildings
held for own use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the asset
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to profit
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the amount held in the
reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to profit
or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in respect of
that same asset had previously been charged to profit or loss.

Construction is progress represents buildings under construction,
which is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
note 2(k)), and is not depreciated. Other items of property, plant
and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note
2(x)). Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit
or loss. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Ownership interest in leasehold land Over the lease terms
and buildings held for own use

—  Other properties leased for own use Over the lease terms
—  Leasehold improvements 20%
—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 25%
—  Motor vehicles 9% to 20%
—  Plant and machinery 10% to 25%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

(i)

()

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease component
for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are primarily laptops
and office furniture. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leased assets (continued)

(i)

()

As a lessee (continuead)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2(i) and 2(K)(iii)), except for the following types
of right-of-use asset:

—  right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are carried at fair value in accordance with note
2(h);

—  the right-of use assets related to leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is the registered owner of the
lease hold interest are carried at fair value; and

—  right-of-use assets related to interests in leasehold land
where the interest in the land is held as inventory are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value in
accordance with note 2(1).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded
in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(0

(i)

As a lessee (continuea)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in
the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract (‘lease modification”)
that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this case
the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in consideration
as if it were not a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not
the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The
rental income from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 2(v)(iv).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases are
classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.
If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group
applies the exemption described in note 2(j)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(j) Leased assets (continued)

()

AS a lessor (continued)

For a sublease classified as a finance lease, the Group
derecognises the right-of-use asset relating to the head lease
that it transfers to the sublessee and recognises the finance
lease receivables in the sublease when the Group enters into
the sublease. Any difference between the right-of-use asset
and the finance lease receivables in the sublease is recognised
in profit or loss. During the term of the sublease, the Group
recognises interest income as it accrues on the outstanding
balance of finance lease receivables using the effective interest
rate method and interest expense on the lease liability relating
to the head lease.

For a sublease classified as an operating lease, the Group
retains the lease liability and the right-of-use asset relating to
the head lease in its statement of financial position unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property
in which case the right-of-use asset is accounted for as an
investment property and measured at fair value.

During the term of the sublease, the Group recognises lease
income from the sublease and interest expense on the lease
liability relating to the head lease.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

()

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
restricted cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, finance
lease receivables and other long-term assets within “Other
financial assets”, other receivables and loans to related parties
included in prepayment, deposits and other receivables).

Financial assets measured at fair value, including equity
securities measured at FVPL, equity securities designated at
FVOCI (non-recycling) and derivative financial assets, are not
subject to the ECL assessment.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(0

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;

- lease receivables: discount rate used in measurement of
the lease receivable; and

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest
rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from all possible default events over the expected lives of
the items to which the ECL model applies.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(k)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLSs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs when the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held). The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(0

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(k)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2(v)(vii) is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial
asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(0

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lease
receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written
off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss
in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised within
“Other payables and accruals” at fair value, which is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services, when such information is obtainable, or
to interest rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group'’s policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(k)

()

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (continued)

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract and recognises a provision when ECLs
on the financial guarantees are determined to be higher than
the amount carried in “Other payables and accruals” in respect
of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL
is measured. The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk as described in
note 2(k)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the event of
a default by the specified debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based
on the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit
loss that it incurs less any amount that the Group expects to
receive from the holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor
or any other party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

(i)

property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use

assets (other than properties carried at revalued amounts);

prepaid land lease payments;

goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries and associates in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEFFHBUR (H)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) (k) FEHBERREEWM (8)
(iii)  Impairment of other non-current assets (continued) (i) R TEEERE (£)
—  Reversals of impairment losses — REBEELD

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
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(I) Inventories and other contract costs () FERIAAR A
() Property development ()  YEREZ
Inventories in respect of property development activities are BUWERRE  FERKAETER
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost and FEMEIBREEIR o KAKT
net realisable values are determined as follows: FHRFERATHAERE
- Properties under development — ERERYE

Properties under development are intended to be held
for sale after completion. They are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond the normal operating cycle.

The cost of properties under development for sale
comprises specifically identified cost, including the
acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs capitalised (see note 2(x)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the
property.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

U

(0

(1)

Property development (continued)

—  Completed properties held for sale
The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

In the case of completed properties developed by the
Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the
total development costs for that development project,
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

Other inventories

Inventories other than those in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(1

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)
(ifi) ~ Other contract costs

Other contract costs are incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained
e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental costs of
obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred if the costs
relate to revenue which will be recognised in a future reporting
period and the costs are expected to be recovered, unless
the expected amortisation period is one year or less from the
date of initial recognition of the asset, in which case the sales
commissions can be expensed when incurred. The Group
applied this practical expedient under HKFRS 15 and did not
capitalise sales commissions with amortisation periods of one
year or less from the date of initial recognition of the asset.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the
contract cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange for
the goods or services to which the asset relates, less (ii) any
costs that relate directly to providing those goods or services
that have not yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or
loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised.
The accounting policy for revenue recognition is set out in note
2(v).

(m) Biological assets

Biological assets represent cloned orchid flowers recorded as current
assets. The biological assets are measured at their fair value on initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period less estimated
costs to sell. The fair values of the biological assets are determined
based on the most recent market transaction prices. Any change in
fair value less estimated costs to sell of a biological asset is included
in profit or loss for the period in which it arises.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(0)

(p)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue (see
note 2(v)). A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 2(0)).

When the contract includes a significant financing component, the
contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective interest
method (see note 2(v)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowance for credit losses (see note 2(k)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part to the effective interest
rate. Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(x)).

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except
for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with note
2(u), trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

(r)

(s)

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified as “restricted
cash’. Restricted cash are excluded from cash and cash equivalents
in the statement of financial position and cash flow statement.

Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in note 2(k)(i).

Employee benefits

()

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(s) Employee benefits (continued)

()

(1)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans (continued)

Each of the subsidiaries operating in mainland China participates
in the central pension scheme (the “CPS") operated by the local
municipal government for all of its staff. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain portion of their payroll costs to the
CPS. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
CPS, except to the extent that they are included in the cost of
investments not yet recognised as an expense.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in share option reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date using the Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

2 EEEEECR (8)

(s) MEEHEA (&)

()

(1)

FHIER I REFLFT LN &
# (&)

MERTPEAELE ZHBARZ
B RN S8 ([FREKREF
21 - BRI TBEAZE
RAFMBEEHF - LEHBELR
WRBEF® AT RIER
SR BELER - REPRERE
ATBlEL 2 e RBT RRKEF
82 RAEAN SR AR R
o R ARBRA R AR R —
BRESERID ©

KRG BEREZ M3
RYEEZBREAAERIARESR
PR - s IR A RE IR I A AR
B DAEER BN AETE
BRAERLAHHE  YERER
BELOGET RGN - 2REBEK
RERHEZERRENVATARE
R BEREESAABRBER
BHRIE  YZRBRESER
BHBER o

REBHE - HEHEBNERE
HETUEN - BHEFREEREIN
2 RAENTARBRERHFER
ARH/HRBHEDHR - BERF
EERXNAHREENERKER
EREEEEHE - NEBEY - &
RBRAXZEETARE - URBR
BEOBRENEREE (BRER
FBRERE) - EERREKELRD
AR B B RE RS T A
R EBRERENEDESS
BEERRERTE (EAACED
BROHMBRANE AR ZAE) %
BEERER (EEERBRERELH

By) e



148

Shenzhen Investment Limited 734232 E R A 7]
Annual Report &%} 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
T 75 e 2% B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5455) » HrE £ 1B THR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Share-based payments (continuead)
Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employee are accounted
for as increase in value of investments in subsidiary in the
Company’s statement of financial position which is eliminated
on consolidation.

(iii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax payable is the best estimate of the tax
amount expected to be paid that reflects uncertainty related to income
taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rate enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and
all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it
is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h), the amount
of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u)

v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the
sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others of the
Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the
asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12
months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:

(v)

()

(i)

Sale of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised upon the point in
time when the customers has the ability to direct the use of the
property and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of
the property. Deposits and instalments received on properties
sold prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
statement of financial position under contract liabilities (see
note 2(n)).

When residential properties are marketed by the Group while
the property is still under construction, the Group may offer
a discount compared to the listed sales price, provided the
customer agrees to pay the balance of the consideration
early. In such cases, if the advance payments are regarded as
providing a significant financing benefit to the Group, interest
expense arising from the adjustment of time value of money
will be accrued by the Group during the period between the
payment date and when control of completed property is
transferred to the customer. This accrual increases the balance
of the contract liability during the period of construction, and
therefore increases the amount of revenue recognised when
control of the completed property is transferred to the customer.
The interest is expensed as accrued unless it is eligible to be
capitalised under HKAS 23, Borrowing costs, in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2(x).

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession of
and accepts the products. If the products are a partial fulfilment
of a contract covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion of
the total transaction price under the contract, allocated between
all the goods and services promised under the contract on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

()

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as a
construction contract when the contract relates to work on real
estate assets under the control of the customer and therefore
the Group's construction activities create or enhance an asset
under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be reasonably
measured, revenue from the contract is recognised progressively
over time using the cost-to-cost method, i.e. based on the
proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated
total costs.

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses for
early completion or suffering contractual penalties for late
completion are taken into account in making these estimates,
such that revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are estimated
to exceed the remaining amount of the consideration under the
contract, then a provision is recognised in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(u).

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue and other income (continued)

(v)

(v)

(v

(vii)

Property management fee income

The Group provides property management services and bills the
property owners a fixed lump sum amount for services provided
on a monthly basis. Under this arrangement, the Group acts as
a principal and is primary responsible for providing the property
management services to the property owners. The Group
recognises the fee received or receivable from property owners
as its revenue when the Group has a right to invoice and that
corresponds directly with the value of performance completed,
and all related property management costs as its cost of
services.

Divigenads

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

—  Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective
interest method using the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
of the asset (see note 2(k)(i)).
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGFBUR (8)
(v) Revenue and other income (continued) ) Wk A (51)

(viii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are credited to a deferred income account
and are released to profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant assets by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Company initially recognises such
non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(x)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. The
results of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:
() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.
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Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGFBUR (8)
(v) Related parties (continued) (y) BEH (8)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b)) FTEUTEmMEENERRATSE
conditions applies: REE s
()  The entity and the Group are members of the same group () RERBEAKERER-—S5EM
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow KERAR (ASERAE - KB
subsidiary is related to the others). NAIRRZAKBAR 2EHEE
M) o
(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy —HEBAZ—EBNBED
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a AkeE N (HAS— B
group of which the other entity is a member). BB KERRMEE QD

AR ERT) °

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (i) MEAEBHRA-F=A2E
NGO

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other ivv —HEBRE=-AZAER

entity is an associate of the third entity. B ME—BERE=F W
VNG

(v The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) ZEBAASEIASERHA
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity EBNEE A ANBERE
related to the Group. FIETEl -

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) ZEBA()EMIBALES
identified in (a). FALREH -

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i) (a)()EFIERATHZERSE
over the entity or is a member of the key management ﬁ?j%iﬁﬁ B (KEE
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). NA)) MEEEEAS -

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (vii) ZERIZERBER 0
provides key management personnel services to the Group FSEEE N EMKEARRA
or to the Group's parent. SEXAEERARREFE

ERABRE °

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

BANBERRBERARZALEEEE

BRBEA

REFVEZALTHRETEN
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial statements are
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The

resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that may have a significant
effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year is estimation of fair value of investment properties and the

determination of the lease term.

2

FEG B (8])

(2)

pE bt
BENBREMBRRARSNE N ER
BENEERBEHRETAREARSER
ABUENEEREFEARERREE
Rt A BERROAFENET

REBHRERN - EHEELENRY R
TUAER - RSP BARRARERN
RERERBIEE - AEBRMEREP
BRSER - BEDHEMIRERBH
ﬁ%&ﬁﬁkﬁmﬁgﬁ o fERIE T E
ENREN B R TAER - MEENE
A%Ky%%%%ﬁ

EWNCHR LT
ﬂﬁ&%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁu@

Z<<<

I\I

BREMRR (BRAEERBEATHRERA
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3 Significant accounting judgements and estimates
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for the properties with similar lease and other contracts. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its
judgement, the Group considers information from a variety of sources
including: (i) current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject to different lease
or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences; (ii) recent
prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii) discounted cash
flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
derived from the terms of any existing lease and other contracts
and (where possible) from external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and condition, and
using discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment properties based
on valuations determined by independent and professional qualified
valuers. Significant judgement and assumptions are required in
assessing the fair value of the investment properties. Details of the
judgement and assumptions are disclosed in note 17.

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 2(j), the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term. In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options exercisable by the
Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal
options taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold improvements undertaken and
the importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s operation.
The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant event or
significant change in circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
Any increase or decrease in the lease term would affect the amount
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in future years.

3 EORratAE KAl (87)

(i)

(if)

REME
DhEZREERARBEEAREMAY
REBMHZRITER - WABREHEE
B AEBSREABEAAEGGTHEE
THBHE - EELEELER - AEE
SERIRELERENER @ 81
O FRME - BRIERDERTRTS
ZHRIEE (X TRENSEMBEDE
B) o EHEARURBZEZR : (ii)F
BEMERBETERMG 2 HHER (E5
BER S AU REEM R 2 S EL A
B) : Ri)REFAREROAREMAES
ZAEFTUA K (A0eT1T) SMEEE (HREAR
RERZRENEERzMHEES) &
RUBEREZ ARG AR RME AT
RenEsB Bz TREEE 2 TS
ARG E R RERN -

AEEERBUEXAERMAEMETH
BEFEREDENRAE - EHERE
NENDABRBEERHERER - #
B R BRROFBEMEI7TARE -

2 L B I
IIRERMIE2() PriREE - TERBEGE
HHARNEENRORERR - NEE
M EHECHY (BRAKEN Fi7E
MEREER) K AREZE5EAE
BiTEARERENCESRORENH
EERBERRFETEENREEOA
- BEEERN - ETOHEENEERE
FRBEEHAREELZNERM - 2%
EBEAEHAAREAEHBERNENE
B - KEEMFEEY - BHTRKSE
EREHARFEMBRAEEABRER
BEENSRENTE -
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Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by business units, which are organised
based on their products and services. In a manner congistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following five
reportable segments:

=

) the property development segment engages in the development of
residential and commercial properties;

(b)  the property investment segment invests in commercial properties for
their rental income potential;

(c) the property management segment engages in the management of
both properties developed by the Group and external parties;

(d) the manufacture segment engages in the manufacture and sale of
industrial and commercial products; and

(e) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the hotel operations,
manufacture and sale of aluminum alloy products and agricultural
products, provision of construction services and other businesses.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets such as deferred tax assets,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and other
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities such as interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, an amount due to the ultimate holding
company, tax payable, an amount due to the immediate holding company,
deferred tax liabilities and other head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before taxation from continuing
operations. The adjusted profit before taxation from continuing operations
is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before taxation except that
other income and gains, finance costs, net fair value gain/(loss) on financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss as well as head office
and corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

g tieh

AEEREBEMERRY  MEBEMKA
EmlREE D - REALKEESZSTRER
AERBHREEH (REERAEREZRFMG)
—B2ZhA  AEEEHATREZERSE

(@) VERELIBENFBRETRBFRET

FREDBEENERBAMR  ERE

© WEEEIBUFTEEHLKERINEA
TERZET

d HESENEHEREETIERBEE
m &

@ [EMIIBRIBZRBEERY  RER
HERATEMNREM - RIGZERY
REMER -

ROBRAFERDBHBROIEME - £
BRETHEEABR T RAEERKRENR
BlEz%%E BERARE -

o

ERNETRBEEE - XRHRE  Re kB
FEY  HtemEESAOEREERE WA
MEBRARBENRAMBEEER - HHE
BEVTBREALEE

ERFRBRITREAMEER BENSKRERAT
PR - BATR - RNERZERARNE - E
EHREREEANEREREMARERL A
BEDEIEEREEE  HOBRARYTER
NERE -
PBRRBEDRAZEREMNETIE - =2
FoRENNSELEEBOERERBAE
Moo RERERBNERARRT RGN KR
AEBBRAMETN —H2HTAFE - EHL
WARME « BEKA - BRBERAAER
B eREAERAERS(BR) 8 - Uk
ERERRAAFAXLIBEELFEA ©
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Segment reporting (continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to the
Group’'s most senior executive management for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 is set out below.
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4 EESE (8

BRANAKER 2

HZE2020F 201912 A31 HIEFE R
AEERSTREEASUESEERKFTED
BOBEERFINT -

Property Property Property
development investment management Manufacture Others
NEZRE  NERE  NEEE L Hit
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T
Segment revenue: AR
Sales to customers HETEF 14,079,639 1,223,195 2,225,947 347,293 926,937 18,803,011
Intersegment sales (note a) HERHE (MFa) - 9,828 93,530 - 178,800 282,158
14,079,639 1,233,023 2,319,477 347,293 1,105,737 19,085,169
Reconciliation ik
Elimination of intersegment sales HEABREE (282,158)
Revenue W& 18,803,011
Segment results before decrease in =~ RENE AL ERDHIZ
fair value of investment properties PEEE 7,587,680 971,395 191,810 71,328 (14,771) 8,807,442
Decrease in fair value of investment ~ ENE AL ER D
properties - (675,583) - - - (675,583)
Decrease in fair value upon transfer — EEZEREWER
to investment properties ARBRD - (1,545) - - - (1,545)
Segment results after decrease in ~ RENEARBERIE2
fair value of investment properties 2 E¥& 7,587,680 294,267 191,810 71,328 (14,771) 8,130,314
Reconciliation i
Elimination of intersegment results HENBREEE (548,915)
Other income and gains EARFE 2,133,520
Fair value loss on financial assets BRERBEAA AR
measured at fair value through SHEED ;LTEEE?E@%E
profit or loss, net (469,433)
Corporate and other unallocated RRREMRAEER
expenses (119,845)
Finance costs BERKA (992,038)
Profit before taxation it AR A 8,133,603
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I

4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 HEEE (H)

i

Property Property Property
development investment management Manufacture Others

NEER  NERE NREE HiE Rft

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Tr Tr Fr

Segment assets APEEE 76,799,217 41,870,169 920,456 169,820 3,529,809 123,289,471
Reconciliation Ford
Corporate and other unallocated assets 2 AR EMANEEE 28,986,355
Total assets BEE 152,275,826
Segment liabilities PEEE 39,452,988 4,933,344 755,803 130,204 946,439 46,218,778
Reconciliation i
Corporate and other unallocated RAREMASEEE

liabilities 50,651,200
Total liabilities wak 96,869,978
Other segment information: Hi2EER
Depreciation e 104,304 40,609 30,925 4,689 95,126 275,653
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BT AE A7

payments - - - - 1,192 1,192
Interests in associates REERAER 3,415,068 1,392,084 328 - 1,029,481 5,836,961
Interests in joint ventures REERFER 7,786,553 155,652 20,971 - 97,432 8,060,608
Additions to non-current ERREERINEEAE

segment assets during the year GiEd)

(note b) 8,602 43,807 60,439 45,057 157,905
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4 Segment reporting (continued) 4

Property
development

Property Property
investment  management Manufacture Others

VESFE: R A
$'000 $'000

$000
T T Tr

Segment revenue: AR
Sales to customers HWETRP 10,531,572 1,070,991 2,099,290 333,867 883,754 14,919,474
Intersegment sales (note a) AEREE (Fiza) - 11,816 160,919 - 144070 316,805
10,531,572 1,082,807 2,260,209 333,867 1,027,824 15,236,279

Reconciliation ik
Elimination of intersegment sales HENBRHE (316,805)
Revenue W 14,919,474
Segment results before increase in -~ FAMEAAEEMETZ

fair value of investment properties PEEE 4,684,229 688,102 225,340 22,729 (107,379) 5,513,021
Increase in fair value of investment ~ REWE AL EEN

properties - 434,258 - - - 434,258
Increase in fair value upon transfer to ~ EEER AN XK

investment properties AREEM - 958,779 = = - 958,779
Segment results after increase i~ RENEAAERLME

fair value of investment properties 2 B4 4,684,229 2,081,139 225,340 22,729 (107,379) 6,906,058
Reconciliation i
Elimination of intersegment results 432 BHEE (94,022)
Other income and gains Hi ARG 315,462
Fair value gain on financial assets BREZEAAENE L

measured at fair value through CREENABUSTE

profit or loss, net 340,676
Corporate and other unallocated ARREM RN EER

expenses (222,427)
Finance costs BEKA (561,210)
Profit before taxation BREADR A 6,684,537
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I

4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 HEEE (H)

i

Property Property Property
development  investment management Manufacture Others

NEER  NFERE DEER Bt Eft

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T

Segment assets PEEE 56,051,271 37,228,889 679,786 141,929 4,942,869 99,044,744
Reconciliation ik
Corporate and other unallocated assets 2 AR EMANEEE 26,228,198
Total assets BEE 125,272,942
Segment liabilities TEEE 26,047,724 5312184 1,072,814 85,148 1,185,403 33,703,273
Reconciliation i
Corporate and other unallocated NAREM AR EAE
liabilities 43,197,374
Total liabilities BEE 76,900,647
Other segment information: HipEER
Depreciation g 97,141 35,827 35,480 4,763 98,276 271,487
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BT AE A
payments - - - - 1,141 1,141
Interests in associates RE SR AER 2470510 637,737 309 15,133 2,195822 5,319,511
Interests in joint ventures WEEQFER 6,446,120 136,913 17,750 = 211,060 6,811,843
Additions to non-current FRREFRINEEE
segment assets during the year GiEd)
(note b) 204,314 1,013,851 76,637 4103 1,294,065 2,592,970
Notes: BI5E
a. Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices 2. NEMHEEREZNKSEHE=FRHW
used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market prices. EE  REBNRTIMEETRS °
b.  Additions to non-current segment assets during the year comprise additions to bh. FARBFRDOEEEBREREME -
property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments and investment BB R&tE -~ AN DA ENRARKEY
properties. ES
As the Group generates substantially all of its revenue from customers HRAEBR RSB IKEEB R B KR 2
domiciled in mainland China and most of its non-current assets are located BFE - BEABGOIERDEEGURATE AR

in mainland China, no geographical information is presented. B RERRER ©
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Revenue 5 Mg

Revenue, represents sale of properties, commercial and industrial goods, Wt HERIXEMIHEESR B2

rental income, management fee income and others. All of the revenue of WA - ERBRAREMBA - XEB A

the Group is recognised at a point in time except for property management WRINE—ERIER - EWEEBRERA

fee income, which is recognised over time. TiBERE R o

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major (i) ZEZEMERBEAIFIEPEANE
products and service lines is as follows: N

Revenue from contracts with customers ~ REBEERE LB FE155%EER

within the scope of HKFRS 15 ZEFEAHkE
Sale of completed properties HEB AR E 14,079,639 10,531,572
Management fee income EEEWA 2,225,947 2,099,290
Sale of commercial and industrial goods HEMERTEER 347,293 333,867
Others Hil 926,937 883,754
17,579,816 13,848,483
Revenue from other sources H At ORI &=
Gross rental income from investment BEMEMRSWALRE (f3E@)
properties (note (a))
— Lease payments that are fixed or depend — EEFREBRNIEEIFER HEE
on an index or a rate ES 1,155,049 1,035,235
— Variable lease payments that do not depend — TMKIERIEEEFIR 7 I A E
on an index or a rate ES 68,146 35,756
18,803,011 14,919,474
Note: Mot -
(@  During the year, the Group offered rent concessions to certain tenants (@ FA - XZCOVID-19EEFE  A%5E
as a direct consequence of COVID-19. These rent concessions amounted METHFPRHEESER - Z5HE
to $220,381,000 are accounted for as lease modifications, of which B58220,381,000 R A E BT ER T
$89,665,000 has been recognised as a deduction to the gross rental income BRIFE - 289,665,000 TEERAEF
during the year. NS WA BB
The Group’s customer base is diversified. For the year ended 31 AEEZEFESLIE - BHE2020F12
December 2020, none of the customer with whom transactions AS1BLEEE  AEEVER HEHEEB
have exceed 10% of the Group’s revenue. For the year ended 31 AEBWRZ10%MER - HZE2019F
December 2019, sales to the Group’s largest customer amounted to 12ANBLEFE - AEERARFHER

approximately 11.48% of the Group’s revenue. WL RSB 211.48% ©
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5

6

Revenue (continued)

(ii)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising
from contracts with customers in existence at the reporting
date

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregated amount of the transaction
price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied under the Group’s existing contracts is
$25,073,060,000 (2019: $25,939,073,000). This amount mainly
represents revenue expected to be recognised in the future from
pre-completion sales contracts for properties under development.
This amount includes the interest component of pre-completion
properties sales contracts under which the Group obtains significant
financing benefits from the customers (see note 2(v)(i)). The Group
will recognise the expected revenue in future, in the case of the
properties under development for sale, when the customers has the
ability to direct the use of the property, which is expected to occur
over the next 12 to 36 months.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of
HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for commercial and industrial goods
and service contracts for property management such that the above
information does not include information about revenue that the
Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under these contracts which had an original expected
duration of one year or less.

Other income and gains

5

6

s (&)

(ii)

B H AR R B R B H B &
i 6 H W

R2020F12A318 * REAELER
BANIREHRTENETNRFER
4% 525 073,060,0007T (20194 :
25,939,073,00070) ° ZeBIgEHRA
BRTERAZREBERYERES NN
o ReTBOREEMEHESLNF S
0 MAEEREEBENEZFISE
ERBEMNTE (RHF2v)() ° HRER
BYEEE - AREBREFUEERA
DWERERER RS - MEBEERER
AK12Z=36MHAEE -

AEEEREBMBREENEIGRE
121BMERTREZ T EERARERER
RIXERHEANURMEERREA
A Bt ERENTERAREERT
ARRRB FHRA—FARR IR
THRBEORLEBREROKEER -

AN B

Interest income LB WA 352,104 217,983
Dividend income (note) MBI (B3E) 1,626,639 1,825
Government grant (note 36) BT e (KiEE36) 59,197 20,703
Others Hit 95,580 74,951
2,133,520 315,462

Note: Bt -

Pursuant to the investment agreements disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements,
the Group received dividends mainly from Hengda Real Estate Group Company Limited
(‘Hengda Real Estate”) amounting to $1,626,542,000 in 2020. No such dividend was
received from Hengda Real Estate in 2019.

RIEM SRR FAFTEE 2R EHE - A%5E
R200F X ZHERMESBARAR ([EXH
) W HURR £.1,626,542,000 7T ° R 20195 i 8
BAEKRRERERS o
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Finance costs 7  BVERK

Interest on: FEXH :
Bank loans FITER 861,045 1,000,809
Other borrowings HifEE 187,042 98,505
Lease liabilities HEERE 22,383 25,190
Loans from the ultimate holding company REZLERRRZER 117,646 117,054
Loans from the immediate holding company REEEERARIZER 19,348 33,213
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KEREHBARZER 148,157 123,033
Loans from a joint venture RE—HEELRRZER 4,944 24,338
Loans from an other related company RE—HHEMBBEB AR ZER 7,322 7,523
Loans from non-controlling shareholders REFERRE 2 ER - 7,642
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at ~ WIFEBRFR AL B EZ S/
fair value through profit or loss BELNERZ B 1,367,887 1,437,307
Interest accrued on contract liabilities BHAEETZFIE 466,227 420,343
Less: Interest expense capitalised into properties & : EEPWEREFENL
under development (842,076) (1,296,440)
992,038 561,210
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.54% —4.84% per annum * EERANE IR EB3.54%ZE4.84% (20194 :

(2019: 3.36% —4.96%). 3.36% % 4.96%) BT o
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8  Profit before taxation

The Group’s profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) Cost of sales

B B il i
AEERBARFEMG / (GEA) THIRER

(a) SHEHRA

Cost of properties and inventories sold BEMERTFERE 6,720,360 6,632,462
Cost of services provided RERBERA 3,268,071 3,161,888
9,988,431 9,794,350

(b) Staff costs (b) BTHRA

Wages and salaries TERF®
Equity-settled share option expense PARR A 2 FE iR i =2
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE MR

1,993,731 1,756,027
10,525 26,836
92,651 156,235

2,096,907 1,939,098
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8  Profit before taxation (continued) 8 BRBiniEA ()
(c) Other items (c) HAMbEA

Amortisation of prepaid land lease

BN L FR

payments 15 1,192 1,141
Depreciation charge mELH
— owned property, plant and —BEYE - WELRE
equipment 196,248 202,260
— right-of-use assets —FRAREE 44,511 33,259
240,759 235,519
Variable lease payment not included in ~ Rt AEEBEFEZ
the measurement of lease liabilities AEMAERNK 2,811 2,085
Impairment losses on property, plant W - BEREE R ERE
and equipment (note) (B =E) 117,427 =
Impairment losses,” (reversal of MERE / CREBERER)
impairment losses)
— trade receivables — R 21,965 16,625
— prepayments, deposits and other —BFE ek
receivables o FEWGRIE 32,758 27,265
— other financial assets —HiepEE (56,628) (14,942)
Net foreign exchange loss R Ve 59,333 19,325
Rental income on investment properties X EMER S W AN EZLE
less direct operating expenses of iz 331,224,000 (2019
$331,224,000 (2019: $339,128,000) % 1 339,128,0007T) (891,971) (731,863)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ HEWE - BE k& E2EE
equipment 1,683 732
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEB &
— audit services — ZERS 6,050 5,830

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s hotel operations in
mainland China was adversely affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 and
certain assets related to those operations have indications of impairment.
With the assistance of Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal Limited
("JLL"), an independent firm of professionally qualified property valuers, the
Group assessed the recoverable amounts of those assets based on their
value in use. Impairment losses of $117,427,000 were recognised in “Other

operating expenses”.

Mt : B E2020F 12 A1 HIEFE - A5

1A B K B /OB 5 38 & 2 B COVID-19
HIEBRENEETE  HZEEEMHE
ENETEEGERERR - I£8 L
BELSERYELEMPEBHTLE
FERBABRAR ([{F2H1T])
MBI T AEEFEZSEENT
el EREFEREEET  WMER
$8117,427,000 TR [ b 4E & B> | A
TR ©



170

Shenzhen Investment Limited 734232 E R A 7]
Annual Report &%} 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
T 75 e 2% B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5455) » HrE £ 1B THR)

9

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2020 is calculated at 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as the Group has no assessable profits
arising in or derived from Hong Kong for year (2019: nil).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands (‘BVI"), the
Group is not subject to any income tax in the BVI.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject to
corporate income tax (‘CIT") at a statutory rate of 25% on their respective
taxable income during the year.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT’) is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
from sale of properties less deductible expenditures including amortisation
of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.

9

BAHBRZ R

2020 F BB H B 2 BERBEENEERS
@ AIZ16.5% (20194F : 16.5%) ZFiK&ME o
ARAEBEFRTERNEEEL S REER G
Fl - A EGEAFGHHRERE (20197 -
&) o

BELBELES ([XBRLHE|) ZRAR
90) - AEEBENEBELHSHMETH
8% -

REMBRERE - FR - PENEARER
BARRBBARETE R R 25% BB EEAEH
(TEEMBH)

PR IIEES ([ LRER ) B ER
{7 1230%£60% RER B - LR E#D
MHENEABRRRERELIERESN
ELCENGRE/ESTk: St an )1
¥ o

Current tax: BIEAREIE -
Mainland China CIT B RREREMEBH 1,936,585 960,133
Withholding tax on dividend W& S 78 164,194 99,207
LAT in mainland China AR B AP i A2 (E Y 3,070,079 862,442
Deferred tax T IE
Mainland China CIT NS (1,036,861) 501,143
Withholding tax on dividend % 8 FE L 196,461 5,081
LAT in mainland China R B A e £ M A (E F (160,345) (120,759)
Total tax charge for the year AEEHES L85 4,170,113 2,307,247
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9 Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 9 fFAHEBEZHER (H)
(continued)

Profit before taxation BREE AT A 8,133,603 6,684,537
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated & & EMAEH X H 2 BREL AR
at the rates applicable to the respective tax ZHEMA
jurisdictions 2,048,668 1,650,379
Profits less losses attributable to joint ventures and & & /A &) KBk & A & FE(5 % A
associates REE (274,246) (445,067)
Income not subject to tax BART 2 WA (455,764) (6,803)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REER 2 HIABE 2B
g 218,685 311,508
Tax effect of prior years' tax losses utilised HRZATFENIEBEZ
HETE (49,784) (33,421)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised  FRERER 7 T =58 2 B
FE 20,459 15,645
Expenses not deductible for tax TENRzZAY 119,140 154,456
Effect of withholding tax on distributable profits of & B f B A FEH B 2 7] Al £ 2R
the Group’s subsidiaries in mainland China Al R R 2 360,655 104,288
LAT T g ER 2,909,734 741,683
LAT deductible for PRC CIT purpose SR BRI A HIR L
TR ER (727,434) (185,421)

Actual tax expense EEMERY 4,170,113 2,307,247
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10 Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as
follows:

10

HEEMWE

BEEBDREHFEIBIMNERAR (REESE
FRER) B FE2BRECAEEESHE M
T

Salaries, Equity settled
allowances Retirement share option
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme expense
fees in kind bonuses contributions Sub-Total (Note)
HRAX 4
e 2 Bfg ZERE
EEHe  RENAE BETA SRR it EX (W)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i i r i
2020 2020%
Executive directors: BIEE:
Lu Hua EES - 3,304 1,628 777 5,709 636 6,345
Liu Chong (ii) 22 - 375 1,318 251 1,944 426 2,370
Huang Wei & - 3,139 1,542 742 5,423 604 6,027
Mou Yong (i) £B() - - 430 - 430 426 856
Liu Shichao (ii) Ehere() 165 - - - 165 - 165
Dong Fang (i) E1(0) - 957 2,079 457 3,493 95 3,588
Cai Xun (i) 22 il - 316 452 107 875 - 875
165 8,091 7,449 2,334 18,039 2,187 20,226
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Wu Jiesi (iv) RER () 248 - - - 248 - 248
Liu Shichao (ii) Ehere() 165 - - - 165 - 165
M3 - - - 413 - 43
Independent non-executive BUFNTES :
directors:
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RIEHE 330 - - - 330 - 330
Li Wai Keung Z(RR 380 - - - 380 - 380
Wong Yau Kar, David ERE 380 - - - 380 - 380
1,090 - - - 1,090 - 1,090
1,668 8,091 7,449 2,334 19,542 2,187 21,729

Notes:

(i) On 26 May 2020, Mou Yong retired as an executive director.

(i) On 23 July 2020, Liu Chong resigned as an executive director, and Dong Fang was
appointed as executive director. On the same day, Liu Shichao was re-designated
as an executive director of the Company.

(i)~ On 27 August 2020, Cai Xun was appointed as an executive director.

(iv)  On 14 September 2020, Wu Jiesi resigned as a non-executive director.

()  M20205E5H26H @ EEREHNTES -

(i)  FA2020%F7 A238 @ BISBIRITEERE
FREZEAANITES - BB - RtEBRETA
RARMITES -

(i) ggzozoieﬂ 27TH - BERZERITE

(iv) ggzozoigﬂma CREERBEINTE
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10 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 10 #HEME (8)

Salaries, Equity settled
allowances Retirement share option
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme expense
fees in kind honuses  contributions  Sub-Total (Note)
S ‘ S  mERmE
Yk EY BiREAa T2/ NG (FizE)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
7 ; T
2019 2019
Executive directors: WTEE :
Lu Hua BE = 3,207 853 708 4,768 1,428 6,196
Liu Chong 2% = 1,028 804 859 2,187 957 3,144
Huang Wei &R - 3,082 811 675 4,568 1,357 5925
Mou Yong &5 = 680 539 233 1,452 957 2,409
- 7,997 3,007 1,971 12,975 4699 17,674
Non-executive directors: FHITES
Wu Jiesi RED 330 = = = 330 - 330
Liu Shichao -y 330 - - - 330 - 330
660 - - - 660 - 660
Independent non-executive BUFNTES :
directors:
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RER 330 - - - 330 - 330
Li Wai Keung 3L 380 - - - 380 - 380
Wong Yau Kar, David BRE 380 - - - 380 - 380
1,090 - - - 1,090 - 1,090
1,750 7,997 3,007 1,971 14,725 4699 19,424
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors under T ARG AN 245 2 B IR B S 4B AR IR AR R R AR
the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share options is measured BRTEIRTES 2 BREZGHERE - %5
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment transactions IBREEEDIZERAEBABUARND I HR
as set out in note 2(s)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments SEE (R FE205)() 2 €5 BEE R B
to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments i #5% () A% 2N T B A 57 88 AT 4R WK Bf = 1) 3 28
are forfeited prior to vesting. BAEFERASBEEANZBIRE ©
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number of ZEEYNZ 2 FERERLEREZXE
options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme” in the BREBEEAN  BERESSHREZ (B

directors’ report and note 37. BRAEET B RMIEST ©
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11 Five highest paid employees 11 h#akFEHER
The five highest paid employees during the year included four directors FFEE AR EERENELES (2019
(2019: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note F:ZRESF) ZEESIMEFBERNLX
10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one BIZE10 o 2N —% (20194 : M%) EARQF
(2019: two) non-director highest paid employees of the Company are as EEVRRFRENAFE  MEFBNT
follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERREYHZ 1,030 1,863
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 937 1,477
Equity-settled share option expense (note) AR A 2 FE e iR =2 (I3E) 202 1,887
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE MR 375 648
2,544 5,875
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose remuneration BREZHN HeBUTHEZSSHEEHE
fell within the following bands is as follows: mE

Number of employees

EEHH
2020
2020
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 2,500,001 7c%3,000,0007T 1 1
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000 3,000,001 7c%3,500,0007T - 1
1 2
Note: Share options were granted to one (2019: two) non-director highest paid employees Mzt :— % (2019F : MB) ZeFEERERER
in respect of his services to the Group, further details of which are included in the AEERSMERBRE  SEE— B
disclosures in note 37 to the financial statements. The fair value of these options, TR IERRMT 7 2 HWEERA © 3%
which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, EEBREZ A ARE (EERFEBHENRES
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial RABR) CAREBRHET - Mt ARE
statements for the current year is included in the above non-director highest paid EUBHRERZESBEFALXBRESINZ &

employees’ remuneration disclosures. R EEME 2 BEEHA -
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12 Earnings per share 12 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) WRIEAREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit FREABFEERBAD AR RE
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $3,722,856,000 e85 F3,722,856,0007T (20194 :
(2019: $4,062,796,000) and the weighted average of 8,858,380,832 4,062,796,0007T) RFANE EITEAR
ordinary shares (2019: 8,548,473,879) in issue during the year, INHEF19%18,858,380,832% (20194 :
calculated as follows: 8,548,473,879/% ) T E - ;tE AW
T
() Weighted average number of ordinary shares ()  ZBRZIMEFEGE

Number of shares

BAREE
2020
20205
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M ATBEEBTERAR 8,833,437,048 8,413,711,807
Effect of shares issued in respect of scrip AR EE BTG
dividends e 24,943,784 109,352,814
Effect of share options exercised BT EREZE - 25,409,258
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A12 A31 B E @Az I
at 31 December THE 8,858,380,832  8,548,473,879
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) R REF
For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the effect of HZE2020F N2019F12A31HIEFE -
conversion of share option scheme (note 37) was anti-dilutive and the EmERETE (HF37) IYEARE
diluted earnings per share for the year is therefore equal to the basic E Rl FREREERFASAER

earnings per share. EAREF o
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13 Dividends

13 BB

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:

Final dividend declared for 2019 —HK11.00 cents per
share (2019: declared for 2018 —HK11.00 cents
per share) (note a/b)

BRBFADRBS

2019F ERA B E — BA11.00781L
(20194 : 2018FERAHME —
FA11.00740) (KisEab)

Scrip shares RERH 161,488 675,777
Cash B 810,190 252,630
971,678 928,407
Interim —HK7.00 cents (2019: HK7.00 cents) per RERRR S — SR EEAR7.001L (2019
ordinary share (note a/c) F 1 7.008ML) (MizFa/c)
Scrip shares RERH - 478,407
Cash B 622,993 129,054
622,993 607,461
Dividends proposed after the end of the reporting period & HiAR %D R 2 A
Final dividend of HK11.00 cents (2019: final dividend of REARRE B L AAZ11.0051L (2019
HK11.00 cents) per ordinary share (note a/d) F + RERRE11.0080L) (Fizta/d) 978,988 971,678

Notes:
a.

The shareholders are given the option of receiving these dividends wholly in cash,
or wholly in new fully paid share(s) of the Company in lieu of cash, or partly in cash
and partly in the form of scrip shares.

The Company declared a final dividend of HK11.00 cents per share in respect
of year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to $971,678,000, of which
$810,190,000 were paid in cash and the remaining balance of $161,488,000 were
settled in the form of 66,456,067 scrip shares on 17 August 2020.

The Company declared a final dividend of HK11.00 cents per share in respect
of year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to $928,407,000, of which
$252,630,000 were paid in cash and the remaining balance of $675,777,000 were
settled in the form of 237,949,329 scrip shares on 15 August 2019.

The Company declared an interim dividend of HK7.00 cents (2019:HK7.00 cents)
per share in respect of year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to $622,993,000
(2019: $607,461,000), which were fully paid in cash (2019: $129,054,000 were
paid in cash and the remaining balance $478,407,000 were settled in the form of
155,427,734 scrip shares) on 14 October 2020.

On 30 March 2021, the board of directors recommends a final dividend of HK11.00
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: final dividends of
HK11.00 cents per share, which will be fully paid in cash.). The proposed final
dividends for the year are subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and has not been recognised as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

The amount of the final dividend for 2020 was calculated on the basis of
8,899,893,115 shares in issue as at 30 March 2021.

Wi

a.

BREEEIZEZ RS - 2IURARFH
HRBHRBBEES I N ARSI HARE
52 A RNKREZER S -
ARARBEERZEZE2019F12A31H 1k
EFEZAPREFTRI1.0081 - &
971,678,000 * A2020F8 H17H » IR &
% 17810,190,0007T * M f& T 45 £4161,488,000
JCLA66,456,067 AR X B A% 1D 2 FE X EfT o

ARARIEERZEBE2018F12 4318 1k
FEZAPREFTRI1.0081 - &
928,407,0007T * M201948 A15H » AES
% 15252,630,0007T M fR T 45 82675,777,000
TCLA237,949,329 8 X B %D 2 FE (BT ©

AABEMEBE2020F12 31 B IEEE
TIREMT7.0058l (20194 : 7.0051L) <
FRHARR B - A $£622,993,0007T (20194 :
607,461,0007T) * W E AR & B
(20194 : 129,054,000 TAREFF) * &
4N 45 82478,407,000 T B 722020510 A 14
A LA155,427, 734 IR B ID 2 FE R HE -
R2021F3A30H » EEG A ZE 2020912
AR IEFEERREFR.008102 K
HARR B (20194 : KRHEAPG B A%11.00781L -
WG LASR & BB AT) o AFEERARHIR
BAEARN R RN EREREBFE A Eit
HEWRREARHRERRAE ©

2020F 2 AR EARR B £ B TR B 1A 2021 F 3 A
30 A 2 © %%778,899,893, 115 XA D 5T & ©
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14 W% ~ W Rt

Ownership

interest in

|easehold

land and Other

buildings  properties Furniture,

held for  leased for Leasehold fixtures Motor Plant  Construction

ownuse  ownuse improvements and equipment  vehicles and machinery in progress

REEBR

W OEBEE  BENE B 2B BER
fiekes  HEUE £ ET HeE HBIR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
r r r r r r

At 31 December 2019 2019124311
and 1 January 2020 R2020E1R1H
Cost or valuation AT 3214520 343,574 450,420 357,353 83,747 85,889 2,820,494 7,424,999
Accumulated depreciation ~ 2FME (512,657) (69,227 (343,267) 27,959  (72,113) (52,533) - (1,321,756)
At 1 January 2020, R2020F1A18 -
net of accumulated ENBZHE
depreciation 2,761,865 274,347 107,153 85,394 11,634 33,356 2,829,494 6,103,243
Additions AE - 43,807 60,439 36,700 3,070 5,287 8,602 157,905
Acquisition of a subsidiary  WE—FIHELA 6,347 - - 17,765 1,559 - - 25671
Transfer from investment B 554N
properties (note 17) (h&17) 6,654 - - - - - - 6,654
Transfer from properties ~ BBEFEFE L NE
held for sale (note 18) (Ktzk18) 20,741 - - - - - - 0,74
Transfer from construction EEBERIR
in progress 25,444 - 1,593 25,388 - 511 (52,936) -
Derecognition of BIERGRRAE
right-of-use assets - (15,011) - - - - - (15,011)
Disposals & (1,351) - - (7,988) (1,325) (1,052) - (11,716)
Impairment losses HEFE (117,427) - - - - - - (11742)
Depreciation provided AEERERE
during the year (83,229)  (79,405) (61,882) (41,890) (3,765) (5,482) - (275,653)
Bxchange realignment A% 183,218 14,842 5,158 7,633 722 2,106 199,508 413,187
At31 December 2020, H2020512/31H
net of accumulated BRZANE
depreciation 2,802,262 238,580 112,461 123,002 11,895 34,726 2,984,668 6,307,504
At 31 December 2020: R2020E12 /4318 :
Cost or valuation AT 3439759 380,175 548,290 441,709 90,147 86,680 2,984,668 7,971,437
Accumulated depreciation  £:HHTE (637,497)  (141,595) (435,829) (318,707) (78,252 (51,963) - (1,663,843)
Net carrying amount ERFE 2,802,262 238,580 112,461 123,002 11,895 34,726 2,984,668 6,307,594
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14  Property, plant and equipment (continued) 14 9% - BERZE (B)

Ownership
interest in
leasehold
land and
buildings
held for
0Wn use

Other
properties
leased for

wn Use

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture,
fixtures
and equipment

Motor
vehicles

Plant
and machinery

Construction
in progress

$'000 $000
T T

At 1 January 2019 R2019%1 A1H

Cost or valuation A E 3,293,841 48177 383,255 338,154 87,371 83884 1,661,455 5:896,137
Accumulated depreciation  Z3FHTE (519,183) - (280,504) (249,365)  (75,092) (67,351) - (1,181,49)
At 1 January 2019, 1201951 318 -

net of accumulated ENRZGHNE

depreciation 2,774,658 8177 102,751 88,789 12,279 26,633 1,661,455 4,714,642
Additions AE 1431 558,348 133,976 16,824 4,968 9852 1,248,779 1974178
Transfer from investment B ERENE

properties (note 17) (WizE17) 23,789 - - - - - - 2789
Transfer from properties ~ BEBFEGELNFE

held for sale (note 18) (FzE8) 93,662 - - - - - - 93,662
Transfer from construction  EBEHETR

in progress - - 2,392 18,163 - - (20,555) -
Transfer to investment ~ EEEHENZ

properties (note 17) (Wisk17) (200,279 (128,001) (24,643) - - = - (352923
Derecognition of BRI REEE

right-of-use assets - (127,245 (34,618) - - - - (161,863
Disposals HE (1,461) - - (1,082) (1,826) (1,563) (2,240) (8,172)
Revaluation (note) (R3] 216,775 - - - - - - 26,775
Depreciation provided AEERERE

during the year (93,460)  (69,227) (69,266) (35,262) (3,526) (746) - (271,48)
Exchange realignment ESAE (63,250) (7,705) (3,439) (2,038) (261) (720) (657,945 (125,358)
At 31 December 2019, M2019%128318

net of accumulated ENRZGHE

depreciation 2,761,865 274347 107,153 85,394 11,634 33356 2,829,494 6,103,243
At 31 December 2019:  #2019F12A318 ¢

Cost or valuation AR 3,274,502 343574 450,420 357,353 83,747 85,889 2,829,494 7,424,999
Accumulated depreciation ~ 2&HTE (512,657)  (69.227)  (343267) (271959  (72,113) (52,533) - (1,321,756)
Net carrying amount FESE 2,761,865 274,347 107,153 85,394 11,634 33356 2,829,494 6,103,243
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Note: The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revaluated at 31 December 2019
by JLL, an independent firm of professionally qualified property valuers who
have among their staff Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveys with recent
experience in location and category of property being valued. The surpluses and
deficits on revaluation of HK$485,070,000 and HK$268,295,000 were recognised
in asset revaluation reserve and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
respectively. These leasehold land and buildings are situated in mainland China
under medium term leases.

Had the revaluated properties held for own use carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amounts would have been:

14 9% - BERRHE (&)

i AEEsHEL W REFR2019F124
SIHHBIYEXSERYEMGEMMEH
T(EBHEIABTENEMESERS
8 RUEZNERERNGEF BAER
R EITREEM - EH2ABRLER
485,070,000 7T % 268,295,000 7T 2 AR E
ESfRERGRABERPER - %SHE
T RIEF AR BAONFEAEZS o

MEFEBRZEMYRERARREHEA
& RREERA

Ownership interest in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use

REHEEANBEE L RET
M A RS

1,870,054 1,981,134

On 5 January 2011, Shenzhen Nongke Group Limited (‘Nongke”), a
subsidiary acquired by the Group on 22 August 2014, entered into an
agreement with a real estate developer (the “Counterparty”), an independent
third party. Pursuant to the agreement, Nongke agreed to exchange certain
of its properties located at Longxi Garden (Z7t[E), Futian District,
Shenzhen, the PRC with an carrying amount of $563,434,000 (including
investment properties of $551,681,000 and property, plant and equipment
of $11,753,000 at 31 December 2020), for new properties with total gross
floor areas of 8,469.85 square metres to be built by the Counterparty.
The new properties will be built by the Counterparty at the current location
of Longxi Garden upon demolishment of the existing properties owned by
Nongke. At the date of approval of these financial statements, the timetable
for the demolishment of these properties is not determined yet.

On 3 September 2012, Nongke entered into a supplemental agreement
with the Counterparty. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement, Nongke
agreed to further dispose of certain of its buildings located at Longxi
Garden with a carrying amount of $50,142,000 as at 31 December 2020
to the Counterparty for a cash consideration of RMB250,457,000, of
which RMB30,000,000 had been received by Nongke as of 31 December
2020 and was recorded as receipt in advance within “other payables
and accruals”. At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Counterparty has no obligations under the supplemental agreement to settle
the remaining consideration of RMB220,457,000 until the commencement
of demolishment of these properties.

R2011E1 A58 » FIMEMNEBBERA
a ([BR]) (KREER2014F8 A22 B 4
Z2—RBNBAR) BBYE=FRHERER
(I[85 1) T3 - M2020F12831H -
BEZGS  BERRAEBEURARERITE
HEREZEREREAS63,434,0007T (B
BEYE551,681,000c kD% - BEREE
11,753,00070) 2 & TR EVMEERE T TiEH
BEMEEASS,469.85F T K ZHME - HipE
BRERHEE 2 REMEBREREHREER
BEAMERR - RESHBEHREEMAE
DEMEZBERBRRDAET -

R2012F9A3H + BRIEHHF MR HE °
BEHZHZ  RREEREIE—FHE
HuReEReREREER2020F12A318 4
50,142,000 2 & TET - REREA/ARK
250,457,0007C * BE2020F12A31H + 2#
EUWEEH AR%30,000,0007T @ WiEATEW
FESA [EENSRERETER] - RZE
VBRREMOE - HHARZEWERBBR
T ERSERERRBRBEES T ZREAR
#220,457,0007T °
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14 W3 ~ Wil Kt ()
®2020%12 A31 0 » AEE R ARIMEGHREFE
/#264,984,0007T (20194 : 538,288,0007T)
BT IEHEE o

14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
At 31 December 2020, the Group has not yet obtained the ownership
certificates in respect of the buildings with a net carrying amount of
$264,984,000 (2019: $538,288,000).

R2020F12A318 » AEERFEAESES
ZHREFELA261,040,0007T (20194 :
605,816,0007T) &5 T T REFEER - £
AAEBRERRITERZER (H:E30@) -

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s land and buildings in
mainland China with a net carrying amount of approximately $261,040,000
(2019: $605,816,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (note 30(a)).

AT £ A B Ak

15 Prepaid land lease payments 15

Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1RZERHEE 33,884 35,763
Charge for the year AFEELH (1,192) (1,141)
Exchange realignment B 5 AR 2,157 (738)
Carrying amount at 31 December W12 A31BZREE 34,849 33,884
Current portion included in prepayments, FATBNFIE - F]e REMEYGIE

deposits and other receivables Z BERE (1,363) (1,304)
Non-current portion JEBNEAER (D 33,486 32,580

BNt EENFERETBEOFAZTEX
e 13t b PR 2 TN SRR o

Prepaid land lease payments represent prepayments for land use rights in
mainland China held under medium term leases.

16 Goodwill 16

Cost at 1 January 2020 7202091 A1 H 2 A 358,892
Exchange realignment b A 23,090
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2020 R2020F12 A31 B2 R AR REE 381,982
Cost at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 H ZKA 366,929
Exchange realignment fE AR (8,037)
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31 B 2R AR REE 358,892
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16 Goodwill (continued) 16 W& (%)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill L5 TR 2 B 4 e A
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is primarily related BREBAHMBB BELTEEaN EYERAS
to a cash-generating unit (“CGU") engaged in property development £z ARcELSN ([ReEEEN])
activities. The recoverable amounts of the CGU are determined based on o ReEFEM IKRESENRBEAS
a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial ERRERABE, = FHRANKELFE AR
budgets covering a three-year period approved by the Group’s senior eHREBAGECFRAEBEEE - ReRER
management. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 16% F16%3RE (2019F : 16%) FUHR © A7
(2019: 16%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks RAZIREABRERYRYMEBER 2 ERE
relating to the relevant business. B o
17 Investment properties 17 BEMHE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) HRMEEEE
Completed
investment
properties
at fair value
BAAETIR
ZBER
REME
$'000
T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 12020F1 A1 B ZBRAE 34,241,821
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —RMNE AR 103,076
Transfer from completed properties held for sale (note 18) HE# B ERE 2 BEKME (Hi3H18) 12,681
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 14) EREME - BER&E (HE14) (6,654)
Transfer to property under development (note 19) BREEEPYE (HFF19) (180,871)
Recognition of change in fair value upon transfer to BRERENEEERINEE
investment properties (1,545)
Decrease in fair value of investment properties REMERNAERD (675,583)
Exchange realignment BEE i, F 2 2,157,945

Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 12020512 A31 H ZBREE 35,650,870
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17 Investment properties (continued)

17 #EWE (H)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) MRMEEEE (8)
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development
at fair value at fair value
BRAEIE  BRARBEIR
Z BB ZERET
REME REME
$'000 $'000
=Wt =R
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 R2019%F1 A1 B 2 REE 26,775,311 2,367,800 29,143,111
Additions NE 18,572 600,220 618,792
Transfer from property, plant and EREVE - BEK
equipment (note 14) FfE (MiEE14) 352,923 - 352,923
Transfer from completed properties BREFEFEZE
held for sale (note 18) B E (fi718) 596,770 - 596,770
Transfer from property under development BB ZREFRYE
(note 19) (FtzE19) - 2,905,763 2,905,763
Transfer from investment properties under B #ERREY =&
development to completed investment EEERERENE
properties 6,703,781 (6,703,781) -
Transfer to property, plant and equipment  EHEZ%H - HER
(note 14) & (MiEE14) (23,789) - (23,789)
Transfer to completed properties BREREREZ
held for sale BERIE (20,184) - (20,184)
Transfer to property under development BERSRERYE
(note 19) (F3E19) (126,793) - (126,793)
Recognition of change in fair value upon ~ ERZEREMEETER
transfer to investment properties NREEE) 138,136 881,864 1,020,000
Increase in fair value of investment BREMER BN
properties 434,258 - 434,258
Exchange realignment PE i AR (607,164) (51,866) (659,030)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 M2019F12A31HZ
REE 34,241,821 - 34,241,821

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment properties
of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
$2,432,494,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: $2,107,180,000)
have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. The Group
is in the process of obtaining the relevant certificates.

R2020F12A31BEZREZFEN
52,432,494,0007 (20194 :
2,107,180,0007T) 2 NEEE TIREME
WAREFBIEANPIREFMEREE - A%
E{NEEAmEEE 2 FE -
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17 Investment properties (continued)

(a)

(b)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s investment properties with
a net carrying value of approximately $2,438,662,000 (2019:
$498,181,000) was pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (note 30(a)).

Fair value hierarchy

The Group’s investment properties are situated in mainland China and
are held under medium term leases. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties are commercial
based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.
The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31 December
2020. The valuations were performed by JLL, an independent firm of
professionally qualified property valuers who have among their staff
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience
in location and category of property being valued.

None of the Group’s investment properties measured at fair value are
categorised as Level 1 and Level 2 input. The Group's investment
properties are at Level 3 valuation.

The Group’s property manager and the General Manager from
Financial Management Department have discussion with the surveyors
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation
is performed at each interim and annual reporting date.

17 #EWE (H)

(a)

(b)

MR T R (A1)
M2020F12A318 » AEEREF
E4)52,438,662,0007T (20194 :
498,181,0007T) 2 EMEDE R -
EEREBERRITENZER (K
30()) °

VYR ET T
AEBZREMENRPBIARE - WAF
HANRBE - ADRESEREMEZL
B BERERSEENEETCREER
B o AEBEZREYER2020F12
A31B#ETER - ZEMERBLEES
ERYEGEMBERT (EBHETA
ERAEMBeEREE  RUELNE
RERIMEFBAESER) BT -

AEENRAEFECREVELERE
RE-—ERFE_EBBAE - AEEZKE
NERBRRE=EME -

RETHHEABREFRERE APETR
EF - REEY XK E A5 E IR A
prEeREMTREERRRGES
%O
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17 Investment properties (continued) 17 BEWE (H)
(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (b) ARMEEEHEH (5])
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key AT AREDEGREMB 2 EENARE
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: ZHABZHE -

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs  Range (weighted average)

EE (EFIR)

BER%E EXFUERGAE

At 31 December 2020:
2020125314 :

Commercial properties Income Capitalisation

WABER{LE

At 31 December 2019:
K2019F12H31H -

Commercial properties Income Capitalisation

L ON-EN |

Valuation techniques
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in the mainland
China is determined using income capitalisation method.

Income capitalisation method determines fair values by discounting
the projected cash flows associated with the properties using
capitalisation rates. The valuation takes into account expected
market rental growth and vacancy rate of the respective properties.
The discount rates used have been adjusted for the quality and
location of the buildings and the tenant credit quality. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the expected market
rental growth, and negatively correlated to the vacancy rate and the
capitalisation rates.

Capitalisation rate
BEETF method BR{b=E

Capitalisation rate
PEEETF method BEARb®

3% —7%

2%—7%

B1ER %
AEBURFRAEZRENERNAER
RUBRABAREETFIUAETE -

WABERMEEBEBRBEA X RAM
NEZBAREREBTELAME - ARM
HEERIENE BEMSHERERRE
BX - IRMRARLABTOERRILE
NEHEFPEEERFHAR - RAEME
HEEAHSEEERIMNNE  HEEZEX
RERCREMR
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Investment properties (continued)

(c) Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases
The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 15 years, with an
option to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased every year to
reflect market rentals. Certain leases include variable lease payment
terms that are based on the revenue of tenants.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in place at the reporting date will be receivable by the Group in future
periods as follows:

17 #EWE (H)

(c) NI AR LS 2 R BB Ak

TEERELEHEHERENE - BY
—RONFREIE15F - YHENIHAE
BH - ANERBEMEHER - BEMK
—REFEN—R - WRBRTSEE - &
THABSERBP KaEMATERENR

fERR

AEERRREABEUA RE BT L
P RARBEERE Y AR AEN RN
T

Within one year —FR 941,786 862,152
After one year but within five years —FEHBRER 1,771,935 1,662,588
After five years hFE 90,619 170,688

2,804,340 2,695,428

Completed properties held for sale

During the year ended 31 December 2020, completed properties held for
sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately $12,681,000
(2019: $596,770,000) were transferred to investment properties upon
change in use as evidenced by the signing of relevant tenancy agreements.
The differences of the fair value of these properties at the date of transfer
from their carrying amounts, amounting to net loss of $1,545,000 (2019:
net gain of $76,915,000), was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

18 HFEREZORImFE

REZE2020F12 A31BILEE © REAENE
12,681,0007T (20194 : 596,770,0007T) ¥
EREZEERMER R RENEREEER
BYEE  CEBEREWME - NERAH
BEMEZ A A EREREAAEERABRFSE
1,545,0007C (20194 : W#)%%876,915,000
TT) - ERRABERAER °
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18 Completed properties held for sale (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, completed properties
held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
$20,741,000 (2019: $93,662,000) were transferred to property, plant and
equipment, upon change in use as evidenced by the commencement of
owner-occupation.

The completed properties include costs of acquiring rights to use certain
lands, which are located in the mainland China, for property development
over fixed periods. Land use rights are held on leases of between 40 to 70
years.

19 Properties under development

18

19

FlEfeE 2 OB E (8)
REZE2020F12A31 B LEE - RERESD
#£20,741,0007C (20194 : 93,662,0007T)
ERECEERMERETATRERENE
% CEBRENE - BEREHE -

EERNEBRNETHRARNERERGSE
TRRFEAEZ L HEREZAR - L
REREORE - FHRNTFLOETOF -

Bk

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20205 2019
12A31H 12H31H
$'000 $'000
T T
Land in mainland China R B REE 2 £

— 50 years or more —B0FHIA L 24,231,885 13,582,953
— between 10 and 50 years —10FE&E50F 6,083,661 4,204,767
Development expenditure FE 10,606,818 4,489,441
40,922,364 22,277,161

Less: Write-down of properties under w o BRPYERE
development (175,531) -

40,746,833 22,277,161
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19

Movement in properties under development during the year is as following:

B (8)
ERTOERERNZEHMT -

31 December
2020

20205

12A31H
$'000
Fr

31 December
2019

20194
12A31H

$'000
T

Land in mainland China, at cost:

RPBEAERE L - TR

At beginning of year F1 17,787,720 29,408,886
Additions NE 9,657,384 4,519,589
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —RMNE AR 1,173,533 -
Transfer to completed properties held for sale ERERERE 2 OB DE (232,193) (14,217 244)
Transfer to investment properties (note 17) ERERENE (F=E17) - (1,584,336)
Transfer from investment properties (note 17) ERAKREME (WEF17) 180,871 126,793
Exchange realignment BEE i, 8 1,748,231 (465,968)
At 31 December MW12831H 30,315,546 17,787,720
Development expenditure, at cost: R - A
At beginning of year E4 4,489,441 8,817,721
Additions N 6,740,455 5,570,480
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —RMNE AR 504,616 -
Transfer to completed properties held for sale ERRRERE OB DE (1,725,385) (8,436,860)
Transfer to investment properties (note 17) ERELENE (F=E17) - (1,321,427
Exchange realignment BE 3 B 597,691 (140,473)
At 31 December »12831H 10,606,818 4,489,441
Less: Write-down of properties under o BRFMERE
development (175,531) =
40,746,833 22,277,161
Properties under development expected to be TEERE z BRAYE
recovered:
Within one year —FR 11,347,777 2,181,536
After more than one year iR —F& 29,399,056 20,095,625
40,746,833 22,277,161
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B (8)

19 Properties under development (continued) 19

During the year ended 31 December 2019, properties under development of
$2,905,763,000 were transferred to investment properties upon change in
use. The excess of the fair value of those properties at the end of transfer
over their carrying amounts amounting to $881,864,000, was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. There was no such transfer
in 2020.

During the year, write-down of properties under development located in
Mainland China of HK$175,531,000 (2019: nil) was recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss due to the decrease in the
estimated net realisable value of certain properties under development.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s properties under development with
a net carrying amount of $2,972,440,000 (2019: $1,086,976,000) were
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 30(a)).

As at 31 December 2020, the application for certificates of land use rights
in mainland China for land with a net carrying amount of approximately
$9,453,862,000 (2019: $4,149,329,000) was still in progress.

The properties under development include costs of acquiring rights to
use certain lands, which are located in the mainland China, for property
development over fixed periods. Land use rights are held on leases of
between 40 to 70 years.

On 26 September 2020, Shum Yip Group provided funds to Shenzhen
Nongke Dongcheng Real Estate Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group,
to acquire a leasehold land in Shahu, Shenzhen at a consideration of
RMB3,233,876,000 (equivalent to HK$3,639,081,000). At 31 December
2020, the outstanding balance was included in amount due to the ultimate
holding company (see note 29(c)).

REBEZE2019512A31BIEEE -
2,905,763,0007T 2 B BAMERLE Ak
BEREME - NERERE  ZEWEZA
AEBLEERES A881,864,000 TERER
ABRERATER - R2020F8 BB HEE -

FR - ARETURFEAEZERTUEN
BATERFEERYD  UALEERABER
NEEREREPYWERE75,531,000/8 7T (2019
F®|) o

R2020F12831H - AEBZREFE
2,972,440,0007C (20194 : 1,086,976,000
L) ZEETMECER - FAREBTERR
TERZER (HEE30(@) °

MN2020F 12 A31H  EEFELY
9,453,862,0007T (20194 : 4,149,329,000
TT) 2B v T ifE AREENES S
q:l o

ERPNZEBRREE RN ZAEREE
TURFEAEZ LHEREZAR - L6
REZBOSE - FHNTFAETOF -

R2020F 98260 ' XEEERNAEENB
AAIRYITEN R EXERARIRHRESH
RBRRFYDBENEEL REAAR
#3,233,876,0007T (1B %3,639,081,000/%
JT) ° M2020F12 318 » REELHAE
FRAEIERARZIE (RHFE29()) °
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i i RE 5
REEHR - REBEERMNE D AREE
REEEZRBFEINMT -

20 Right-of-use assets 20
The analysis of the net book value of the Group's right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

At 31 December
2020

At 31 December
2019

R20195
124318

$'000
T

M2020%F

12A31R
$'000
Fr

Included in “property, plant and equipment”:

AT - BERRE]

Ownership interests in leasehold land RIFEE ARHE i &

and buildings held for own use, carried BTN EER

at fair value RO EYER 14 2,802,262 2,761,865
Other properties leased for own use, A AMEENX -

carried at depreciated cost BB AR ER 14 238,580 274,347
Included in “Prepaid land lease payments”: SEATHEMGLBHEEMR]
Prepaid land lease payments AR LSRR 15 33,486 32,580
Included in “Investment properties”: SEATREME] :
Ownership interests in leasehold investment REERENERNE

properties, carried at fair value s - RARBEIIK 17 35,650,870 34,241,821
Included in “Completed properties AATRESEZ

held for sale”: EERME] :
Completed properties held for sale BIERE ZERRME 18 17,562,192 21,457,104
Included in “Properties under development”: SFATRERYE] :
Properties under development BRERAYE 19 30,315,546 17,787,720

86,602,936 76,555,437
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20 Right-of-use assets (continued)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or
loss is as follows:

20 fERREEE ()

REGTHEANABAE LRI AMNMT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by EHEBEESRNEI D 2R AREEL

class of underlying asset: TERY :
Ownership interest in leasehold land and REEERAMNHEE L REFH
building sheld for own use PR 83,229 93,460

Other properties leased for own use HEigBHEEmE 44,511 33,259
Amortisation charge of right-of-use assets by R EEERED 2 EREEE L

class of underlying asset: BT -

Prepaid land lease payments BRI AERNRK 1,192 1,141
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) HEBRENFE (EE7) 22,383 25,190
Expense relating to short-term leases and FHE RSN RS R

other leases with remaining lease term ending ZEIfER EMHERR HAX

on or before the end of reporting period 7,475 7,965
Expense relating to leases of low-value BEEEENS (TREKEBEE

assets, excluding short-term leases of MEHBHE) AlEzRAY

low-value assets 445 155
Variable lease payments not included in the A AHEGGBHEZAEHEMNRK

measurement of lease liabilities 2,811 2,085
COVID-19-related rent concessions received BUEERCOVID- 198BS BE

(Note 2(c)) (HizE2(c) (3,664) =

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were $9,701,191,000
(2019: $5,698,160,000). This amount included the purchase of a leasehold
property of $9,657,384,000 (2019: $5,139,812,000), and the remainder
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements.

FR - RAEEFAEEERI 701,191,000
(20194 : 5,698,160,0007T) ° ZeEBHE
EEMEY#9,657,384,0007C (20194 :
5,139,812,00070) © HEFZEMEERH
B NEACREREMFUBEE o
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20 Right-of-use assets (continued)

21

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis of lease
liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from leases that are not yet
commenced are set out in notes 29(d), 31 and 39(b), respectively.

At 31 December 2020, the above balance includes right-of-use assets in
respect of certain leasehold properties from the Group’s immediate holding
company, an associate and fellow subsidiaries of $2,476,000 (2019:
$9,305,000),$77,748,000 (2019: $98,824,000) and $52,202,000 (2019:
$112,970,000), respectively.

Investment in subsidiaries

The following lists contain only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class
of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

MR R E
Rt

20

21

Particulars of
issued/
paid up capital

BERT/
BRRA2FHE

MRS E (&)

FERENRSRLAE HEAEMIHA
AMAREABERNEEEENATEERHZ
FHE D BIE MM EE29(d) ~ 31 %39(b) °

R2020F12A310 « Ll#BRBEEREAEH
ERERAR - —HBERARKRZNEBAR
KETHENENFREEESFIA2,476,000
7t (20194 : 9,305,0007T) ~ 77,748,0007C
(20194 : 98,824,0007T) % 52,202,0007T
(20194 : 112,970,0007T) °

P o 2 v

ATIRERSHARERE BEXRESR
IBYENCMBRRFE - BRAEHAN -
PREFI (D B R1S BE AR o

Proportion of
effective
ownership
interest

held by

the Group

F&EEE
BRAEE
Bi#zEDL

Principal
activities

Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) PRC/mainland China

Co., Ltd. (note a/b/e)

$1,702,500,000

100%  Property investment

and development

AXETHE (8) BRAA TE/ REAR 1,702,500,0007C 100% MEEERFAZ
(BizEa/b/e)

Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. PRC/mainland China RMB800,000,000 75.05%  Property investment
(“Shum Yip Terra") (note a/d/e/f) and development

AEER (RE) BARRA FE L/ FEAR AR1:800,000,0007T 75.05% MFRERFAE
(TRERA]) (Mizrasdie/)

Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Co., Ltd. PRC/mainland China RMB1,042,050,000 100%  Property investment

(note a/b/e)

and development

RERE (5E) BRAR (MiFable) mE/REAE  ARE1,042,050,0007T 100% MERERFAE

Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. PRC/mainland China US$710,000,000 100% Investment Holding
(note a/b/e)

REER ORI BB AR (Mitab/e) hE /B KR 710,000,000% 7T 100% HEALR
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21 Investment in subsidiaries (continued) 21

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

MR R E
L3k

Particulars of
issued/
paid up capital

BR7/
BRBRAZFHE

Proportion of
effective
ownership
interest

held by

the Group

F&EEE
BRAEE
BRZEN

Principal
activities

Shenzhen Terra Construction Co., Ltd. PRC/mainland China RMB30,000,000 75.05%  Manufacture and sale of
(note a/c) aluminum products

AMARRRERTRBRAA HE/ REAR AR#30,000,0007 75.05% AERHERNRD
(HMisFalc)

Shum Yip TaiFu Logistic Group Holding Co., PRC/mainland China RMB323,799,552 97.68%  Operation of warehouses
Ltd. (note a/c) and property

development

FEFEMRERRNERAF (Mikac) HE/ PEARE AE#323,799,5527C 97.68% KEEARMERE

Shenzhen Pengji Property Management PRC/mainland China RMB22,245,904 100%  Property management
Services Limited (note a/c)

AT RFERRHARAA R/ IR AR 22,245,9047 100% MxEE
(KizEalc)

Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Property PRC/mainland China RMB30,000,000 100%  Property management
Management Limited (note a/c)

AEEE (R NRERERAF hE REARE AE#30,000,0007C 100% MEER
(Wista/c)

Shum Yip Land Company Limited PRC/mainland China RMB1,807,600,000 100%  Property development
(note a/c)

REBMERAR (Mitac) hE/REARE  AK%1,807,600,0007T 100% #EF%

Great Assets Development (Shenzhen) Ltd. ~ PRC/mainland China US$100,744,000 95%  Property development
(note b)

FREEER ORI BRAR (M) hE  REARE 100,744,000% 7T 95% MEHE

Shenzhen Kezhigu Investment Limited PRC/mainland China RMB784,528,950 100%  Property development
(notes a/c) and property

investment
RImRzAREERAR (fizZalc) RE REARE ARH784,528,9507C 100% WIERBRIFRE



21

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

MR R E
ESE

193

Shenzhen Investment Limited 342275 fR A 7]
Annual Report £3§ 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
Fo 75 e 2% B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 & #5855} » B & B9 BT F7)

21 MEARHE ()

Proportion of
effective
ownership
interest

held by

the Group

F&EEE
BRAEE
BRZEIL

Particulars of
issued/
paid up capital

Principal
activities

BRT/

BREAZHE FEER

Shenzhen Nongke Holdings Company
Limited (note a/c)

AmENEEER R (Mitac)

Shenzhen Nongke Property Development
Limited (‘Nongke”) (note a/c)

FITENEHEREERAR ([ER])
(Kizxalc)

Shenzhen Shum Yip Sky Park Co., Ltd
(note a/c)

FITRERBER AR (Hitalc)

Shenzhen International Qianhai Real Estate
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (‘SIQ Real Estate”)
(note a/c/g)

REBAEER (R BRAF
(TRIBEZE]) (MiTalc/g)

Maanshan Shum Yip Property Limited
(note a/c)

BRIVRFHEBR R (Mitac)

Shenzhen Shum Yip Shenheng Investment
Co. Ltd (note a/c)

AmREREREFRAH (MiEa/c)

Shum Yip Southern Land Property Limited
(note a/c)

BMNARE I wEBRRE (Mitac)

PRC/mainland China

RE/HEARE

PRC/mainland China

RE/hEARE

PRC/mainland China

B/ EARE

PRC/mainland China

e/ hEAR

PRC/mainland China

EREAR

PRC/mainland China

RE/hEARE

PRC/mainland China

EhE AR

RMB200,000,000 100% Investment holding,
property investment
and property
management

AK%200,000,0007T 100% REER - WERE
RMEER
RMB30,000,000 100%  Property development
and property
investment
AR30,000,0007T 100% VERZERMERE
RMB100,000,000 100%  Property development
AK%100,000,0007C 100% MERE
RMB10,000,000 50%  Property development
and property
investment
AR#10,000,0007C 50% WMEREZERMERE
RMB70,000,000 99.77%  Property development
AR#70,000,0007C 99.77% MERE
RMB10,000,000 100%  Business services
AR®10,000,0007T 100% X% HH%
RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
AR50,000,0007C 100% MERE



194

Shenzhen Investment Limited 734232 E R A 7]
Annual Report &%} 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 25 A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5455) » HrE £ 1B THR)

21

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

MR R E
L3k

21 M

Particulars of
issued/
paid up capital

BR7/
BRBRA2FHE

\

L\\

k% (5)

Proportion of
effective
ownership
interest

held by

the Group

F&EEE
BRAEE
BRZEN

Principal
activities

FEER

Foshan Shunde Shum Yip Property Limited.
(note a/c)

BT RERMESR A
(HMisFalc)

Shum Yip Land (Guangzhou) Co, Ltd.
(note a/c)

AxEW (BN) BRAE (Mitac)

Hunan Shum Yip Land Pengxing Land
Co, Ltd. (note a/c)

HEREREEXERAR (MiEac)

Dongguan Shum Yip Songshan Lake Land
Co, Ltd. (note a/c)

REMARRIAERERAR (Fiza/c)

Shenzhen Nongke East City Real Estate
Co, Ltd. (note a/c)

RMEMRBERERAF (FiEac)

Shenzhen Shum Yip Technology
Development Co, Ltd. (note a/b)

RITREMBEREARAF (MiEab)

PRC/mainland China

E/hE AR

PRC/mainland China

hE /R EAR

PRC/mainland China

EREAR

PRC/mainland China

RE /R EAR

PRC/mainland China

EREAR

PRC/mainland China

e /R EAR

RMB20,000,000

AEK#20,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AE#50,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AE#10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AE#10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AE#10,000,0007T

US$2,000,000

2,000,000 7T

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Property development

EGES

Property development

EE:S

Property development

GRS

Property development

kS

Property management

MEER

Professional technical
service

SR RIMART
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21 MEARHE ()

Notes: BieE -

a.  The English translation of the company’s name is for reference only. The official a.  DREZEANEBREHRSE - QA2 EXNEHE
name of the company is in Chinese. R o

b.  Established in the PRC as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise b. REAEBKIZAEIIEBELE

c.  Established in the PRC as a domestic enterprise with limited liability c. RPBEKIZABANBREERE

d.  Established in the PRC as a Sino-foreign joint venture enterprise d. E/:\'ZP B B INE “ﬁ%

e.  Subsidiaries directly held by the Company e. HBARAEERAZMEA

f. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s effective interest (including equity interest f. E/‘2020¢12H 318 - $%E@x§?%%§%2
both directly and indirectly by the Company) in Shum Yip Terra was 75.05%. ERER (BEAARAEELHEREGZ

RR A #E %) 7575.05% ©

g.  Although the Group’s effective ownership interest in this company was equal to or 9. RBEASERZARNEREEER %E"

less than 50%, the management considers that the Group controls this company HADR50% F EEERAAELBEEBRZA

through more than 50% voting power in the board or shareholders’ meeting of this
company and therefore this company is accounted for as subsidiary of the Group.

The following tables lists out the information of the subsidiaries of the
Group which has a material non-controlling interest (NCI). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the amounts before any
inter-company elimination.

Shum Yip Terra

AIMEEF R RAGHEGE0%A LNKER
RESIZ AR - Bl - ZARERREEN
MERRIAR -

TRIMASBREBEAFEB#ER 2 B
ZEH e TXz@JZEﬁ%ﬁﬂ%EWMﬂ’FE

&R

ARYHEZ S8 -

RERR

NCI percentage FERESEA DL 24.95% 24.95%
Current assets MEEE 9,860,760 7,744,483
Non-current assets ERBEE 9,151,054 8,774,285
Current liabilities MENRE (7,714,557) (7,052,823)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (2,161,688) (1,308,424)
Net assets BEFE 9,135,569 8,157,521
Carrying amount of NCI RS2 REE 2,279,324 2,035,301
Revenue Wz 1,319,054 1,508,821
Profit for the year FRmH 656,533 851,711
Total comprehensive income PENEER 1,249,948 640,381
Profit allocated to NCI DT IEE R R 2 A 163,805 212,502
Dividend declared to NCI BERTIHERER RS 67,839 120,109
Cash flows generated from operating activities RETFBMEIRERE 1,390,350 505,332
Cash flows generated from investing activities REEBMEZRERE 5,861 140,684
Cash flows used in financing activities REFBMACRERE (1,730,886) (168,181)
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21 Investment in subsidiaries (continued) 21 MEARRE ()
SI) Real Estate il B ¥

NCI percentage FERERBS 50.00% 50.00%
Current assets MENE B 8,446,057 4,782,415
Non-current assets FRBEE 25,817 272
Current liabilities mEEE (5,856,029) (2,186,766)
Non-current liabilities FERBERE = (125,551)
Net assets BERE 2,615,845 2,470,370
Carrying amount of NCI R REE 1,307,923 1,235,185
Revenue Wz 23,886 2,897
Loss for the year FREE (12,908) (26,500)
Total comprehensive income ZENREHE 145,475 (81,919)
Loss allocated to NCI DR TIEERER BB (6,454) (13,250)
Dividend paid to NCI ST IEERER 2 RE - =
Cash flows generated from operating activities RETHMEZHEETE 2,461,317 1,526,988
Cash flows used in investing activities REGBA RERE (3,825,061) (41)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from BETE (FTA)/FR2

financing activities RenE (132,661) 131,825
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Interests in associates 22

Unlisted JEEMm 167,488 206,708
Listed in Hong Kong REALT 6,485,473 5,928,803
Provision for impairment* AR (816,000) (816,000

5,836,961 5,319,511

The provision for impairment is related to the Company’s interest in Coastal
Greenland Limited. In respect of the Group’s interest in Road King Infrastructure
Ltd. (‘Road King"), the board of directors consider there is no impairment after
considering the fact that there were no significant or prolonged decline in its fair
value below its cost.

Particulars of the material associate, which is accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
Business registration and registered
structure business share capital

BRTEE/

EHER  EBENE ERRA

REBBERRANEEFEREFRA
RIZRBERM - mAKEREHEZERA
A ([BY]) z#mms  KEBZ B2
AR EIBEERLEMETHREEREKA
f A ERE

ERESEREANBRR AR EEHEAA
BT :

Proportion of
effective

ownership interest
held by the Group Principal activities

FREREREEMRE

ERZEIL IBREHK
2020 2019

2020 20194

Road King Corporate Bermuda/ 749,336,566
mainland China ordinary shares

of $0.1 each

B Rl BRE/HEARE 749,336,566

FRAEEITZ

27.00 27.00  Development, operation
and management of
toll roads and property
development and
investment

27.00 27.00 BRZEREBKENK
PAR WS % R E
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Y

Interests in associates (continued)

Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
ordinary shares with a nominal value of $0.10 each are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The principal location
of Road King's business is mainland China.

The associate is not audited by KPMG, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the KPMG global network.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates comprise equity shares held
by the Company, except for Road King, the shareholdings of which are held
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect
of Road King adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

2

R A F R (47)

RO DRBEREEMALCBEREMERA - &
BREBCIOTZ EBBABTEMARIMAR
ARERLEN - BHEFREFMHRTEAK

B o

BEARYAKEBRSH S MEHMAZE
BREMEREBRAIRK

ARERBE AR RREBREARNRFE 2 ERE
Bin - BB RRRZBENERAR
AlZ2EMBRARA °

TRITHBERRE - NAEBEBRYRENE
ARRERFLARY HRAREEGEAMBRE
MNZEEE :

Current assets MENEE 71,973,077 64,923,667
Non-current assets FRBEE 31,307,758 25,758,960
Current liabilities MENRR (44,274,881) (39,096,002)
Non-current liabilities FREERE (25,964,152) (23,022,608)
Net assets BEFE 33,041,802 28,564,017
Less: Non-controlling interests B IR E S 12,114,009 9,697,968
Net assets attributable to equity shareholders BENARERRAEEEETE

of the associate 20,927,793 18,866,049
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HEREZAEERBE QAT 2EE ©

in the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEMBREZ LA 27.00% 27.00%
Carrying amount of the investment KEZREE 5,650,504 5,093,833
Revenue Wi 24,196,103 21,494,796
Profit for the year F 1R F) 2,783,596 3,676,626
Other comprehensive income Hit 2k 1,311,821 (767,495)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENGZEE 4,095,417 2,909,131
Dividend received from Road King BB RE 218,521 238,754
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Interests in associates (continued)
The following table sets out the aggregate financial information of the
Group’s other associates that are not individually material:

W Al R (A1)
TRITAEBENTEE HEBERFZA
ATTBER -

Share of the associates’ profit for the year and DIEH
total comprehensive income a5

N SN

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
investments in the associates

Al FRE A k2R

10,146 9,395

ERRIZREREAE

186,457 206,708

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of interests in associates
whose shares are listed in Hong Kong was $2,046,653,000 (2019:
$3,124,666,000).

On 3 August 2020, Shenzhen Nongke Holdings Company Limited (‘Nongke
Holdings”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and Shenzhen Shumyip
Jinsui Bio Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shumyip Jinsui®), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shum Yip Group, entered in an equity transfer agreement
pursuant to which Nongke Holdings agreed to sell the 16% equity interest
of Shenzhen Space Technology Co., Ltd. it held to Shumyip Jinsui for a
consideration of RMB42.87 million, recognizing HK$3,017,000 in profit.

Interests in joint ventures

nr }- /\ K
23 AE

EA2020¢12H31E RERDIER 7S L B &
NAIMER 2 AR EA2,046,653,0007T (2019
£ 1 3,124,666,0007T) ©

R20208 A3H  FIMEMNEBEERAF
(TERNEE] - XEBz2ENBAR) 2R
MAFXCEEMREERAA ([FEEE] -
FEEE 2 EMBLAR) T REE RS
Bt BREERENRESHLEERSEY
FIAZRBEEBRAR16%KE - REAAR
#42 87TE BT © $#153,017,0008 L& F °

Al

Unlisted LM

8,060,608 6,811,843
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23 Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures, which is accounted for
using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as

follows:

Nominal value of
registered capital

23 MEEAFER ()
FRERENGEUBERRARZALEEZEE
AEDFHEMT -

Percentage of
Frisz B At

Place of
registration and
business

Profit
sharing

Ownership
interest

Voting

power Principal activities

AMEAEE HRREZHY FrEgRs: REE  RHNPE  FEEH

Shenzhen Langtong Property RMB100,000,000  PRC/ 50 50 50  Property development and
Development Company mainland China property investment
Limited (‘Langtong”)

MITRBEHERKARAT  AR¥100,0000007 B/ HEAE 50 50 50 MERERMERE
(T8A@))

Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park US$62,000,000  PRC/ 37.53* 50 37.53*  Property investment and
(Group) Company Limited* mainland China development
(‘Tianan’)

RZGEY (£8) BRAR" 62,000000% &/ HEAE 37,53 50 3753 MERERRA%E
([R%])

Taizhou Shum Yip Investment RMB100,000,000  PRC/ 51 50 51 Provision of land
Development Limited mainland China development service
(‘Taizhou Shum Yip’)

FNMAEEERRARAT AR%100,0000007T B/ HEKE 51 50 51 RETHEALES
([RMAFE])

Shum King Company Limited HK$2  Hong Kong 50 50 50  Property development and
("Shum King") property investment

AHERAF (DRH]) 28T EE 50 50 50 MERERNERE

Guangzhou Pik Sum Real Estate RMBG69,832,402  PRC/ 14.28 14.28 14.28  Property development and
Development Company mainland China property investment
Limited** (‘Pik Sum’)

BAEREHEREARAR" AR¥69,832402  RE /REARE 14.28 14.28 1428 MERERMERE
([E#))

The 50% ownership interest in Tianan is held by Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Ru50%PMAEERH —BAEEFR
Company Limited (‘Shum Yip Terra’), a 75.05% non-wholly owned subsidiary of 75.05% 2 k2 EMB AR RERR (&
the Group. Therefore, the Group’s effective ownership interest and profit sharing is ) RDABBRAR ([REZRAIFA -
37.53%. bt - NEBE BB ERE R Ko o #1E
37.53% °
*0n 9 February 2018, the Group entered into investment agreements with R2018F2H9H r AEBHEENERE
Guangzhou Pik Sum Real Estate Development Company Limited (‘Pik Sum”) by WERERRAR ([B&])FILIRE W
contributing RMB9,972,000 (equivalent to $11,381,000) for joint control of Pik & BEREE ARMK9972,000t (FHER
Sum to engage in a property development project in Panyu, Guangzhou. Although 11,381,0007T) 2R HIZE 2 HENF S
the Group's effective ownership interests in Pik Sum was only 14.28%, all the 2 —IEYEREIEE - REASRBERERZ
decisions about significant operating, financing and investing activities of Pik Sum BIRPEHEREmRER14.28%  EMAEEE
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control and as such, Pik Sum MEALE  PBERIREEH 2 RRIFS
is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group. EEFIREZETAOAEE —SEE - Bt - B
HREREBELRAINK
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Interests in joint ventures (continued)
All the joint ventures in which of the Group participates, are unlisted
corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not available.

The following table sets out the summarised financial information in
respect of Langtong adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements:

23

Rea AR (8)
AEE2EERZRBRERRILAELTER
EE - WEMSRE -

TRITHBENRE - HABRRERETEE
ABRERFLABLHEAREMBEREALZ
FRETE -

Current assets MENEE 1,014,891 1,726,530
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,235,628 1,765,692
Current liabilities MEBE (686,517) (666,825)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (108,802) (119,467)
Net assets BERE 2,455,200 2,705,930
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALMEERARE
Cash and cash equivalents BehIREeEEY 722,958 499,534
Revenue g 418,354 3,767,068
Profit for the year FREH 46,856 1,244,721
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEN BT 46,856 1,244,721
Dividend received from Langtong BB RE 225,060 =
Included in the above profit: A LERUER) -
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH (5,694) (258)
Interest income IS ON 18,148 55,560
Interest expense FEFZ = =
Income tax expense FEHEX (15,553) (415,135)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HRARZAEEARAE AT 2%

the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEMABREZLA 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture ~ NEENEA LA REERE 1,227,600 1,352,965
Goodwill on acquisition recognised by the Group ~ ANEBEREA 7 WERE 6,116 6,116
Carrying amount of the investment K& ZEHE 1,233,716 1,359,081
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ReE=EAFES (4])

TRITHBERRE - NEBARLHENE
ARREEFLARY HRAREEEAMBRE
N EEE :

23 Interests in joint ventures (continued) 23
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect
of Tianan adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

Current assets mBEE 18,708,539 15,072,926
Non-current assets FERBEE 9,719,766 8,547,217
Current liabilities MEBE (11,461,106) (9,570,817)
Non-current liabilities FRBAR (8,178,372) (6,457,283)
Net assets BEFE 8,788,827 7,592,043
Less: Non-controlling interests B IR E S 267,913 266,903
Net assets attributable to equity shareholders of A% A BIERREEIEEEFE

the joint venture 8,520,914 7,325,140
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALMEERER :
Cash and cash equivalents RBehREEEY 2,476,671 2,676,250
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ FEEBAE (TEEEMERRRL

other payables and provisions) ,\Wﬂmﬁ&%ﬂﬁ) (3,294,496) (3,095,141)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade BRI EE (TEEERMNER L

and other payables and provisions) E«M@leﬁ&}%f ) (5,020,610) (4,716,805)
Revenue WS 3,280,218 3,466,583
Profit for the year FREAM 651,830 928,150
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEM B 651,830 928,150
Dividend received from Tianan BRARZZRE - -
Included in the above profit: A LERUER)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE (26,608) (22,583)
Interest income FBMA 95,770 13,290
Interest expense FBRAX (283,029) (76,616)
Income tax expense FTSfA Y (238,923) (377,603)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HEARZAEENSERR 2ER :

the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBFEE LG 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture ~ RNEENEA L AR EERE 4,260,457 3,662,570
Loan to the joint venture* BYRERNRIZER 178,230 167,445
Carrying amount of the investment KEZREE 4,438,687 3,830,015

In accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement, the loan is unsecured, RIFEE QR mf EZ%%?’M%%T&
interest free and subordinated to the other financing obtained by the joint venture. B A REEREGERRIIEZ M

Accordingly, the shareholder’s loan forms an integral part of the Group’s equity

investment in the joint venture and is recognised as such.

& o FEt J&%E?M%BZZKEI YRERT]
2 B A 2 MR RD D WA L RERR,
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Interests in joint ventures (continued)

The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect
of Taizhou Shum Yip adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements:
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23 MEEAFRER ()

TRITHBERRE - DABERMNAERE
et HRZREHARY HRBEZMBEERR
A ARE(E :

Current assets RBEE 3,080,095 2,652,127
Non-current assets FRBEE 3,170,909 2,714,794
Current liabilities RBEE (2,530,377) (3,174,877)
Non-current liabilities FREERE (2,126,878) (1,942,362)
Net assets BERE 1,593,749 249,682
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALMEBERAR :
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBeEEY 836,299 383,528
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ RE2 R EE (FEEEMNER R

other payables and provisions) Hfth T FRIE R B ) (147,812) (357,535)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade ~ JERBEMBE (TRERNERK

and other payables and provisions) HoFE (T I R B ) (2,126,878) (1,942,362)
Revenue Wz 1,465,108 811,592
Profit for the year FREF 244,916 226,917
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEK=RE 244,916 226,917
Dividend received from Taizhou Shum Yip BEREMFEZRE - 102,241
Included in the above profit: SEALIER ¢
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH (212) (229)
Interest income FLEMA - =
Interest expense FEMAZ (58,316) (83,445)
Income tax expense PSR (95,921) (75,639)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HIRARZAEERAE AT 2 ¢

the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEMBREZLA 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the investment REZREE 812,812 127,338
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23

Interests in joint ventures (continued)
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect
of Shum King adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements:

23 &

Eav ki (8)
TRITHBERRE - NEBERYRENE
ARREREHBAELHRIAREMBERERALZ
BREE -

Current assets MBEE 3,909,757 3,630,574
Current liabilities yEAB=RET (38,196) (30,824)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (3,891,651) (3,614,822)
Net liabilities RiEFE (20,090) (15,072)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALMEERARE
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEED 31,540 9,135
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ RE£RAE (TEEEMERIR

other payables and provisions) =R ANENENS R L) - =
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade  JEREEAEE (TEEENET L

and other payables and provisions) HAb e 50R kAR ) (3,891,652) (3,614,822)
Revenue e - -
Loss for the year FREE (5,018) (3,153)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZENEEE (5,018) (3,153)
Dividend received from Shum King BRORS 2 RE - -
Included in the above loss: SFALHEE
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH = =
Interest income SN ON 151 64
Interest expense FERZ - =
Income tax expense Fr{S B = =
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HRARZAEERAE AT 2 ¢

the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBFEE LG 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture ~ ANEBDHAE LD RIEEFE (10,045) (7,536)
Loan to the joint venture* BTEERAIZER 1,224,426 1,115,825
Carrying amount of the investment REZEEE 1,214,381 1,108,289

In accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement, both parties to the * BIESERRHRER  BEAREHEIR
joint venture have provided loan capital to the joint venture in proportion to their BE 2RO RBIBEREGERARNEEAR

NG|
REER - B - BREFERARERE
BRBZBERE 2 BB D AR L FER -

shareholdings and under equal terms. Accordingly, the shareholder’s loan forms an
integral part of the Group’s equity investment in the joint venture and is recognised
as such.
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Interests in joint ventures (continued)
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in
respect of Pik Sum adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements:
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23 A&

BavnEsS (8)
TRITHBERRE - NAEBRERIENE
ARREREHBRLHRARERBHRRAL
BREE -

Current assets MEBEE 6,985,471 6,518,076
Non-current assets FRBEE 254 15,276
Current liabilities RBEE (4,086,560) (3,793,739)
Non-current liabilities FREERE (2,740,096) (2,712,330
Net assets BERE 159,069 27,283
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALMEEREE -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 787,836 690,191
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ RE2 R EE (FEEEMNER R
other payables and provisions) HAh & N R ) - =
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade ~ FFRBI@ @B E (TREERNERK
and other payables and provisions) HoFE (T I R B ) (2,740,096) (2,712,330)
Revenue s 1,013,005 1,036
Profit/(Loss) for the year FNEFN/(BR) 123,146 (45,945)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKEBE 123,146 (45,945)
Dividend received from Pik Sum BRERIRE - =
Included in the above loss: SFALHEE
Depreciation and amortisation IE R (124) (126)
Interest income IISYON 2,063 2,085
Interest expense FEMAZ (13,645) (13,789)
Income tax expense PSR (41,067) (15,315)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HERAREAEENSE AR 2ER ©
the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEFAR L 14.28% 14.28%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEBDIEEERNREEFE 22,715 3,896
Loan to the joint venture* BYEENRIZER 54,288 130,473
Carrying amount of the investment KEZREE 77,003 134,369
* In accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement, both parties to the * BEBESERARBEER & RREHER
joint venture have provided loan capital to the joint venture in proportion to their WEZERIL I REBEREERAESZE AT
shareholdings and under equal terms. Accordingly, the shareholder’s loan forms an REER - At - REEZERAEENE
integral part of the Group’s equity investment in the joint venture and is recognised BNE 2 RAERE 2 MR BN W IR L FERR ©

as such.
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23

Interests in joint ventures (continued) 23 ReBauEs (F)
The following table sets out the aggregate financial information of the TRITAEBENTEECEE AR AR
Group's joint ventures that are not individually material: EEH -

Share of the joint ventures’ profit for the year HEE B RRIFAET 20,669 59,855
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEERGERAIZHERAAE

investments in the joint ventures 284,009 252,751
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24 Other financial assets 24 HAt&RE E
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20204 20194
12A31H 12A31H
$'000 $'000
T tET
Current: e
Financial assets measured at FVPL BREREBEANEFEZEREE
— Listed equity investments in Hong Kong — REBZ EMRERE 1,982 2,367
Financial assets measured at amortised cost REERLH B2 EREE
— Finance lease receivables due within one year —— R—FRNEIHZRIEREE KA 36,005 29,296
Less: Loss allowance A B (721) (568)
35,284 28,728
37,266 31,095
Non-current: ¥Ra -
Financial assets measured at FVPL BRERRAABENEZERMEE
— Listed equity investments in mainland China — RPBARRE ERERE 26,935 31,801
— Unlisted equity investments in mainland — RRBIAREZ Ik EmBRERE
China (note a) (FftzFa) 6,737,000 6,191,000
— Derivative financial instrument (note a) —TESBI A (Mizta) - 597,221
6,763,935 6,820,022
Equity securities designated at FVOCI EEAERHMZEAKRSEANE
(non-recycling) STEZRARS (FEE)
— Unlisted equity investments in mainland China ~ — R BIARE 7 3 FmARIERE 3,989 3,748
Financial assets measured at amortised cost XEERAHBZELREE
— Finance lease receivables — RERERIZE 122,746 144,210
— Other long-term assets (note b) — HtnREIEE (FizEb) 752,984 2,157,680
Less: Loss allowance B BAEE (37,406) (88,727)
838,324 2,213,163

7,606,248 9,036,933
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24 Other financial assets (continued)

Notes:

The balance mainly represented the Group’s equity investment and derivative
financial instruments arising from Hengda Real Estate Group Company Limited
and its controlling parities (‘Hengda Investments”) of $6,737,000,000 (2019:
$6,788,221,000), the details of which are set out below:

On 31 May 2017, 28 June 2017 and 6 November 2017, the Group entered into
investment agreements (‘Investment Agreements”) with Guangzhou Kailong Real
Estate Company Limited (‘Kailong Real Estate”), Hengda Real Estate, both of
which are subsidiaries of China Evergrande Group, and Mr. Hui Ka Yan (‘Mr. Hui",
a director and controlling shareholder of China Evergrande Group). Pursuant to
the Investment Agreements, the Group agreed to contribute RMB5,500,000,000
(equivalent to $6,337,100,000) to the capital of Hengda Real Estate for acquisition
of approximately 2.0522% of the enlarged equity interest of Hengda Real Estate
at the date of contribution, which was subsequently diluted to 1.7626% of the
enlarged equity interest of Hengda Real Estate after the capital contributions from
other investors in November 2017.

Hengda Real Estate is undergoing a major assets reorganisation such that Kailong
Real Estate, as the holding company of Hengda Real Estate, will become the
controlling shareholder of Shenzhen Special Economic Zone Real Estate & Properties
(Group) Co. Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, after the major
assets reorganisation (‘Proposed Reorganisation”). If the Proposed Reorganisation
of Hengda Real Estate is not completed by 31 January 2020 (‘Listing Deadline”)
and the failure to complete is not caused by reasons attributable to the Group, the
Group is entitled to have the right (‘Hengda Option Right") within two months of the
expiry of the Listing Deadline to demand Kailong Real Estate to either:

(i) buy back the entire equity interest in Hengda Real Estate held by the Group
at the original amount of capital contributed by it, provided that Kailong Real
Estate may choose not to buy back such equity interest from the Group, in
which case, the Group will have the right to request Mr. Hui to buy back
the entire equity interest held by the Group at the original amount of capital
contributed by it; or

(i) transfer additional shares, which are equivalent to 50% of the equity
interest held by the Group in Hengda Real Estate on the signing of the
compensation agreement (excluding any additional equity interest acquired
by the Group after the date of the Investment Agreements), to the Group at
nil consideration.

In addition, under the terms of the Investment Agreements, Kailong Real Estate
and Hengda Real Estate have undertaken to the Group that the net profit of Hengda
Real Estate for the three financial years of 2017, 2018 and 2019 (‘Performing
Undertaking Period”) shall not be less than RMB24.3 billion, RMB50 billion and
RMB55 billion, respectively. If the net profit of Hengda Real Estate for any financial
year in the Performance Undertaking Period is less than the amount for that
financial year, the proportional dividend to be paid by Hengda Real Estate to the
Group will be adjusted upward in accordance with the formulae specified in the
Investment Agreements (the “Minimum Dividend Payment Mechanism”).

The Group has undertaken to Hengda Real Estate and its holding company, Kailong
Real Estate, that it will not transfer its interests in Hengda Real Estate or create any
encumbrances over such interests without the consent of Kailong Real Estate for a
period of three years from completion of the capital contribution.

24

0

m%@ﬁﬁ )

W

ERETERAEERRNEEURENMES
BERARREZERS ([EXKRE]) EE
MSTAE S R T E6,737,000,0007T (20194 -
6,788,221,0007T) + EFIBERZIWT :

M20174E5 8318 ~ 201746 A28 8 %2017
F11A68 AEBEHEEMNMEEEEGR
NA) ([SEEE]) REXHME BTAHEH
BAEEZHBAR) ARIFRETE ([FF
| FEEXAEBZES RITERBRE)
RIMIEEWmE ([KERE]) - BIEKRE
B AEBRERAERBERAZERA
R #5,500,000,0007T (48 & #6,337,100,000
T0) + BAREE B WS B K EE AR R AR A
#92.0522% + EBER R EMAREER20174F
11 EE BB S E 18 R EQEARED
1.7626% °

Eﬁm%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ?i@ REAE
EEMAE - BARMERNIER TJ%E%%
Wﬁ%%ﬁ%x%%im@ﬁ R I 48 B N

BEME (£E) BHER AR A ERRE
([EHEMA]) - MERMENEZEAR
20205F1 A31 8 ([ L& BHE ) AT K
%&’ﬁxﬁ%ﬁlﬁm$¢lﬁﬁ Al
SEAE ([EXEERE]) REMREAH
Eﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂmﬁﬁﬁgﬁkﬁTﬂx%:

() RERAIESTEOBAEERSE
B R EE HY 2 BRI - ISR B 2
FBREBETAAEECBEARE &
UEIERT - ANEER A ERFFELE
NERATECHEOBAEEMTE
B 2 BRRRAE ¢ Bk

(i) EERAEEEEREIND - BER
AEEREER KGR BE 2 EA
HE R ER50% (NEIEAEENEE
T8 B BRI B R BRSNS ) ©

BEA - IRBIRE R R IER - SIEEEREKXR
m§m$%5@%-@xm§mmw¢»

20184F R 2019F =AM B FZE ([[BA &
HAR 1) A% FB % 20 IR D A R 24318
T~ AR¥5008T R A RBES50/BTT © i
1B K b E A B 0 7 %ﬁmﬁf%ﬁifm
FHEORZEREENSRE - AERE
% 1) 2N 5= R £ RO A% 8. 80 B 1 S AR IR 3L B 1
fi%%ﬂﬁﬁt%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%
1) °

AR B AME R EE & AR A R L B
w0 RO BTRORF =F RN - ERE
SEBEXRET  AREB T SERENME
A EE 2 M s SR A R s I R I EERE B
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Notes: (continued)
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24 HAbEREE (8)
GERNC)

On 13 January 2020, the Group, Kailong Real Estate, Hengda Real Estate and
Mr. Hui entered into a supplemental investment agreement pursuant to which the
parties thereto have agreed to amend certain terms of the Investment Agreements
as follows:

(i) Original Listing Deadline has been extended from 31 January 2020 to 31
January 2021;

(if) Kailong Real Estate and Hengda Real Estate have further undertaken to the
Group that the amount of net profit of Hengda Real Estate for financial year
2020 will not be less than RMB60 billion; and

(i)~ the same Minimum Dividend Payment Mechanism provided for in the
Investment Agreements in respect of the financial years of 2017, 2018 and
2019 will also apply to the financial year of 2020.

On 22 November 2020, the Group, Kailong Real Estate, Hengda Real Estate and
Mr. Hui entered into a supplemental investment arrangement pursuant to which the
Group has exercised the Hengda Option Right under the Investment Agreements,
and as the Proposed Reorganisation has been terminated before the Original Listing
Deadline, the parties thereto have further agreed to make a few clarification and
supplemental changes to the terms of the Investment Agreements as follows:

(i) The Group will continue to hold the equity interest of Hengda Real Estate and
its equity interest was increased to 2.6439% according to the supplemental
agreement. The 2020 dividends of equity interest in Hengda Real Estate held
by the Group shall be governed by the supplemental agreement signed on 13
January 2020;

(if) Kailong Real Estate (or its designated third party) may propose to the Group
to buy back the equity interest in Hengda Real Estate held by the Group
at RMB5.5 hillion (‘Share Buy-back’) before 31 December 2023 which is
subject to the Company’s review and approval in accordance with relevant
regulatory requirements including those applicable to state-owned assets
and listed companies. And, in the case the application is being approved, the
Group and Kailong Real Estate will proceed to process the Share Buy-back in
accordance with the prescribed procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was an decrease in fair value in
respect of Hengda Investments of $462,499,000 (2019: increase in fair value of
$342,297,000), which was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

As at 31 December 2020, other long-term assets mainly represented non-current
receivables from a government authority of $590,005,000 (2019: $1,007,088,000),
loans to a joint venture of $115,255,000 (2019: $1,051,665,000) and associates
of $12,678,000 (2019: $12,994,000).

R202051 F138 » A&EE - GEE ¥ -
BAMERAFLEETLHARE WS &
It FTR A EREEEIRE R THET

i

() REm&EZEBHEH20204F1A318
ERZE20215F1 8318

iy HEBERERMESNANEEE—
FEeE - BARMER2020F B BFE
FFBESEBTE IR AREE00
Br: &

(i) 20174 - 20184 K 2019 Bf 4 &
A& & 1 33 M A R S K AR 2R A+
1 1) I % 38 F 7 2020 FF A R R JE ©

K2020F11 A22H - A&EE - SIEEX -
BARMERFEETLHRLERE @ &
It AKEBITERERRE FZEXRE
o ARESREAERLEMHRE AR
IF - METAS FE— T HE R EREZIK
FAER IR 2 BB RdEiEk

() WRE#HZHE AEEBEEFS
BAMEZRE BHEBREES
2.6439% o NEB AT EAMEREZ
2020 F A% B %2 1R 20201 A13 B %
R AR MERE

(i) HEEX(KEEEHE=RH) JEAR
EEEFHN2023F12 AN BRTUAR
B o5 {EITIE B AL BT E K E Y
BeiE ([RDEAE]) - IRIBIEEEER
T (RREAREEEAER ETAR
ZEEHRTE)  BRHOEBEALEAAR
EBRRAE EHRBESLOERT -
AEBERIE B EBIRRTREFET
B&AD E1EE o

HZE2020F 12831 HILFE - FHEEBAE
B2 AR IER A 462,499,0007C (20194 : &
B HN342,297,0007T) @ IRGRAEER
AR

R2020512A318  HibREEELE
& FE 7% B) FE UK BR AT 4% B8 301 590,005,000
7C (20194 : 1,007,088,0007T) * A F A&
BNAE 2 E3115,255,0007T (20194 :
1,051,665,0007T) R4 THE AR ZE R
12,678,0007T (20194F : 12,994,0007T) °
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25

Biological assets 25
The Group’s total amounts of the biological assets are as follows:

ER7) <4
AEBAWEERRBINT ¢

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

2020F 20194

124318 12A31H
$'000 $'000
Fr

Trading biological assets HIEIEEMEE

2,939 2,205

The Group’s biological assets comprise mainly cloned orchid flowers.

The Group's biological assets were revalued by management at the end of
each reporting period on a fair value basis. The fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs of the biological assets was determined using the
market approach, which was determined based on the most recent market
transaction prices.

A reconciliation of the carrying values of the biological assets is as follows:

Trading biological assets

HEMENEE

ARBZENEETRBRRERE -

AEEZENBERERERNSREHREAAN
EEEER - E%éﬁza’ﬂéﬂmﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ

RADUBSERE - DEREHTEEHE
BB -
e EE FEEHEMT :

At 1 January M1 A1H 2,205 1,537
Purchases BE 2,354 4,393
Sales HE (1,793) (3,667)
Exchange realignment B 388 173 (58)
At 31 December MW12HA31H 2,939 2,205
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26 Inventories 26 &

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 20194

12A31H 12A31H

C] $'000

T e

Raw materials JRM %L 79,894 65,683
Work in progress EEmM 56,614 52,977
Finished goods UK 40,050 76,517
176,558 195177

27 Trade receivables 27 MEWCR

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 20194

12A31H 12A31H

C] $'000

Tr A

Trade receivables e AR X 1,037,538 725,876
Less: loss allowance account A BRRER (162,400) (132,264)
875,138 593,612
Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant any credit terms EEFBERT AEBETEeREFPAMELE
to its customers for the sale of properties. The Group seeks to maintain BREEMEER - AEEREY R EYKH
strict control over its outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk. In BREBEREHIREGEERR - &R LR
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables ARASEZEUERSIREZHATELREE
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant P #AKETEREEF LEERR - K&
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other B ESERURR SRR EAERRIEM

credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables EEAR - BUERFATTEFNIE ©

are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s trade receivables with a net carrying R2020F12A318  AEBEREFEL A
value of approximately $3,785,000 (2019: nil) was pledged to secure other 3,785,0007C (20194 : &) Z EWERE K
borrowings granted to the Group (note 30(a)). o EARSEEREMEE 2 ER (K

30(a)) °
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27 Trade receivables (continued) 27 FREWR (4
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting Eﬁ#ﬁ%,ﬂﬁﬂil«xm Y BHIE BV IR IB AR 2 '
period, based on the contract date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: WERFBRE AT ¢
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020 20194
12A831H 12H31H
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Within one year —FRN 701,438 438,893
One to two years —FEWER 136,539 122,226
Two to three years MEE=FN 37,161 32,493
875,138 593,612
28 Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 28 TEMFKIE ~ T4 KAt ek E
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20205 20194
12H831H 12B31H
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Prepayments BN RIE 278,479 248,136
Deposits and other receivables /i\ H A R 4,813,741 3,970,852
Loans to joint ventures (note) TEER 1Z§ (MTE) 707,541 584,656
Loans to associates (note) ,u? A TZ 2 (RIzE) 1,857 1,116
Due from the immediate holding company (note) — FEURE BEHRA% A B170E (KizE) 1,739 1,337
Due from the ultimate holding company (note) F&“H&EWWXA AFIE (HiaE) 14,274 =
Due from non-controlling shareholders AR T E T 2,053,149 2233
7,870,780 4,808,330
Less: loss allowance o BREE (216,470) (171,955)
7,654,310 4,636,375
Note: Except for interest-bearing loans to related parties of $696,116,000 (2019: MizE : BR4S TRARE 5 2 5T B H 5696,116,000 7T
$553,744,000), the balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms (20194 : 553,744,0007T) 9h * &5ERFIE A

of repayment. IR - 25 B EETERBR -
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29 BlERIBEFEM R RHIB &

29 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

BeRBeFHN AR :

Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTH % 13,434,561 11,312,887
Non-pledged time deposits with original BEARRIBHALR=EA &K
maturity of less than three months when HEHER
acquired 5,275,879 1,059,873
18,710,440 12,372,760
Less: Restricted cash A XRHIRE (2,543,969) (2,719,521)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEEY 16,166,471 9,653,239

As at 31 December 2020, there was $2,387,660,000 (2019:
$2,522,202,000) in the Group’s restricted cash, which was limited
to use in the development of certain property projects. In accordance
with relevant documents issued by the PRC State-Owned Land and
Resource Bureau, certain property development companies of the
Group are required to place in designated bank accounts certain
amounts of presale proceeds from properties as guarantee deposits
for the construction of related properties. The deposits can only be
used for purchases of construction materials and the payments of
construction fees of the relevant property projects when approval
from the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau is obtained.
Such guarantee deposits will only be released after completion of the
related pre-sold properties or issuance of the real estate ownership
certificates, whichever is the earlier.

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash of denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted
to $13,758,180,000 (2019: $11,338,196,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

R2020F12A31H - REBAXRE 4l
$4%52,387,660,0007T (20194 :
2,522,202,0007T) - BRI AEREZEETH
¥BE - RETFEBRALHEREERE
BB - ARBETYEREAR
BREERITRFENE TEREIEEY
XFBTE - EREENEREER
RER - ZERETRESTBEBEA i
BEREERMERARBEEMEIMNE
BYEXBECEREER - BRERTRE
SRR ENEBR THFUEHERE
(ARRHREEBE) B F THER -

R2020F12A31H  REBUARE
(TAR® ) SHEZReRASZEMN
T SRR #I38 £ $£13,758,180,0007T (2019
% :11,338,196,0007T) > AREILRA]
ERMABAEMER - Af - BETE
SNEETHEDI R AEE - EERNEEER
o ASEEEERERETINEEL 2
BITHARE R RAEMER -
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29 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (continued) 29 HELRBELSEWRZREEE (4)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated (b) BB A BLAR B R E R Z B A Bk
from operations: mr :

Profit before taxation B AR A 8,133,603 6,684,537
Adjustments for: RIS EERE -

Finance costs BARKA 7 992,038 561,210
Interest income FIEKA 6 (352,104) (217,983)
Depreciation e 8(c) 240,759 235,519
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of BEMEARERD /(M)

investment properties 17 675,583 (434,258)
Decrease/(increase) in fair value upon BRESRANERDAETRE/

transfer to investment properties () 17 1,545 (958,779)
Dividend income from other financial assets ~ RKEEMEREEZRERA 6 (1,626,639) (1,825)
Share of profits less losses of joint NG LN

ventures and associates SBAEEE (1,254,285) (2,045,785)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BN BET RS

payments 15 1,192 1,141
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE - BERXEEE BB

plant and equipment 8 1,683 732
Loss allowance of trade receivables, net ERERBRREFE 8 21,965 16,625
Loss allowance of prepayments, deposits BNEA © A& RABEKR

and other receivables, net BREREE 8 32,758 27,265
Loss allowance of other financial HibeREEBARRBTE

assets, net 8 (56,628) (14,942)
Deficits on revaluation EfhEA 14 - 268,295
Impairment losses of property, mE - BERREZRESE

plant and equipment 117,427 -
COVID-19-related rent concessions received ~ 2UCOVID-19F8BM AL ER 20 3,664 =
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of BRBREREAAEMEL

financial assets at fair value through SREEQNAERD /

profit or loss, net ($810) F58 469,433 (340,676)
Equity-settled share option expense DARR A S 1 2 BE AR i R 8(b) 10,525 (26,836)
Others Hfty (51,665) (40,245)

7,360,854 3,767,667
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29 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (continued) 29 HERBELEYERZRFES (F)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated (b) BKRBAGFRARBLEER 2R 2HE
from operations: (continued) mr (&)

Changes in working capital:

Decrease in trade receivables and

BEALEY
R RS REERD

other financial assets 1,114,498 393,511
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BRHE - T REM
other receivables JRE U R IE 1 (873,232) (749,050)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BTERD /(3Em) 18,619 (66,181)
Increase in trading biological assets EREE S EE (734) (668)
Decrease in completed properties held BIERECEBRMERD
for sale 6,709,745 6,748,887
Increase in properties under development  35[E R N (15,544,364) (9,273,306)
Increase in trade payables JEASFBR FIE N 1,237,453 711,802
Decrease in other payables and accruals HiEARIERETEARD (508,022) (949,731)
Increase in contract liabilities AREELEM 17,687 7,658,890
Increase in deferred income B AL 921 5,813
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash XBHIHEE (Em) D 350,714 41,607
Cash (used in)/generated from operations ~ && %% (FiA) /EL2ES (115,861) 8,289,241




216

Shenzhen Investment Limited 734232 E R A 7]
Annual Report &%} 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
T 75 e 2% B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5455) » HrE £ 1B THR)

29

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash flow from financing

(c)

activities.

29 & RBEFEYRZMHBE (5)

(c)

KAMEFEDHZ AR BIE :
TRFLAKEREMETD CAEE
P BRASRFRSEY - RKERER
HLARRAREREXRIALRER
AREGARERERTIEARERY
RERENALRE

Interest-
bearing Duetothe  Due to the Loans
bank and ultimate  immediate  Loans from Loans from  Loans from from non-
other Lease holding holding fellow  Loans from joint another  controlling
borrowings liabilities company company  subsidiaries  associates ventures  related party holders
HERAR EHRAER ENERER EEA) | B R HfEERA FER
EftRE HESR ARRE ARFE ARER AIER AIER Lt RRER
§'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 §'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tr T T T T T Tr
(Note 30) (Note 31)
(Ki&E30) (Kz3t)
At 1 January 2020 R2020%181A 24,297,918 505,017 1936473 12630846 3,872,747 45,922 342,239 177,137 673,078 33114377
Changes from financing ~ REBERE
cash flows: id-PA L
Proceeds from bank loans ~ $/TERRAHEE
and other borrowings FEE 15,786,414 - - - - - - - - 15,786,414
Repayments of bank loans ~ EERTETREMEE
and other borrowings (10,061,410) - - - - - - - - (10,061,410)
Repayments of loans from ~ EEREFERRE
non-contralling pa:t s
shareholders - - - - - - - - (501,804) (501,804)
Capital element of lease BARERE ALHH
rentals paid - (122,667) - - - - - - - (122,667)
Proceeds from loans fron ~ REBER 2 EFHZAS
related parties FE - - 1,707,577 506,091 940,522 1,100 7,375 - - 13,162,665
Repayment of loans from ~ EEREER A ZEX
related parties - - (4879.841) (19,348)  (1,761,806) (27,612 (240,007) (8,910) - (6,937,529)
Totals changes from financing REEEH27E
cash flows VA L)} 5,725,004 (122,667) 6,827,736 486,743 (821,284) (26,512) (232,632) (8,910) (501,804) 11,325,674
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29 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (continued) 29 B4 kBA&SEWRZRHBES (4)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (c) REMATHZAMZEE : (4)
(continued)

Interest-
bearing Duetothe  Due to the Loans
bank and ultimate  immediate  Loans from Loans from  Loans from ~ from non-
other Lease holding holding fellow  Loans from joint an other  controlling
borrowings liabilities company company  subsidiaries associates ventures  related party holders

HEROR ENRAER ENERER  EEME L H A8 RUERS FER

AfbfeE HERE AR DERE DAER ARER ARER LE ELE

$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 $'000

T T T T T T T T T
(Note 30) (Note 31)
(Wak30)  (fEs1)

Interest paid included as ~ SIEREREFESD
changes in operating ZEfHE

cashflows (1048087 (22389) - - (96314)- - - - - (1,366,784)
Exchange adjustments ERBE 805,491 29,476 533,613 807 233,814 1,250 8,884 10,412 15,078 1,638,825
Other changes: b2
Increase in lease liabilities M UAEEEE

from entering into new JEEAREN

leases during the year - 47,471 - - - - - - - 47471
COVID-19-related rent BIRCOVID-1918 e

concessions received HeES (Wi20)

(note 20) - (3,664) - - - - - - - (3,664)
Finance costs (ote 7) RERA (H27) 691,181 03B 117,646 19368 106,008 = 4,944 7322 - 99632
Capitalised borrowing costs ~ ZAKEERA 356,906 - - - 41,349 - - - = 398,255

At 31 December 2020 R20205125318 30,828,413 455,633 9415468 1,770,744 3,137,120 20,660 123,435 185,961 186,352 46,123,786
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29 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (continued) 29 B4 kBASEWRZREBESE (4)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: () REMATHZAMZEE « (4)
(continued)

Interest-
bearing Due to the Due to the Loans
bank and Ultimate immediate  Loans from Loans from Loans from from non-
other Lease holding holding fellow ~ Loans from joint an other controlling
borrowings liabilities company company  subsidiaries associates ventures  related party holders

1

At 1 January 2019 R201951 1A 25,260,765 48177 4,734,953 1,233,548 2,957 467 46,950 1,167,231 175,529 821,091 36,445,711
Changes from financing ~ REMERS

cash flows: HEzEE
Proceeds from new bank  HBRTEFHENE

loans 8,148,401 - - - - - - - - 8,148,401
Repayments of bank loans ~ EE5 /73 (8,846,436) - - - - - - - - (8,846,436)
Proceeds from loans REFERER 28R

from non-controlling Pl

shareholders - - - - - - - - 30,386 30,386
Repayments of loans EERBFEERRE

from non-controlling pa:t s

shareholders - - - - - - - - (193,324) (193,324)
Capital element of lease BARERECARHH

rentals paid - (93,175) - - - - - - - (93,175)
Proceeds from loans from KB BEH &

related parties LFRHE = = 5,575,380 16,671 3,916,255 1,036 = (4,708) = 9,504,634
Repayment of loans from ~ EEREER A ZEX

related parties - - (8,379,383 (16,164)  (2,958,674) (1,629) (838,730) - - (12,194,580)
Totals changes from

financing cash flons (698,035 (93175 (2,804,009 507 957581 693 (838730) (@708 (162938  (3644,004)
Interest paid included SfEBERLHEST

as changes in operating ~ ZBHHE

cashflows (1098249 (25190  (54731) - (78,256) - - - 7642) (1,264,069
Exchange adjustments ~ E3i5% (264,812) 6333 (56,800 342 @107 @B (10600 - 1495 (416,555
Other changes: e
Increase in lease liabilities M ATREES

from entering into new ZREREEN

leases during the year - 558,348 - - - - - - - 558,348
Finance costs (note 7) BERK (F&7) 395,095 25,190 61,383 33,213 6,826 - 24,338 6,316 7,642 560,003
Capitalised borrowing costs ~ AA{LEERA 703,154 = 55,671 - 116,207 - - - = 875,032

At 31 December 2019 R2019% 12318 24,297,918 505017 1936473 1263846 3,872,747 45,922 342,239 177,137 673,078 331143717
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29 Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (continued) 29 B4 kBA&SEWRZRHBES (4)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HMEZBEW AR
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases comprise the FARSRERZHESEEETIS
following: |

Within operating cash flows BRELEHSTE 9,686,834 4,555,046
Within investing cash flows BREEFRETE - 620,223
Within financing cash flows BRRERSRE 122,667 93,175
9,809,501 5,268,444

These amounts relate to the following: HUATHEMZ S5 ¢

Lease rentals paid ENEERS 152,117 128,632
Purchase of leasehold property BEHEME 9,657,384 5,139,812

9,809,501 5,268,444
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30 Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 30 FFB AT R I A B

Effective/ Effective/
contractual contractual
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
BE
BHFIE%)
Current BNER
Bank loans —secured RITER — AIEH 4.52—4.99 337,954 4.90 132,683
Bank loans — unsecured RITEF — EIKH 1.33—4.99 10,610,971  3.09—5.84 7,157,228
Other borrowings-secured HifgE — Ak 3.28 8,599 = =
Other borrowings —unsecured A {EE — & 6.80 1,782,300 6.80 1,116,300
12,739,824 8,406,211
Non-current JEENHA
Bank loans —secured RITER — BHEA 4.51—4.99 108,126  4.90—4.99 250,525
Bank loans —unsecured RITER — EIKH 1.98—4.99 15,842,891 4.14—5.39 13,966,732
Other borrowings-secured Hipfss — 5HH 3.28 2,137,572 = =
Other borrowings—unsecured ~ Efh{E & — & - = 6.80 1,674,450
18,088,589 15,891,707
30,828,413 24,297,918
All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised FrE AN i EEEHIRESHR ARSI o FEH]
cost. None of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings is expected to be i BEEEBTIER—FNEE -

settled within one year.
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30 Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (continued)

30 FHEHAT R4S & (4)

Analysed into: )
Bank loans repayable: BB ZRITER
Within 1 year —&R 10,948,925 7,289,911
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEEWERN 5,817,569 4,361,607
After 2 years but within 5 years WMEZHFN 10,133,448 9,855,650
26,899,942 21,507,168
Other borrowings repayable: EEEZHMEE
Within one year or on demand —FRHIEEK 1,790,899 1,116,300
In the Second year E_4F 7,129 1,674,450
From third to fifth years =EFHE 65,351 =
After the fifth years FERE 2,065,092 -
3,928,471 2,790,750
30,828,413 24,297,918

(@ Bank and other borrowings amounting to $2,592,251,000 (2019:
$383,208,000) were secured by certain of the Group's assets with

carrying amounts as below:

(@ %£%AE2592251,000T 2 RITREME
& (20194 : 383,208,0007T) LA 518
HEZETAEEEEERR

Trade receivables (note 27)

Land and buildings in mainland China
(note 14)

Properties under development (note 19)
Investment properties (note 17)

FEMER R (FEE27)

MR ARE 2 - REF (HizE14)
BREPME (K519)
BEWE (K=E17)

3,785

261,040
2,972,440
2,438,662

605,816
1,086,976
498,181
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30

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (continued)

(b) A subsidiary in mainland China has entered into a fund arrangement
with a financial institution (the “Trustee”), pursuant to which the
Trustee has raised trust fund amounting to RMB2,500,000,000
(equivalent to $2,790,750,000) and provided the fund to the
subsidiary for financing a property development project of the
subsidiary. The fund bears a fixed interest rate at 6.80% (2019:
6.80%) per annum. The fund is payable by the Group in two
instalments, with RMB1,000,000,000 being repaid in May 2020
and the remaining balance of RMB1,500,000,000 (equivalent to
$1,782,300,000) to be repaid in May 2021. The fund is guaranteed
by Shum Yip Group, the Group’s ultimate holding company. This
transaction constitutes continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is exempt from the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A as it is a financial assistance
received by the Group which is conducted on normal commercial

terms or better, and is not secured by the assets of the Group.

(c) At 31 December 2020, other borrowings included Senior Commercial
Mortgage-backed Notes (‘CMBN") of RMB1,800,000,000 (equivalent
to $2,137,572,000) issued in China Interbank Bond Market on
16 June 2020, which were secured by certain land and buildings,
investment properties and its future rental incomes. The interest rates
of the CMBN classified as Priority Level with a principal amount of
RMB1,800,000,000 was fixed at 3.28% per annum. The term of the
CMBN was 20 years. At the end of the third year, the sixth year and
the ninth year, the Group shall be entitled to adjust the interest rates
of the CMBN or repurchase the outstanding balance, and the holders
of the CMBN shall be entitled to require the Group to redeem the

outstanding balance.

(d) Except for the bank loans equivalent to approximately
$17,410,480,000 (2019: $12,492,202,000), which are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, all borrowings as at 31 December 2020 are

denominated in RMB.

30

At BT BRI & (B1)

(b)

REARE —HNBARE—HEREE
(IZFAD) BiTESTH - Bt - Z5
ABEEETES ARY2500,000,000
7t (FEM2,790,750,0007T ) R ot &Lt
MWBRRz —EANEZREEMTESN
MBARIRMES - 2B ELREATER
%6.80% (20194 : 6.80%) 5 & - AKX
EESMEER - 20206588 A
R#1,000,000,000c R#HTEBARE
1,500,000,0007t (A& #1,782,300,000
JU) #BR2021 5 AEE - #E2EEHA
EENGRERARFEEBER - AR
ZRGBAEEZRZHEY - AlE
K ETRAEI4AZERNMAE 2 B BB
Ry WERGETEIAAERNZRES
T RRPBR-BEEGERSE EEE
17 BBEAAKREB BEFERE o

R2020F12A31H » EMEERER
20206 A16 B EHRBIRITHES TS
T ARE1,800,000,0007T (HER
2,137,572,0007c) MELAREELHEE
([BEGEBESRER]) BRZEET
UEFLHMRET - HEWERERRA
SWAEER - DEABERZEAEEA
E#1.800,000,000c 2 BEHEES#
ZRE/MEBETFANE3.28% - BrR
BESHERZHRAE20F - REZF -
ENFRENFER - ARBBHEAE
BEREELRERAIRRBEERER
B BEAGEEXREERBABE
BERAEEBERAEELS -

BARE R 417,410,480,0007T (2019
F 1 12,492,202,00070) ZRITEFAB
JLEHESN » R2020F12 A31 B 2B fE
EHYUAREEE o
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30 Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (continued) 30 #FE ST RH MR (4])

(€) Certain of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment € AREzETRITHEBFERSEHS
of covenants relating to the Group’s financial ratios, as are commonly hERBEEZAERTERFSEE (BR
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the RELBBERITCERBER) - HE
Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities AEBERZH  MEXDCREREA
would become repayable on demand. The Group regularly monitors AREREER - ASETHEREESF
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s ZEZZ BN - AEEEERYERR
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 39(b). As 31 ZHE— A FEERMEEI9(D) o K2020%F
December 2020 and 2019, none of the covenants relating to drawn %2019F12A31H » HEAE Y H@E
down facilities had been breached. Bl ZHEER °

31 Lease liabilities 31 HMEHFE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the AEEHEEBERFNREPRNEIRE L HR N
Group's lease liabilities at the end of the reporting periods: N

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
2020F12A31H 201912 A31H

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

REAE REAE REHE
R2HE AHBE  3AE

$'000 $'000 $'000
T St R
Within 1 year —&FR 115,046 134,017 103,476 125116
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZMFR 102,335 116,250 94,766 111,670
After 2 years but within 5 years WEZHFNA 166,132 185,325 256,257 290,223
After 5 years FELE 72,120 82,965 50,518 57,960
340,587 384,540 401,541 459,853
455,633 518,557 505,017 584,969
Less: total future interest W RRFIERY AE
expenses (62,924) (79,952)
Present value of lease liabilities FHEREZIRE 455,633 505,017
At 31 December 2020, the above balance includes lease liabilities in R2020F12A31H @ L& eiEsflEA
respect of certain leasehold properties from the Group’s immediate holding AEBERERAR - —HBEARREZRK
company, an associate and fellow subsidiaries of $2,573,000 (2019: BARIZETHEME ZHEEE2,573,000
$9,448,000), $81,329,000 (2019: $101,065,000), and $55,545,000 7t (20194 : 9,448,0007T) * 81,329,000t
(2019: $54,429,000) respectively. (20194 : 101,065,0007T) &%55,545,0007T

(20194 : 54,429,0007T) °
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32 Trade payables 32 MEAHR
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting RESHRREZAHHE BRI RZRR AT
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: N
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20204 20194
12A31H 12A31H
$000 $'000
Tr =Tt
Within one year —&R 3,252,855 2,026,082
One to two years —FEWEN 136,725 124,859
Two to three years MEE=FRX 107,048 106,228
Over three years =FPE 366,434 368,440
3,863,062 2,625,609
The total amounts of the trade payables are non-interest-bearing. All the ERERREER T EFIE - IEERNERERE
trade payables are expected to be settled within one year. HR—FREE -
33 Other payables and accruals 33 HAh AR M et
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20204 20195
128318 12A31H
$’000 $'000
T b7
Receipts in advance LG 37,403 82,757
Other payables (note 39(h)) H At eI (FEEE39(b)) 7,240,075 7,705,540
Loans from associates (note 39(h)) REBENAZER (HFE39(0)) 20,660 45,922
Loans from joint ventures (note 39(b)) RBEEARZER (FHE39() 123,435 342,239
Loans from fellow subsidiaries (note 39(b)) KRERZRKELRZER (FE39()) 3,137,120 4,049,884
Loans from an other related party (note 39(h)) REH B 2B (KEE39()) 185,961 175,528
Loans from non-controlling interests REFEREZ ZER 186,352 639,608
Accruals and provisions fEsTE R RS 35,527 32,730
10,966,533 13,074,208
The balances are repayable on demand, except for interest-bearing loans ERBRERER  EREBAHFZHEER
from related parties of $3,243,995,000 (2019: $4,210,851,000) which is 3,243,995,0007T (20194 : 4,210,851,000

expected to be settled within one year. L) BER—FAEE -
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34 Contract liabilities 34 ARAE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
2020124310 2019412H31H

$'000 $'000
Tr T

Contract liabilities EHNEE
Property development MR
— Forward sales deposits and instalments received — FBET4 ko WH Hz0E

19,718,224 18,100,667

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities of
property development recognised are as follows:

The Group receives certain amount of deposit from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreements. These deposits are recognised as
contract liabilities until the relevant properties are completed and ready for
hand-over to the customers.

The Group may require the customers to pay off the remaining balance of
the consideration within an agreed timeframe while constructions are still
ongoing, rather than on the completion of the relevant properties. Such
advance payment schemes result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the remaining property construction period for the full amount
of the contract price. In addition, the contract liabilities will be increased
by the amount of interest expense being accrued by the Group to reflect
the effect of any significant financing benefit obtained from the customers
during the period between the payment and hand-over date. As this
accrual increases the amount of the contract liabilities during the period of
construction, it therefore increases the amount of revenue recognised when
control of the completed property is transferred to the customer.

HERRNZRZCNABRSERATEZ R
I GFIT -

AEENEFPREEEH AR B RFURETA]
T ZEFIEHARANARE  EEEMME
ERLAHERTRPAL

RSB RRERFRBETRINEET  HER
AAMFERERNFEREEERSRAE - B
BARR AT 3G B @ SRR AR R EDRH
EE2BANERERSNARE - i - A5E
FIAIRBRIAM 5 A 88 A R A R PR
MENEARENZTE B I B 28
SRMANMARE - ANMEFERSEMEE
HRANAEIEE  WASRMERNELZ
FHREEETEPRCRARGE S8 -
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34 Contract liabilities (continued) 34 HHAE (H)
Movements in contract liabilities BHAEER

Balance at 1 January W A1B 2 &% 18,100,667 11,232,109
Recognising revenue that was included in the BRNEN AR NBE W=
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (14,980,542) (4,634,143)
Receiving forward sales deposits and instalments W ERT € kD BF0E 16,131,872 11,082,358
Accruing interest expense on advances received FUWFRIERA A BHX 466,227 420,343
Balance at 31 December W12 A31 Bz &4 19,718,224 18,100,667
The amount of billings in advance of performance and forward sales BHABE —FTEERAWNAZEBNRBM
deposits and instalments received expected to be recognised as income DB BEFSLREUWSHAEESA
after more than one year is $1,711,054,000 (2019: $2,933,074,000). 1,711,054,0007T (20194 : 2,933,074,000
L) e

30 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial 35 ZHFAMERNENZER
position
(a) Current tax in the consolidated statement of financial (a) HABMBMRIENZBHBIEE
position represents:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020%12H318 2019%12A31H

$'000 $'000

T /g

Provision for CIT PEREREE 1,887,183 851,898
Provision for LAT THIRER A 8,444,123 5,395,663

10,331,306 6,247,561
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35 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial 35 #ZAMERNERZHER (4)
position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax asset and liabilities recognised (b) ERERIERAIEE & & AH
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year ELCHBEENEEFANEZHMNT ¢

are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities: RERIEEE :

Fair value  Accelerated

Withholding Revaluation  adjustment tax
taxon  Revaluation of other arising from  depreciation
dividend of investment Revaluation  financial ~acquisition of on investment

(note) properties ~  of assets assets  subsidiaries properties Others

RRBAE
REEANH R& HipeR  AAELz  RENEZ
(&) NXER KEEf &EEf LOAEAR  MERERE At

§'000 §000  $000  $000 §'000 §000  §'000
tn x r x tn tn tr

At 1 January 2020 #20205181H 302,054 3,696,555 179,891 160,846 4,039,513 335,269 107,027 8,821,155
Acquisition of a subsidiary  RE-FNERF - 21,576 - - 447,281 - - 468,857
Deferred tax charged/ REER /

(credited) to the () BEk

statement of profit or Mz EERR

logs during the year 196461 (169,262) - (117260 (394371) A0 MM (372573)
Exchange realignment 5 30,437 230,571 11,587 3,806 263,139 25,908 8,594 574,042
Gross deferred tax 72020512 4318

liabilities at LERHER ELRE

31 December 2020 528952 3,779,420 191478 47390 4,355,562 438,347 150,332 9,491,481
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35 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial 35 #ZAMERNERNZFER ()
position (continued)
(b) Deferred tax asset and liabilities recognised (continued) (b) CHERELRIEEERAE (5)

Fair value  Accelerated

Withholding Revaluation adjustment tax
taxon  Revaluation of other  arising from  depreciation
dividend  of investment  Revaluation financial  acquisition of  on investment

properties  of assets assets  subsidiaries properties

BEEfR
$000
i
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1A1H 303,719 3,414,374 59,937 78,972 4,455,582 282,036 127,205 8,721,825
Deferred tax charged/  AEEAR /
(credited) to the (3tA) Bk
statement of profit or Mz ELEHRE
loss during the year 5,081 348,259 - 85,169 (324,433) 60,523 (17,8000 156,799
Deferred tax credited o~ AEFFABERZ
equity during the year  ERERE - 15306 121,267 - - - - 136572
Exchange realignment [ A% (6,746) (81,383) (1,313 (3,295) (91,636) (7,290) (2,378)  (194,041)
Gross deferred tax R2019F12 4317
liabiltes at LERERARREE
31 December 2019 302,054 3,696,555 179,891 160,846 4,039,513 335,269 107,027 8,821,155
Note: BiaE -
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied BEFECEMSHE R BE KRR
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises ZONERECERIIEKREE SRR EA
established in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 0% B TENFL o ILFREH20085F1 A1H
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of RBAER - WiEAMR2007F12A31BERZA
5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty between mainland China and jurisdiction F o P B AFEEIINFIREE Z REERA
of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on ZETMBEBE R E - B RERAL% 2 BIKTE
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China in MR - By - KEBEB S TR B RRE
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2020, the PR3 2 5% B A Bl 7R 20084F1 A1 H B E
Group recognised a deferred tax liability of $528,952,000 (2019: $302,054,000) 2 BFFTRREBISTENT o KR20204F
in respect of the withholding tax on future dividend distribution by these PRC 12A31H ' AEEHZEHEWBE LR 2
subsidiaries. REBRED R BB R ELCHIEEE

528,952,0007T, (20194F : 302,054,0007T) °
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35 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial 35 #ZAMERNERZHER (4)
position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax asset and liabilities recognised (continued) (b) CHERERLERIEEERAE (5)
Deferred tax assets: ERWIBEE ¢

Losses
available  Temporary  Temporary
foroffsetting  differences  differences
against future  arising from  arising from ~ Unrealised Credit loss

taxable profits  LAT provision accruals profits allowance Others

TREEE  tHRER  EHHER
ARERE  BREE Bty
BNzBR EREE  EREE  ABNEN GRRXRE At

$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T T T T T r
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 18 6,335 1,159,175 230,905 212,167 105,306 88,742 1,802,630
Acquisition of a subsidiary  RE-FANBAR - 53,361 - - - - 53,361

Deferred tax (charged) / A% (F1) /
credited to the statement  FABER
of profit or loss during Mz EERE
the year 579,722 21,544 (7,918) 9,173 19,651 628,172

Exchange realignment B R 408 104,085 16,412 13,223 7,295 6,615 148,238

Gross deferred tax assets ~ 1X2020% 12318
at 31 December 2020 LERHEAESE 6,743 1,896,343 274,861 217,472 121,774 115,208 2,632,401
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35 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial 35
position (continued)
(b) Deferred tax asset and liabilities recognised (continued)

Losses
available Temporary Temporary
for offsetting differences differences
against future ~arising from ~arising from
taxable profits  LAT provision accruals

MG DHEER ]
. BbE: Btz

JEEEE  EEZE
$'000 $'000
i %

A M BIR VLR N Z Pt ()

(b) CHEREEFIEEREKAR (5)

Unrealised Credit loss
allowance

At 1 January 2019 201951 418 96,910 1,389,245 267,224

212,8% 90,844 15,373 2,072,491

Deferred tax (charged) / A% (F1B) /
credited to the statement  FABHZR
of profit or loss during Mz BEERE
the year (90,108) (203,377) (31,036)

Exchange realignment i3k (467) (26,693) (5,283)

4,009 16,760 75086 (228,666)
(&.737) 2,298) ) @19

Gross deferred tax assets 82019124318
at 31 December 2019 LERHEEERT 6,335 1,159,175 230,905

212,167 105,306 86,742 1,802,630
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35 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial 35 #ZAMERNERZHER (4)

position (continued)

(c) Deferred tax asset not recognised
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of $322,367,000
(2019: $322,367,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses

arose.

The Group also has tax losses arising in mainland China of
$4,935,885,000 (2019: $4,341,021,000), which will expire in 2021,

2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 with details as follow:

(C)  ARMERIEHE BIE 7
AEERB B HIEEEA322,367,000
7t (20194 : 322,367,0007T) * "Ik
ERTEELEBZORZARERR G
Fll o

FEBRFPEAEZHRBEERE A
4,935,885,0007 (2019% : 4,
341,021,0007T) * #2HIR20214F -
20224 ~ 20237F ~ 2024F [ 20255 %
. FBEmT

2020 20205 = 404,685
2021 20214 854,928 816,189
2022 20224 903,302 956,585
2023 20235 976,627 917,530
2024 20245 1,326,288 1,246,032
2025 2025% 874,740 =

4,935,885 4,341,021

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for years and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

36 Deferred income

HRZEBERDNKABRZEZHER
Al - MR E R R A S A LA H R
PURA - MBI % SEREDELHA

36 ELIA

As at 31 December 2020, deferred income of $29,114,000 (2019: R2020%F12A318 » 29,114,000 (2019
$28,193,000) represented government grants received from the relevant 4 :28,193,0007T) ZEEWAEA BB
government bodies to support the research and development activities FEEREZBFEE WX EAER 2
of the Group. During the year, the income of $59,197,000 (2019: SEB) o £7 - 59,197,000 (20194 :
$20,703,000) has been credited to the consolidated statement of profit 20,703,0007T) ZWARERBTHETRZE
or loss upon fulfilment of certain conditions specified by the government THEF BT AGEEER

bodies.
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37 JERHERTH

37 Share options scheme

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
approved and adopted on 22 June 2012 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to directors and employees of the Group who
contributes to the success of the Group’s operations. The Scheme became
effective on 22 June 2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that date, after
which period no further options will be issued but in all other respects the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme
unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from its shareholders. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit. Notwithstanding the above,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30
percent of the shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue.

The period under which an option may be exercised will be determined
by the board of directors at their absolute discretion and notified by the
directors to each grantee as being the period during which an option may
be exercised, and shall expire no later than the 10th anniversary of the
date upon which the option is granted and accepted in accordance with
the Scheme. Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors and
specified in the offer letter at the time of the offer, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before the option can be exercised.
An option is open for acceptance for a period as determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion. The amount payable on acceptance of each grant
of options is $1. The full amount of exercise price for the subscription for
shares has to be paid upon exercise of an option.

ARAlRA—RERES ([58]]) R2012
F6A22BHERRKS » UHAEBEKK
NELERZASEEZREERESHREL
By o HEIR2012F6 A22 B A - Mk IEER
HHEEE] - BRZTEERNE BB TEN
W ARHERE - T2ERLEAER
- EEMBEMAE - HEEXIAT R
NRIER °

BRIERARERESTHA - TRAIRBHITE
ARG B AR A B R AR 2R 2 B
frEmae T ETRREE ERABHEBR
IEFTEIZEREBRTRODBE 210% ° REF
BT Az BRER TSR E AZ10% R
o Em - RBHITEREEIRARA
A E BRI B DM T2 MARTTHERE
BEMA AT ZRIDEE LRTERBTEE
BTN 22 30% ©

BRBEERBHEATES RO LR - AR
IRRNEMI2EA SRR TR 28E 2 BRE
(BREETERRRITECBRE) MBETR
BBETZRNHAE  TEEAERTRNER
210/0 °

BREZATEHNREFTE2ERT - T/
ESRABARA > MBEBITEARARE
ERBRERERERAE AL RI0EFE
BAIEM - BRIFEZERTE AR HERER
RETEARER - DAETEBRERN TR
LAFRBREZREAR - BEET R
RHZBEOERDHESS2RRT @ BT
Fih 2 BIER A NIRRT » R 217
EEANTHEBRER2EA -
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37 MEMHERHE (4)
THEEMESSETRBNEEE  TFEA
ELRATZESE - (\WEHER (BERE
¥H) EEBBARFERARFHRERA
HzRHOWTE  RNERREEBRAE
SEAERBHARIMBR AR ERRERM
OB EFEHE -

37 Share options scheme (continued)

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the board of directors
and notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited's daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of grant, which must be
a business day, and (ii) a price being the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer of grant.

(a) The terms and conditions of the share options outstanding (@) AR I R AT 0 I M BE < ks B A e
as at end of the year are as follows: T

Number of Contractual life
instruments Exercise price  Vesting date Expiry date of options
TA%R 1t  HERH glaa=y
(note 37(b))
(Bi=E37())
At 31 December 2020 120205124318
Options granted to directors ~ RYESREEZE
and employees: g :
-on 20 June 2017 - 201746 4208 51,782,827 2.902  20/06/2019 19/06/2022 5.00
2019668208 202246 7319H
-on 20 June 2017 - 201746 4208 38,837,107 2.902  20/06/2020 19/06/2022 5.00
2020668208 202246 7319H
-on 20 June 2017 - 201746 4208 38,837,153 2.902  20/06/2021 19/06/2022 5.00
202168208 20226 7319H
Options granted to directors ~ RYESREEZE
and employees: g -
—on 8 February 2018 - 201842 A8H 9,659,143 2.869  20/06/2019 19/06/2022 4.36
2019%6A208  2022%6719H
—on 8 February 2018 - 201842 A8H 7,244,358 2.869  20/06/2020 19/06/2022 4.36
2020668208 20226 A19H
—on 8 February 2018 - 201842 A8H 7,244,370 2.869  20/06/2021 19/06/2022 4.36
2021668208  2022%6A19H
Total share options outstanding  # &1 EREGE 153,604,958
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37 Share options scheme (continued) 37 MEMHERHE ()

(a) The terms and conditions of the share options outstanding (@) AR AR I AR AT B i B BE A AR R 1
as at end of the year are as follows: (continued) T (#)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 153,604,958 RBEEHR - BEFE - XARAA
share options outstanding under the Scheme, representing 153,604,958 7 B M #E (E AR RN %A
approximately 1.73% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that BEETIRMA1.73%) MATE - KRB
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, B2 ARBRALERE  BEOFERRITE
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue BRI B 17889 53,604,958 %
of 153,604,958 additional ordinary shares of the Company and an AR LR - RARZAEN550,988,000
increase in share capital of $550,988,000 (before issue expenses). 7t (RIMBRETRL) °

(b) Share options movement during the reporting period (b) e SO0 P i e il 22
REFTEIR HERECSE RNEFLHT
FENT :

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options
under the Scheme are as follows:

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
EES B IEFH ERE
TEE 2A 11128 B!
$per share $per share
Fhot
Outstanding at the beginning ~ REMHARTTE
of the year 3.029 146,821,811 3.041 219,017,280
Exercised during the year (i) RERTTEE ) - - 2191  (26,348,178)
Forfeited during the year RERE I - - 3102  (19,015,772)
Lapsed during the year RERNKH - - 2.831  (36,933,519)
Adjusted during the year (ii) iNGEEE() 6,783,147 10,102,000
Outstanding at the end RERMRITEE
of the year 2.895 153,604,958 3.0299 146,821,811
Exercisable at the end RERA T
of the year 2.897 107,523,435 3.0300 58,728,708

The options outstanding at 31 December 2020 had an exercise
price of $2.869 — $2.902 (2019: $3.001 — $3.036) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1.47 years (2019: 2.43 years).

R 2020%12 A31 B i AR 1TFBIRIERTT
#{8/452.8697T —2.9027T (20194 -
3.0017C —3.03670) * MEFIHHBAEL
FERAET.47F (20195 : 2.435F) o
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37 Share options scheme (continued)
(b) Share options movement during the reporting period
(continued)

U)

(i

(iti)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the subscription
rights attaching to 26,348,178 share options were exercised
at the weighted average exercise price of $2.191 per share,
resulting in the issue of 26,348,178 shares for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of $57,729,000. The
corresponding amount included in share option reserve of
$10,096,000 was also transferred to share capital upon the
exercise of the share options, resulting in a total increase in
share capital of $67,825,000. In 2020, no share options were
exercised.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year ended 31 December
2019 was $2.566 per share.

The number of unexercised share options and the exercise price
may be subject to adjustment in case of alteration in the capital
structure of the Company. Pursuant to the announcements
dated 17 August 2018, 19 November 2018, 15 August 2019,
18 November 2019 and 17 August 2020, the Company adjusted
the exercise price and number of options outstanding with
reference to the terms of the Scheme and the supplementary
guidance attached to the letter of the Stock Exchange relating to
share option schemes dated 5 September 2005. The adjusted
number and exercise prices for each batch of share options are
presented in note 37(a) above.

The Group recognised a share option expense of $10,525,000
during the year (2019: $26,836,000).

37 JEMHEREE ()
(b)  Hefh A RS B (4])

U)

(it

(i)

REZE2019F12A31BILEE -
26,348,178 BBk #E 2 FrFY SR BB 48
ANG R 2.191 T 2 nEF 51T
EBIT6E - EHIA57,729,0007T
ZHEBERE GNBRFAXA) #17
26,348,178 i 1D o MEEMRIEITHE
% - st ABRIERE10,096,0007T
ZHESBETEREZRA - BFER
KA 1 1N67,825,0007T © K2020

REZ2019F12 831 HILFE @ B
WRBEFTEE B AT T 2 ET R D
B AB2.5667T °

AIEERELHERITEESHE
AARRAEEZSMAE - RE
20188 A17H ~ 2018%F11 A19
H - 201948H15H + 2019F 11
A18B X2020F8 A17BZ A% -
RRAREBE BB R R R Pt R
MRt A B8 420056F9 A5 H
B R BE B MO TR HE B T M R 1T R B
RIEITHEEREE L AR o Jit
B CRBRHE RTEEREX
B3E37(a) R

FR AEEBEIBREF
£10,525,0007 (20194 :
26,836,0007T) °
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38 Capital and reserves 38 AL filifh
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEZR AW 2 S B
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of AEERERAKSDORBIRBRER
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the CHERENGEREEEHRA - ARFE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in FESAKDORENRERZEEFE
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning FHHMT

and the end of the year are set out below:

Share  Share option Retained
capital reserve profits
TR ERERE RE R
$'000 $'000 $'000
Sz b S
At 1 January 2019 7201941 A1H 20,688,259 82,873 1,335,047 22,106,179
Total comprehensive income FRZENERE
for the year - - 1,181,940 1,181,940
Final 2018 dividends 2018F R EIfR S 675,777 - (928,407) (252,630)
Interim 2019 dividends 2019F R EIR B 478,407 = (607,461) (129,054)
Exercise of share options TR 67,825 (10,096) = 57,729
Forfeit and lapse of share options  FERR R U 2 k4 - (5,975) 5,975 =
Equity-settled share option PARR AR f+f 2 BB AR 4
expense sz - 26,836 - 26,836
At 31 December 2019 and 201912 A31H
1 January 2020 20201 B1H 21,910,268 93,638 987,094 22,991,000
Total comprehensive income FREEKEBE
for the year - - 3,040,080 3,040,080
Final 2019 dividends 2019F RER B 161,488 - (971,678) (810,190)
Interim 2020 dividends 2020 F R HifR S - - (622,993) (622,993)
Equity-settled share option IARRAN S < 2 B G
expense 53 - 10,525 = 10,525

At 31 December 2020 20204612 A31H 22,071,756 104,163 2,432,503 24,608,422
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38 HEARRGEM (4)
Share capital (b)

A

BEITRER

8,899,893,115 %
(20194 : 8,833,437,048/%)
T

Issued and fully paid:

8,899,893,115 (2019: 8,833,437,048)
ordinary shares

22,071,756 21,910,268

During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows: ER - RAEEUT :

Number of Number of
shares in Issued shares in Issued share
issue  share capital issue capital
ERITRAEE ERITRE BEETRNHEE BEITRA
$°000 $'000
=N & B
At 1 January M1A1E 8,833,437,048 21,910,268 8,413,711,807 20,688,259
Share options exercised Ed e
(note 37(b)(i)) (M ZE37(b)()) - - 26,348,178 67,825
Final dividend in the form of IAFTRR A9 7 = IR B
new shares (note 13(b)) Z AR S
(HI5E13(b)) 66,456,067 161,488 237,949,329 675,777
Interim dividend in the form of ~ DAFTRR (7 /50 IR 3%
new shares (note 13(c)) Z P ERR S
(FH5E13(c)) - - 155,427,734 478,407
At 31 December MW12A31H 8,899,893,115 22,071,756 8,833,437,048 21,910,268
Note: BiaE

RIECEB R RMED]) F1351% -
BB mEE o

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the RARER

ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value.

TEERAAGREBRIREIRZBE I
BRNARARIRREAE LRERFE—HE
FE - L BREARRZHBEESZS
EE: FI

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from
time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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38 Capital and reserves (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves

(c)

()

(1)

(i)

()

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion of the grant date
fair value of unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note

2(s) ().

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
leasehold land and buildings held for own use in note 2(i).

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of equity investments designated at FVOCI under
HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting period (see
note 2(g)).

Statutory reserve

PRC statutory reserves were established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles
of association of respective companies of the Group. PRC
companies are required to transfer certain of their net profits
(after offsetting prior year losses), as determined under the
approval by the board of directors, to statutory general reserve.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good prior years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into capital by issuing new
shares to shareholders proportionate to their existing percentage
of equity interests provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in notes 2(w).

38 BEARKGEfE ()
il 2 MR % o

(c)

()

()

(i)

)

BIRERE

BREREREINERTEALRIE
BERTE BRENKEEE
DA ZEEEERIE2(S) ()W
VARG AR S 9 BT BR 4 2 2 5T IR T AR

i

BEELWHE
ERRME2()RFEEAZHEEL
St R IEF IR 2 @Rt IRRR UL KT
FRIEBESHRER -

DA ERE (TEAEE)

AEREEERREHREEZR
BEPNBREENEIRIETESR
EENERARETECRE
REZDAERREEZELEY (RHHE
9

/N
&
H

N
—
~

o

AT

R BUATE i DR RAER R B AR A R
ERARARER AR 2 RAAM
BRAAEY - PEARAREX
REETAMN (RRBAEFERR
®R)BERE-REITHE (KE=E
HERETE) °

—REEREUVRANBHBTFES
B (nE) YaEBRERAER
EEDLREEETHR A ESR
BER  HBOBZEHTERF
&R 225% °

EiEDE
EX SRR RN LS Y
BRREL Y FEELEE -
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38 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vi)  Other reserve
Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid and the book value of the share of net
assets acquired in respect of the acquisition of non-controlling
interests, and the difference between the consideration received
and the book value of the share of net assets disposed of in
respect of a change in the ownership interest in a subsidiary
without a loss of control.

Distributability of reserves and dividends

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
$2,432,503,000 (2019: $987,094,000). Dividends declared and paid
out of these distributable reserves are detailed in note 13.

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to ensure
the financing capabilities of the Company in running its operation on
a going concern basis, to maintain an optimal capital structure, to
reduce capital cost and to maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure appropriately
according to the specific features of the risks of its assets and
the changes in various economic conditions. Through adjustments
in dividend distribution, injections and repayments of capital by
shareholders or issuance of new shares, the Group is able to maintain
an optimal capital structure of the Company.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company.
The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.
Net debt is interest-bearing bank and other borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents and restricted cash.

38 EAKfhfE ()

(c)

(d)

(e)

R K% (8)

Vi) EfEE
HitEEa BT RERAE
BERREEIEFkELEFERR
B8 URESEWBEARE
BREEREY CRAEEHE) HE
ZBMREBEMTEEEFEREE
ZER o

Tk At T JBt B2 T AR b
R2020%12 8318 » AIt DR FAAE
BRBR R #HEBEEA2,432,503,0007T
(20194 : 987,094,0007T) ° B#% SR
EDRFEEE R KRS 2 RS BE R
H13 0

A
AEBEAEERRZ B R AHERARF
ZRERNARARTELEEELER
B WEEARFBRICIERRE - HIE
ARARERREEZAL

AEERBEESEBECRERREHLE
BREMNBHEE W HAERREE
TEERAE - BRABKREDE - KR
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38 Capital and reserves (continued)
(e) Capital management (continued)

38 BEARKGEfE ()

The gearing ratios as at the end of the current and previous reporting

periods are as follows:

(e) BEAEH ()

RABEBARERRAEEMT ¢

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

2020%F12H31H 201941273318

$'000 $'000

SO AT

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ~ FFERITREMEE 30,828,413 24,297,918

Less: Cash and cash equivalents A HeRREEEY (16,166,471) (9,653,239)

Restricted cash XRAR2 (2,543,969) (2,719,521)

Net debt FER 12,117,973 11,925,158
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of 22 B)4E 2 I SR FE {5 o

the Company 50,624,285 44,474,656

BEX 24% 27%

Gearing ratio
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39 Financial risk management
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also exposed to
equity price risk arising from its equity investments in other entities and
movements in its own equity share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade receivables, other receivables, loans to related
parties and financial guarantee on mortgage loans. Among these
credit risk exposure, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash is limited because the
counterparties are state-owned financial institutions and reputable
banks which are all high-credit-quality financial institutions.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 5% (2019: 6%) and
17% (2019: 19%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

For trade receivables in respect of property development, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to purchasers
with an appropriate financial strength and appropriate percentage of
down payments. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivables to ensure that adequate loss allowance are made
for irrecoverable amounts.

For other trade receivables, the Group’s customer base is diversified
and has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Trade receivables
are due from 30 to 180 days to from the date of billing. The Group
has a policy to closely monitor the settlement status of these trade
receivables and all long outstanding balances are requested to be
settled before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

39

SO 7 o A B
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BEREFHREE o
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39 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

For other receivables, finance lease receivables and loans to related
parties, management makes periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability of outstanding balances
based on historical settlement records and past experience. The
directors of the Company believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of other receivables and
loans to related parties.

For properties that are still under construction, the Group typically
provides guarantees to banks in connection with the customers’
borrowing of mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the
properties for an amount up to 70% of the total purchase price of
the property. If a purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage
during the term of the guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may
demand the Group to repay the outstanding amount under the loan
and any accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to retain the customer’s deposits and sell the property
to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. Unless the
selling price would drop by more than 30%, which is remote, the
Group would not be in a loss position in selling those properties out.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is largely mitigated. The maximum exposure to credit risk
in respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 42.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of a financial asset and whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information, including credit rating of the borrower,
actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions, actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower and whether there are significant
increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same
borrower.

39

A 5 I B B ()
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i BB ()
pEBRYGR - mEBERKKARS
THRHMAIENNE - EEERBELAE
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39 Financial risk management (continued) 39 Ak EE (%)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EEERKE ()
() Trade receivables (excluding prepayments and loans to related ) ERE (TEEEMFERE TE
and third parties) BhRE=THEN)

ARERBEEMERELNFIR
U e RS (E A 7 S\RHIRREIE R
BRBf - ZENAFRKER (T
BRBENFERETEB I RE =]
HMER) RARETENERERE
& o

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for trade
receivables (excluding prepayments and loans to related and
third parties).

TREFITEEEEROEERMELE
WEHEROBRERRROER -

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables:

Expected loss Gross carrying Loss

rate amount allowance

b P REAE BARE

% $'000 $'000

% T T

Current (not past due) & (ReE) 5% 472,955 23,648
Less than one year past due ~ @EIDRA—F 10% 279,434 27,943
One to two years past due B FEWE 20% 171,474 34,295
Two to three years past due ~ BEIRMEZ =4 50% 74,323 37,162
Over three years past due BEA=FIA 100% 39,352 39,352
1,037,538 162,400
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39 Financial risk management (continued) 39 WA kB (4)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EHEER ()
() Trade receivables (excluding prepayments and loans to related () ERES (TEZENHELRS T
and third parties) (continued) BrRE=FTHE) (&)

Expected loss Gross carrying Loss

rate amount allowance

TREEA R RERE BREE

% $'000 $'000

% TE T

Current (not past due) BNER (k@ H) 5% 220,283 11,014
Less than one year past due ~ @HDR—4F 10% 255,138 25,514
One to two years past due B —FEMF 20% 152,783 30,557
Two to three years past due  BEIMFE=F 50% 64,987 32,494
Over three years past due BE=FE 100% 32,685 32,685
725,876 132,264

Expected loss rates are estimated using a provision matrix, TEHIB R R T E B ARG
taking into account the past due status of the customers. As TZEIEFBEHMRRT - BRA
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate EEHNREREERAKHIY RKH
significantly different loss patterns for different customer TRXFPHNBAEAGEEEE
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not B At ER BB R 6B k&G
further distinguished between the Group’s different customer Tef—FRMIAEENTIEARE
bases. The expected loss rates are adjusted periodically to BoAHBAXReTHAR Uik
reflect changes in current economic conditions and the Group’s 2RI T E B A R R 2 B
view of forecast economic conditions over the expected lives of JFE Uit AR X 78 B 4 A A 78 B A8 T A L

the trade receivables. B o
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39 Financial risk management (continued)

(@ Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (excluding prepayments and loans to
related and third parties) (continued)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

(i)

(1)

39 BAFE R ()
(a) EEERKE ()

()

BRES (TEEENFBELETH
BrRE=FHEN) (&)
FRERRUESZ BARBERES
W

Balance at 1 January ™M B1R 7 &% 132,264 118,596
Impairment losses recognised during the year ~ FRN2HERREERE 21,965 16,625
Amounts written off during the year FAME 2R (400) (54)
Exchange realignment B 5 388 8,571 (2,903)
Balance at 31 December W12 B31 82 & 162,400 132,264

Finance lease receivables and loans to related and third parties

For loans to related parties and third parties, the Group
monitors the credit risk over the terms of the loans and provide
for expected credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss
rates for each category of loan, and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data. The ECL provision is limited to 12 months
expected losses unless there is a significant increase in credit
risk for that related/third party, which the Group considers as
an underperforming loan and makes ECL provision based on
lifetime expected losses. The Group’s expected credit loss rates
on loans to related parties and third parties range from 1% to
5%, depending on management’s assessment of credit risks
of the counterparties based on various internal and external
factors.

For finance lease receivables, the Group assesses the credit risk
of the lessee and monitors the lease receivables regularly to
mitigate the risk of significant exposure of default. In calculating
the ECL rates, the Group considers historical loss rates and
adjusts for forward looking information.

(1)

EUHBR i TR T RE

%%%%%E&% HRAE XM
s AEERERHBRAEZEE
Rk - ¥ RETRBHEREL -
EERHEERBAXRE £&F
ZEEBHEFMELERE - ¥t
AEMZECESRELAZE - B
%%%E%%ﬁuwﬂﬂ@%ﬁ%
BR - RIEZEY  E=ARE
R EEEE N - wm%lﬁﬁﬁ%
TRER @ UREBREGFEDRES
BAEHBHERBARE - A%
l%%ﬁﬁﬁ&%:ﬁméﬁM%%
ERBAENMI%ES%Z M -
SRINE EEEE%EWﬂ&%ﬂI%
R HHFHEERBRE

PREBERYFEAMNS - A5HE
FEAEAZEERR - YEHRE
EHERWTE - UREENZE
AEERR - REERAEHRAX
R AEEEZREELERX - ¥
PATEIE B RHEL AR -
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39 Financial risk management (continued) 39 WA kB (4)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) fEEERE (8

(i) Finance lease receivables and loans to related and third parties (i) BEHEBUNNERETHGETRE
(continued) =y :0)-¢- 8¢ V)
No significant change to estimation techniques or assumptions RB|EBRA - [t A ERBRERL
was made during the reporting period. BAEEREL -
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of deposit, FANEEL  BENREREME
prepayments and other receivables and other financial assets WHIRA R E fh & BB B 2 BREAE
during the year is as follows: REHHOT -

Deposits,
prepayments and Other financial
other receivables assets

A% BYRE

R H KA HttEMEE

$'000 $°000
T TG
Balance at 1 January 2020 R2020%F1 A1 H 2 &8 171,955 89,295 261,250
Impairment losses FREERAERE
recognised during the year 32,758 (56,628) (23,870)
Amounts written off during FRMBE &
the year (79) - (79)
Exchange realignment ME o 11,836 5,460 17,296
Balance at 12020612318

31 December 2020 ZEEH 216,470 38,127 254,597
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39 Financial risk management (continued) 39 Ak EE (%)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EEERKE ()
(i) Finance lease receivables and loans to related and third parties (i) BEHERNTERE T RE
(continued) =y:0)-¢- 8¢ V)

Deposits,
prepayments and Other financial
other receivables assets

A& BNE

REAMREYFIA HibeMEE

$'000 $'000
T S
Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019%F1 A1 H 2 &4 148,382 106,290 254,672
Impairment losses FRERRRESR
recognised during the year 27,265 (14,942) 12,323
Amounts written off during FAMBE e
the year (7) — (7)
Exchange realignment P 5 R (3,685) (2,053) (5,738)
Balance at K2019F12A31H
31 December 2019 - 171,955 89,295 261,250
(b) Liquidity risk (b) VB
Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its current EAREREERACI AR A ERH
liabilities that fall due. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance EERBUERR - AEBEEERERRE
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of short HRRBROEFREMEE - #15ES
and long term bank loans and other borrowings. Through maintaining BERBEEEE TE - BBBKEEE
a reasonable proportion in its asset and liability structure, the Group BEFBRBESELY - AEEWRE

is able to meet its ongoing financial needs. HSEHMBEE -
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39 Financial risk management (continued) 39 WA kB (4)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) WEHEREFE (H)
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the TRIRAEEUGHNRERASTKE
end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which (BEFEREOFES (NAZE) ZRE
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest EMRBAMEFEZFEFR) BE
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on MeRBERREPRBT 2ANHAR
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date RAGSEZRERS N HEAY :

the Group can be required to pay:

2020 Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANEEHRERREREE

Carrying
amount at
Within One to Two to Over 31 December
oneyear  twoyears three years three years 2020
20205
‘ 128318
-FR -EWE  REZE  BE=E ZEAE
$'000 $'000 $'000 ‘ $'000
o T T T I
Interest-bearing bank and other ~ FEFTREMEE
barrowings (note 30) (i (H&£30) () 7411 13570705 6,358,157 537,702 4274326 32,748,301 30,828,413
Lease liahilities (note 31) RERE (W31 - 134017 116250 103,121 165,169 518,557 455,633
Trads payables (note 32) R (HE32) 3,863,062 - - - - 3,863,062 3,863,062
Other payables (note 33) EAERTUR (H:33) 7,240,075 - - - - 7240075 7,240,075
Loans from fellow subsiciaries KB FZMBAR &R
(note 33) (Fz£33) 69,511 3,137,120 - - - 3206631 3,137,120
Loans from joint ventures REAEDEZER
(note 33) (HizE33) 431 123,435 - - - 123,866 123,435
Loans from associates REBENFZER
(note 33) | u£33) 20,660 - - - - 20,660 20,660
Loans from ather related REEMEE S 2 ER
parties (note 33) (BrzE33) 1,832 38,168 148,184 - - 188,184 185,961
Loans from non-contralling REFEERERER
interests (note 33) (H33) 186,352 - - - - 186,352 186,352
Due to the immediate holding ERTERERARE
company (note 29(c)) (BE2910)) 664,751 381,510 28,930 698,963 - 1,774,154 1,770,744
Due to the ultimate holding e S A NI
company (note 29(c)) (WEE29(0) 5,564,506 3,006,427 1,144,743 - - 9805766 9,415,468
Total a3 17,618,681 20,481,382 7,796,264 9,339,786 4,439,495 59,675,608 57,226,923

Adjustments to present cash flows  BEEFAEKER
on other borrowings based on~ EFS=EHE

lender's right to demand FEARRERE
repayment in every 3 years gk - - - 1614153  (2,251,304)  (637,151) -
Total it 17,618,681 20,481,382 7,796,264 10,953,939 2,188,191 59,038,457 57,226,923
()  The repayable schedule is based on the assumption that the outstanding ()  EBRETEIHENRRACMBNE ST B
amount of the CMBN will not be required to be redeemed at the end of every H) HAPR (N = 4 45 R B 7 8 7 [0] CMBN
three years during the terms of the date of issue for the CMBN. HIRERSH o
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39 Financial risk management (continued) 39 Ak EE (%)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) WEHERERE (8)

2019 Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

Carrying
amount at
On Within One to to Qver 31 December
demand one year twoyears  three years  three years Total 2019
R2019%
‘ 12431R
—EMF ME=E LEREE
$'000 $'000 ‘ $000
T I T T T
Interest-bearing bank SRR R EM

and other borrowings {6 (M330)

(note 30) - 9497131 6,685,902 5969566 4,432,488 26,585,087 24,297,918
Lease liabilties (note 31) ~ HEE&(E (K1) - 125116 111670 101,110 247073 584,969 505,017
Trade payables (note 32 FETARAR (FEE32) 2,625,609 - - - - 2625609 2,625,609
Other payables (note 33)  EftfE[ZUA

(M3233) 7,880,180 - - - - 7880180 7,705,540
Loans from fellow RERZHELA

subsidiaries (note 33) 2B (#£33) 173923 3,997,282 - - - 4171205 4,049,884
Loans from joint ventures ~~ REAERFZ

(note 33) &5 (£33) 7350 341445 - - - 348795 342,239
Loans from associates REBERE

(note 33) B (M333) 45,922 - - - - 45,922 45,922
Loans from an other RAAEE 2

related party (note 33) B (M333) 182,994 - - - - 182,994 175,528
Loans from non-controling K& FEiEMRIER 2

interests (note 33) B (M3£33) 639,608 - - - - 639,608 639,608
Due to the immediate ENERERAR

holding company B (M329(c)

(note 29(c)) 562,926 32,706 32,659 729,857 - 1,358,148 1,263,846
Due to the ultimate ENRRIERAT

holding company U (fif29(c)

(note 29(c)) 652,727 1,303,269 - - - 1,955,996 1,936,473

Total | 12,771,239 15296949 6,830,231 6,800,633 4,679,561 46,378,513 43,587,684
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39 Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group is mainly due to the interest rate
fluctuations of its bank and related parties borrowings. Interest on
these borrowings is computed based on market rates.

The Group will constantly assess the interest rate risk it encounters
to decide whether it is required to hedge against the possible interest
rate risk that may arise.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had $28,000,898,000 (2019:
$21,011,092,000) variable interest rate borrowings which expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. If the interest rate of these
borrowings had increased/decreased by 0.5% and all other factors
remained unchanged, the profit after tax for the year of the Group
would have decreased/increased by approximately $126,765,000
(2019: $94,407,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and the impact on the Group’s profit after tax
(and retained profits) is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2019.

Currency risk

Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in RMB
and the Group’s assets held and all of the committed borrowings of
the Group are mainly denominated in RMB, except for certain US$-
denominated bank loans held by the Company.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency risk as
it had minimal transactions denominated in foreign currencies during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 and the impact of
foreign currency risk on the Group’s operation is minimal. The US$-
denominated bank loans are currently not hedged as the directors
consider the risk of movements in exchange rates between the United
States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar (the Company's functional
currency) to be insignificant.

(c)

A 5 I B B ()

2% i
AEEZNZRBRTIERERITREYS
EEZMERBMESE - REEEZHE
BREMSHEGE -

AEE R EFEPTEN AR IARTE =2
AFBEPA L ELE 2 T REMRER o

R2020F12A31H ' "EEA
28,000,898,0007T (2019%
21,011,092,0007C) B EE » SAEE
AEEEREFNRER - WEZEEE
FIREF/TH05%  MAAEMEE
BRETE - AIAKE 2 FARTZRF
BeR L/ 1204126,765,0007T (2019
£ 1 94,407,0007T) °

FRERE S MERA S B R L ER
(RRBEF) e EEMBEES - &
RERSFMEEHENREHREE - MA
SEBRTRET (RRBEFN) AIXTET
BREBFEEHEFE(F ST H A
VR B{E(fE o AT HERE2019F R
R EEET o

R i
AEBEBPABDEERZAARE -
BARKEMRBEERARERAEAHRE
ERTRUARKIIE - BARARFELZ
ETRITETAETTEHERIN ©

2h - ARBYEFBINERRCBRK
TEAEBREZ2019%F 22020512 A
STALFEREFRIUINEFEBEZR
5 WAINERREAEBEE L FEK
N o UETFHEZ SBITE XK B AL RS
W DHRESRAETEBT (KA
ZUREER) EMEXREE  FEEN
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39 Financial risk management (continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from listed and
unlisted equity investments held for trading and non-trading purposes
(see note 24).

The Group's listed equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong and Shanghai Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or
sell trading securities are based on the performance of individual
securities compared to that of the relevant stock market Index and
other industry indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. Listed
equity investments that are not held for trading purposes have been
chosen based on their longer term growth potential and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments are not held for trading
purposes and have been chosen based on their longer term growth
potential. Their performance is assessed regularly and the decisions
to buy or sell is based on the Group’s long term strategic plans.

39 BAFE R ()

(e)

I HE A L
ARBEEEREERFEEANMBEN
7R IR R BRAR R A A A A R (B AR
g8 (RHeE24) »

AEEN EMBRERERE BB RN
BEFRXPH LT - BARHEREE 5
HIRE I ERERE SR ERRED
GRERAMTEERNRANRAEHE
HRPETNFTE - UHREEBNME
BH ETREREMERDREBEEARAT
BN TEHERHERRARLTHNA
B -

AEEMFLEMREREYFRERRR
Mg MERBERATEENMR
B HRRETHIE - MEBERTAE
RAGER KRR SIS
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39 Financial risk management (continued)

(e)

Equity price risk (continued)

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that an increase/ (decrease)
of 1% (2019: 1%) in the relevant stock market index (for listed
equity investments) and the price/book ratios of comparable listed
companies (for unlisted equity investments and derivative financial
instrument) as applicable, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated equity as follows:

Change in the
relevant equity

Effect on profit

A )
(e)

39

Effect on other
components of

B H ()

JRERE A R Bt ()
R2020F12A31H © MFFAEEMES
BEAE G EEREMSES (3L
MREREME) RUBELRETDAN
MRE (FELTRERERITESBT
AmE) (WEm) &0,/ Chd) 1%
(2019%F : 1%) - BERAEEMNBRER
s (RRBEFH) RiZAESMEMbAR
R,

Effect on other
components of

Effect on profit
after tax and

price risk after tax and

variables: retained profits
HHREERRREE HRH2ENR

Mg REBFNZE

$°000

T

Increase 120 1% 50,745

Decrease A (1%) (50,745)

equity retained profits equity
HREGNHEM ﬂﬁﬁ&mﬂ HigmrHm
ARBONTE RELRNOTE iy ‘
$'000 $'000
T St
40 51,408 37
(40) (51,408) (37)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock market index or other relevant risk variables had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed
that the fair values of the Group’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant stock
market index or the relevant risk variables, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2019.

FREAMMBIASEORTEEN (R
RERF) REFEERMEMARIH T
BREEMEINEY  ERREARENSHE
%iﬁmﬁ%ﬂﬁZEZ%amﬁ%%X
BE - WEEARENGEAEEMER
ZERIE  MASIASAEENRE
HRAAZBREBKRER - AEETERR
HRERE 2 A BRREERERET
GRERESEEARRESEZELBEEEM
BE - MABEMESEFTE - HMD
ERHE2019F HRIMELEETT ©
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40 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

(a)

Financial assets measured at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available.

e level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

The Group’s Financial Management Department headed by the
General Manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The Financial Management Department reports directly to an
executive director of the Company and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the Financial Management Department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the executive director. The valuation process and results
are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

40 EMTHRZARMRN REERIRME

(a)

ARG Z SR E
TREFASERRERRRLEEHRE
AR REBMBREENE3R - A4
EFENEENRBLAAETRZER
TARARE - AREGEMERIERT
SREENEFERIBEEREREZ
BABEEOT :

N

FRHE: ERBFE-RBAE
(PAEEELAER EBHK
CHEZREMSRE) FBZAA
1

o FE_RMEE: KAE-HRBAE (F
WAREE-—RAIERBAE) B
ARBEATIBEBABFEZR
RE - PUBEHAERTTREE
MEBRZBAE

o ZFE=AME: RAEATITERS
ANBEHEZARE

ARENBEERENMBERSNAAE
AERTARABEMEZRRRER - B
BEERRERAARARTEZTRELE
BeRt  -NERSEH  MBERES
TERTAZEERSVEF GRETER
WEIBBAE - BEARTEETERLM
Ko BEREREREERZEEESH
MR - (ERERFERBERR o
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40 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial instruments 40 £ T HZ AR RA RESHERE (4)
(continued)
(a) Financial assets measured at fair value (continued) (a)

BARMEHBZ EMEE (B)

Assgts: Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using
BE: R2020512A31 BRRUTBAZ A AifEHE

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using
AEE

2019512 A31 BRI

Unadjusted
quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)

WERTE L
AEHREE

Unadjusted
quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3) Total

§£57
BERLE
(5-6) (5=8) ($=®) 48

§000  $000 §000  §'000
tr r tn

Observable
inputs

Observable
inputs
(Level 2)

TEER
BAE

Listed equity investments ~~ AE& L7z
in Hong Kong RiERE 1,982 - - 1,982 2,367 = - 2,367
Listed equity investments ~~ IARELAIE £
in mainland China IRERE 26,935 = = 26,935 31,801 = = 31,801
Unlisted equity jialeipNGE
investments Lz
in mainland China b} = - 6,740,989 6,740,989 = - 6194748 6,194,748
Derivative financial fiEEeRIA
instrument - - - - - - 597 221 597,221
28917 - 6,740,989 6,769,906 34,168 - 6,791,969 6,826,137
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements ERN - F-RRE-_HIEBENLE
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. SMEE  TEEAGELE=R o
(i)  The fair values of listed equity investments categorised under () PERIERBEREAALENEZS
“financial assets measured at FVPL" is measured using level 1 MEE | BTH ETRERENDA
fair value hierarchy and is determined based on quoted market BNERE—RAREEREEHSS
prices. ERETSHREET
(i) The fair values of unlisted equity investment categorised (i) [EME&mEE|BTIY>ENIELT

under “Other financial assets” are measured using level 3 fair
value hierarchy and are determined based on Guideline Public
Company Method.

BEREZAABERE=RDAME
ZRRBHE - UREESILRA
ARETETRE
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40 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
(continued)
(a) Financial assets measured at fair value (continued)
Information about level 3 fair value measurements

Valuation techniques

BER %

40 SMTHZARMERAREFEHRE (8)

(a) BARMEFEZEMEE (5)
BRE=RDAEHEZEH

Significant unobservable

Unlisted equity investment in
Hengda Real Estate

NMEXRME 2 EHBRERE

Guideline Public Company
Method

ESI RRARA

inputs Weighted average
EXFUBERAE ik Bl
Discount for lack of 24%

marketability (2019: 24%)

SIS BT R 24%

(20194F : 24%)

The fair value of the unlisted equity instruments in Hengda Real Estate
amounting to $6,737,000,000 (2019: $6,191,000,000) is determined
using Guideline public company method, which uses the price/book
ratios of comparable listed companies as benchmark and adjusted
for lack of marketability discount. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the price/book ratios and negatively correlated
to the discount for lack of marketability. As at 31 December 2020, it
is estimated that with all other variables held constant, a decrease/
increase in discount for lack of marketability by 1% would have
increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
by $16,068,000 (2019: $14,233,000).

REXMEZELETREIANA
£ 186,737,000,0007 (20194 :
6,191,000,0007t) J3{f AL AR AR
FET  HERATELK ETABNTE
KERERYB S MERBUITEETH

o MEFEEMRRZEHMLER
T RBUITESEHME - R2020F
12A318 ' WATEEMEER S TE
15;:1‘5;%5?17_ %/MLLHE%%‘E A /i-jjﬂ
1% @ BEHASERH BN RRE &
T,/ H416,068,0007 (20194
14,233,0007T) ©
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40 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial instruments 40 4@ TH2Z A RMERA RIS RER ()

(continued)

(a) Financial assets measured at fair value (continued) (a) FARMFEZEMEE (4)
The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3 fair FAZSE=BLAEFENHEED N
value measurements are as follows: T

Financial assets measured at fair value: RARENEZLREE :

At 1 January ™ A1H 6,791,969 6,600,546
Changes in fair value recognised in FARERRAN AN EE
profit or loss during the year (462,499) 342,297
Exchange realignment B 5 3% 411,519 (150,874)
At 31 December M12831H 6,740,989 6,791,969
Total gains or losses for the year included — RIREHARF B ABREEN
in profit or loss for assets held FREERAE
at the end of the reporting period (462,499) 342,297
(b) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other (b) 32 RAEVLAN I R i 4 i AL B
than fair value A Rl
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments carried at AEERKANSEEK AT ENSRTA
cost or amortised cost were not materially different from their fair MEEEEEEN2019F & 2020F 12 A 31

value as at 31 December 2019 and 2020. HZARBEITESKER -
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Commitments 41 R
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020 not provided for in 7202012 A31 B M ARITE RAR#M B @K AE
the financial statements were as follows: R EREARRENT

Commitments in respect of acquisition of land and ~ FtUEE 3 RIEF KR DY

buildings, and development costs attributable BRMAZHIE
to properties under development:

Contracted, but not provided for BAAVB R R 4,974,251 4,600,678
In addition to this, as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 14 BRULASN - MR AAT BEA201767 F148
July 2017, the Group agreed a maximum capital contribution to a related AR E  AEERERBYH S EAIER
party, Shum King Limited, of $3,000,000,000 for its development of a N EH&%E43,000,000,000 TA R EEHEERE
piece of land in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had an 23T o R2020F12A31H @ REEE
outstanding capital commitment to Shum King of $1,906,000,000 (2019: RS 2 MARTTE 2 B AHEHE £1,906,000,0007T
$1,971,500,000). (20194 : 1,971,500,0007T) °
Contingent liabilities 42 BRALKE
(a) Financial guarantees to purchasers of the Group's properties (@) AR B RILHEZ M E R

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has given guarantees to R2020%12A31H » KREBERRTH
a maximum extent of approximately $9,122,402,000 (2019: TARENEER FEEEFRRRITRE
$5,144,838,000) to banks for housing loans extended by the banks R%3£499,122,402,0007T (20194 :
to the purchasers of the Group’s properties. 5,144,838,0007T) Z &R °

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the BEERENR - HWRFERERIZER
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for E - ARBEARERMNAN 2RIBEFA
repaying the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued KR FIBE R RN IRIT 2 EMERFIS
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to banks. KA o AEEBRARREENEZE
The Group is then entitled to take over the legal title of the related EHERE c ARBZERBAKLABR
properties. The Group’s guarantee period commences from the date BEREARBRBEASENEERNSE
of grant of the relevant mortgage loan and ends after the buyer of the ERIMEFMBREERER

Group'’s properties obtain the individual property ownership certificate.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net BEERAE - WERNE  BEEWEZE
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment of BFERNENHAER 2 RBERER
the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest EMEFFERIIR - WARRZSERE
and penalty and therefore no provision has been made in connection HEE o

with the guarantees.
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42 Contingent liabilities (continued)

(b) Financial guarantees to related parties of the Group
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has given guarantees amounted
to RMB1,351,672,000 (2019: RMB1,344,292,000) in respect of bank
loans and other borrowings to Pik Sum and Taizhou Shum Yip, both of
which are joint ventures of the Group (see note 23).

43

Related party transactions

In addition to the related party transactions disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group also had the following related party
transactions:

(a) Financing arrangements

)

(i

The Group entered into certain financing arrangements with
its related parties which are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment, except for the balances
of $9,514,902,000 (31 December 2019: $6,587,557,000)
which are interest-bearing, unsecured and have fixed terms of
repayment ranging from one to three years. The amounts due
to these related parties at 31 December 2020 and the related
cash flows are disclosed in note 29(c). The related interest
expenses for the year are disclosed in note 7.

The Group also provides loans to its related parties which are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment,
except for balances of $2,048,011,000 (31 December 2019:
$2,860,786,000) which are interest-bearing, unsecured and
have fixed terms of repayment ranging from one to four years.
At 31 December 2020, the Group’s loans to joint ventures
and associates were $2,148,692,000 (31 December 2019:
$3,032,524,000) and $1,188,000 (31 December 2019:
$14,076,000) respectively. The related interest income from
the joint ventures and associates for the year ended 31
December 2020 were $117,688,000 (2019: $161,895,000)
and $520,000 (2019: $494,000) respectively.

42 FRAME (H)
(b) 4T AR SR I R TG Jy =2 A 45 R
R2020%12831H » AEERBEHRLF
MNFRE (MEHBAEBEEAF) 817
REME R ARE,351,672,0007T
(20194 : AR¥1,344,292,0007T) 2
ER (RKTE23) -

43 BB TR 5

RAERBERREMABOAREEI

KEE

TRBEATBHTZS

(a) MEZH

U)

(if

AEBHEER A UETHE
ZH o BRRETHAEER -
SEREETERY Be®h
9,514,902,0007t (2019412 A31
B : 6,587,557,0007T) 2t 5 - &
ERREATEFSERNT—2=F2
FERRBRIN o N2020%128318 -
ENZEBEHS A 2B RERRER
ERERME29(c) - FREEFE
B BEAMET

AEBETAEEB A REER B
BEFAERR  2ESREETE
BHH - BRe&%A2,048,011,000
Tt (2019912 A31H
2,860,786,0007T) 27T 8 - A
RETERBRN T —ENF 26
BB AN o P 2020F12 A31H » K
EELTAZEDARBERRZE
FD B A2,148,692,0007T (2019
F£12A318 : 3,032,524,0007T)
% 1,188,000t (2019412 A 31
H :14,076,0007T) ° 122020
F12A31HLEEE  KEAEAD
AREERAKNBEERNERAD
Al 4117,688,0007T (20194 :
161,895,00075) %520,0007C
(20194 : 494,0007T) °
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43 Related party transactions (continued)
(b) Leasing arrangements

U)

)

The Group entered into leases in respect of certain leasehold
properties from its related parties, with lease terms ranging
from 1 years to 5 years. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the amounts of rent payable by the Group under these
leases to its immediate holding company, fellow subsidiaries
and associates were $10,785,000 (2019: $4,972,000),
$4,842,000 (2019: $3,460,000) and $25,988,000 (2019:
$29,475,000) respectively. The related balances of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in note 20 and note 31
respectively.

The Group also entered into a lease arrangement with its
ultimate holding company as a lessor. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the rental income in respect of the lease
arrangement was $8,373,000 (2019: $13,038,000).

The prices for the above transactions were determined based
on mutual agreement between the parties.

(c) Other related party transactions

U)

On 2 July 2020, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement with Shum Yip Group, pursuant to which Shum
Yip Group agreed to sell and the Group agreed to purchase
52.848% equity interest in Shum Yip Jinzhi Logistic
Development Co., Ltd., at a consideration of RMB537,380,000
(equivalent to HK$638,514,000). The acquisition was completed
in September 2020.

The Group entered into arrangement with its ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries in which the Group provides
management services on its behalf in respect of certain
agricultural lands and property development projects. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the management fee income in
respect of these management services was $1,142,000 (2019:
$1,985,000).

43 BBHR S ()
(b) MEZH

U)

(i)

AEEREEB A NETHREDE
VY HEBHNT1ESF o
BHE2020F12B31HIEFE -
AEBREZSHOERNEERE
BAR - RENBARREE D
AYAMmEE551/A10,785,000
7t (20194 : 4,972,0007L) -
4,842,0007C (20194 : 3,460,000
7T) }25,988,0007T (20194 :
29,475,0007T) - FRAEEERH
EABNABERD BIBERHE
20 K fT3E31 ©

AEBEAHBANEERELER
NARIUEERH o BE2020F12
AS1HILEE - ERAERT MR
£ A A8,373,0007T (20194 :
13,038,0007T) ©

TRZZ 2 BRDEESREHTER

(c) HABHHITRS

U)

R2020%7 A28 @ "EERFRESE
BT WERZE - Bt - AEEE
AELEMASBERERBRAER
EYRERERNE52.848%H K
% REABARES537,380,0007C
(FBE7638,514,000587T) Ui
FIE2020F9 A=K ©

AEBEEZEIERA T REZKE
DRFTSZH - Bl - AEBERE
WETEERRMEREEERE
EERHE - 5£2020512A31H
EFE BHZEEERBNER
ZIWAA1,142,0007T (20194 -
1,985,0007T) °
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43 Related party transactions (continued)

(c)

(f)

Other related party transactions (continued)

(iii)  The Group entered into arrangement with its fellow subsidiaries
in which the Group provides IT system services to the fellow
subsidiaries. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
income in respect of these services was $1,800,000 (2019: nil)

(iv) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group sold
products to its joint ventures of $267,243,000 (2019:
$24,822,000).

(v)  The prices for the above transactions were determined based
on mutual agreement between the parties.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 10 and
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 11, is as
follows:

43 BBHR 5 (%)

(c)

HABBI R 5 (4)

iy ~"EEEERAZNBRARITLE
B Bl AEERRARTBAR
REEERITERRE - 8£2020
F12A31HILEFE - BEZERS

B A A&1,800,0007T (20194 -
) o

(V) EZE2020512831BIFE
AEERNEALLAIHEER
267,243,000 (20194 :
24,822,0007T) °

v) LilR5HzEBIEEFTHEBER
B -

EX 3 FiUNSLLES

AEEIREEAESZME (BHRENA
RAIEE (RME10AKE) RETRRD
FEE (RHENARE) 2&8) 0T :

Short-term employee benefits RHREERETF 18,222 16,094
Post-employment benefits RARER 2,501 2,619
Equity settled share option expense ARRA S 2 B ER X 2,821 6,586

23,544 25,299

Total remuneration is included in “staff cost” (see note 8(h)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected
transactions

The Group's related party transactions with Shum Yip Group, Shum Yip
Holdings and its fellow subsidiaries constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The directors of the Company confirmed that
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(f)

M & mEn [ B ITRA ] (RHFESD) °
1 A B 22 By 2 i WL 2 R

AEBEREREE  RX (RE) AR
FMBRAZEBAIZZBR LTRASE
TAABRRRAE LB FRHEAH L
5 o ARAIEFHALNFTCER LR
RIS1AABHORERE ©
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44 Company-level statement of financial position 44 5] g MR DL
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
12831H 12A31H
$'000 $'000
Fr ST
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 390 198
Investments in subsidiaries MBARRE 42,818,750 35,770,416
Investments in associates BENRIRE 18,970 28,557
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 42,838,110 35,799,171
Current assets MBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNIE - 5T REMEKTIE 1,132 2,778
Other financial assets HihemEE 1,981 2,367
Cash and cash equivalents RehFeEEY 1,023,253 882,377
Total current assets RBEERLE 1,026,366 887,622
Current liabilities mEans
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SRBITREMEE 7,079,809 1,579,077
Other payables and accruals HiEMREREE R 924,593 774,602
Due to the ultimate holding company JEN A E R R Rl 39,471 37,083
Due to the immediate holding company I ANIER S 2T UNCIE Q] 881,510 391,806
Total current liabilities TEBEEE 8,925,383 2,782,568
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (7,899,017) (1,895,046)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 34,939,093 33,904,125
Non-current liabilities FrBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HRBITREMEE 10,330,671 10,913,125
Total non-current liabilities kRBEERE 10,330,671 10,913,125

NET ASSETS EEFE 24,608,422 22,991,000
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44 Company-level statement of financial position (continued) 44 A M ER DR (8)
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20205 20194
12A31A 12A31H
$'000 $'000
S ST
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRf#E
Share capital N 38(b) 22,071,756 21,910,268
Other reserves H b &t 2,536,666 1,080,732
TOTAL EQUITY BESEE 24,608,422 22,991,000
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March REZE@N2021FE3 A0 BB AR FRTIZ -
2021.
Huang Wei Liu Shichao
B 2t @
Director Director

EF EZ
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Non-adjusting events after the reporting period
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the board of the directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 13.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance
conitracts, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2020 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

45

46

UNT LR
RBEEHRE - EFTQRBRERYIRE - £
—SRHERIE135E -

BE20204 12 H 31 H 1R4F B E AAH 14
A RORAERT ~ T o R R 2 R 09 v fE 3
ol

 ZREHBREATIZER - BEAGHMAE
BRGETET R— B R B BT BRE &
BT - REAA - NEE2020F12 A31
BIEFERAEN  TARZSUBERE TR
o ZEEIOREAEEAEEBAUATA

N
°
B

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT3 M &F%R2
B HEEXR

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework
BB BRERREIR 2IEE] - HE2 LM Eu

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
BBETENERZIER] - UE - BERRE - (EREAZHHFE5E

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BRGRREITR B - BERY — EHETER

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

2018 FE2020 FEME B M MEER 2 FRIE

1 January 2022
2022F1 H18
1 January 2022
20221 A1H
1 January 2022
20221 A1H
1 January 2022
20221 H18

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these developments is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

AEEEERZFET RN ERERABRO
EREFELFG - HEEMALZEHRA K
ZEGI PRGN BRRELEAY

B o

N

I ¥ 1
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Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development

BB — REEEA RS RAR I RBRZYHEMELS

Project Name

HEAR

Address

b

Interests

attributable to

Type the Group
r&EE

RitE Y

Site Area

IEER

Planned GFA
(sq.m.)
REREEER
(F5%)

Expected
Completion Year

Rt TEH

Property Interest held for future development

BERARRCYRER
Garden Hills Land Plot 1 Zhongkai Development Zone, Residential 100.00% 39,475 145,564 2024
Huizhou, Guangdong
L2511 R BERAEBMNTIHERER F=E
Wanlin Huafu Huicheng, Huizhou, Guangdong Residential 100.00% 72,922 314,360 2025
EER BREBMTERE F=E
Yihu Rose Garden Laohuaniao Block  Qingbaijiang, Chengdu, Sichuan Residential 52.54% 46,697 236,053 2024
TGHIBR I ETE S5 mExRBmEE LR =
Wuhan Bio Valley Project East Lake High-tech Development Residential 75.05% 93,200 260,000 2023
Zone, Wuhan, Hubei
REEMAEE LA R ET R AR F=E
Nanhu Rose Bay 1-3#(Phase 4) Wuchang, Wuhan, Hubei Residential 75.05% 29,322 130,883 2022
FMIBUIRIE1-34 (45) MEERETRER =
Chaohu Royal Spring Garden North Bantang Economic Development Residential 100.00% 78,827 28,997 Unscheduled
Zone, Chaohu, Hefei
EMMREIE AREAENTHSEERER FE AEatEl
Chaohu South Residential Bantang Economic Development Residential 100.00% 81,537 22,085 Unscheduled
Zone, Chaohu, Hefei
EmeiE ARAERT ST ERER T AEE
Taifu Square Phase 3 Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Complex 97.68% 8,807 130,781 2024
ZEES3H BRA T RHE HEB
Kashi Residential Land Plot 2 Duolaitebage Road, Kashi, Xinjiang Residential 100.00% 17,129 59,952 Unscheduled
Uygur Autonomous Region
W HEE25R 5 NEATRORRRATSRECHERE % PNCHE |
Xinhongcheng Guangming New District, Shenzhen, Residential 65.00% 48,680 327,089 2023
Guangdong
=i BRARTHAR F=E
Shum Yip Chuangzhi Building Longgang, Shenzhen, Guangdong Industrial 100.00% 8,437 51,120 2023
RERIBERE BREFImEEE EX
Chengdu Chenghua Shuanglin Chenghua, Chengdu, Sichuang Residential 75.05% 22,801 94,395 2024
Henglu North land Parcel
PREDRKE R E ML R ER 03 M)l & &R E R F=E
Chengdu Qingbaijiang Phoenix Qingbaijiang, Chengdu, Sichuang Complex 75.05% 114,000 284,000 2024
New Town land Parcel
REE QL RE R Y[RV i =hant=A A
Nansha Hengli Island 2020NJY-10 Hengli Island, Nansha, Guangzhou, Residential 100.00% 66,277 330,025 2024
land Parcel Guangdong
YRS 2020NJY-1040352 BREBNTROEES F=
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Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development

F—B — REEEA RS RAR I RBRZ Y HMELS

Interests Expected
attributable to Planned GFA Progress Completion
Project Name Address the Group Site Area (sq.m.) (note) Year

REEEEE BRRER At
HEER it ARE GRS B EE (F7K) (M=E) FELEH

Property interest held under development

BERRP 2WERER

Boying Building Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong  Industrial 97.68% 8,726 51,560 2 2021

HAXE BRERITRAR EX

Shum Yip Dongling Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Commercial 95.00% 6,751 76,733 3 2022

RERE BRERITRAR [HES

Parkview Bay Free Trading Area, Qianhai, Residential 50.00% 12,491 54,360 4 2021
Shenzhen, Guangdong

BER ERERITAEEER FE

Garden Hills Phase 3.2.2 Zhongkai Development Zone,  Residential 100.00% 30,951 147,984 2 2022
Huizhou, Guangdong

FIL%283.2.28 BREBMAMeFER =

Shum Yip West Lake Sanli Phase 2.2 Huicheng, Huizhou, Guangdong Residential 100.00% 49,400 160,169 ) 2022

REBH=22.28 BRABMNTER R =

Shum Yip Qishan Yayuan Nanhai District, Foshan, Residential 100.00% 19,883 79,094 4 2022
Guangdong

RF RIS BERAEHLTEHEE T

Shum Yip Upper Life Shangfang Town, Jiangning Residential 100.00% 34,623 111,134 4 2021
District, Nanjing, Jiangsu

REBELRE TIHEERTIER FHE A%

Shum Yip Qinglong Mansion Qinglong Subway Town, Residential 100.00% 31,304 102,769 4 2021
Jiangning District, Nanjing,
Jiangsu

REFR LR IHEERAMIEERSRIE (%

MR

Shum Yip Heron Mansion Yanghu Ecological New City, Residential 100.00% 79,994 240,500 4 2022
Yuelu, Changsha, Hunan

REEER MEAERITERRFMERE £

Eiipa

Shenyue Bay Jiangyan, Taizhou, Jiangsu Residential 100.00% 46,678 183,630 4 2021

RS IHERNTZER F=E

Taifu Square Phase 2 Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong ~ Complex 97.68% 8,964 106,106 1 2023

REES2H BERERTRHNE mats

Tuen Mun Land Plot 520 Tuen Mun, New Territories, Residential 50.00% 12,205 43,938 1 2023

Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region
HP52015% BBRATHR R =
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Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development
)

BB — REEEH RS RAR I RBRZYHEMELS

Project Name Address

HE &R ik

Interests
attributable to
the Group

AEE GRS

Planned GFA

Site Area

(sq.m.)

RERERR

AR

(F7K)

Progress
(note)
BREE
(F&E)

Expected
Completion
Year

st
TIEG

Property interest held under development
BERRP 2 WERER

Four Seasons Mansion Qinglong Street, Chenghua,
Chengdu, Sichuang

mEERE )l &R T E R B B8

Shum Yip Songhu Yuncheng Songshan Lake, Dongguan,
Garden Guangdong
RENHERIEER BRERZHHRILM

Nanjing Hexi 2019G77 land Parcel  Hexi, Nanjing, Jiangsu

RSN FI2019G77 038 TEE B R A Bl

Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Yushan, Ma'anshan, Anhui
Phase 2.2 South

SRILAEER2H2EERE ZHEFRUTHLE

Shum Yip Zhifeng Building Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong
REBERE BRERmRNE

Note :

1

2.
3.
4

Site formation

Foundation work
Superstructure in progress
Interior finishing

Residential

FE

Residential

FE

Residential
=

Residential

FEE

Industrial

EX

75.05%

100.00%

100.00%

99.77%

51.62%

20,479

50,017

17,520

72,583

11,388

B -

= @ =

e
R

MEBEE

60,921

170,081

60,727

225,836

70,925

FETIRETH

2021

2022

2022

2022

2021
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Group II — Property interest held by the Group for sales

B — REEE AR RE 2 R

Interest to

Property Address the Group TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion year
A%E BEEER :

LIES b o Frib Rz (EFEXK) ERES
Shunde Shum Yip City Shunde, Foshan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 77,044.12 2012-2017
B2 550 BERAHLTIRER BEREE
Xiyue City Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 35,367.21 2012-2017
=X BREABMT HEREE
Saina Bay Heyuan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 4,023.25 2012
ENE BRERT BEREE
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Ma'anshan, Anhui Res. 99.77% 9,871.35 2013-2019
BRINREER ZEEFRILT F=x
Yihu Rose Garden Chengdu, Sichuan Com. & Res. 52.54% 15,102.37 2013-2019
(Evibaes T )| B & BEREE
UpperHills Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Res. 100% 79,015.97 2014, 2016
R LI BREFm BE - WAEREE
Shum Yip Dongling Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 95% 14,709.94 2018
RERE BRERIIT FE
Taifu Square Phase 1 Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Res. 97.68% 258,552.00 2019
REES1H BRARIm ¥ PREREE
Shum Yip Zhongcheng Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Res. 100% 204,783.16 2019
REF BRERIIT B PREREE
Shum Yip Gaobangshan No. 1 Garden Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 9,581.36 2019
mEL1SRER BRAEMT FE
Shum Yip Rui Cheng Phase 3.2 Changsha Residential 80% 66,505 2020
IREBEM3.2H &Y T
Shum Yip Garden Hills Phase 3.2.1 Huizhou Residential 100% 87,617 2020
REFILEGE3.2.1 8 =M T
Shum Yip West Lake Sanli Phase 2.1 Huizhou Residential 100% 192,347 2020
REBH=E2.1H =M T
Yihu Rose Garden — Longjing Chengdu Residential 70% 45,026 2020
TRRBIRI R D T
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2.2 (North) Ma'anshan Residential 99.77% 235,600 2020

BRIRRER2H2AEILE St FE
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EREYER

Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment

FEH - AREF A R Z Y S

Interest to
Property Address the Group TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion year
REE BREER
L/ES 3k Frib R (EFHK) EREHR
Shun Hing Square Junction of Shennan Zhong Road, Off., Apartment. and Carpark 100% 17,817.12 1996
Jiefang Road and Baoan Road,
Luohu, Shenzhen
H R 28 0 I R e P R AR PRE - RBREES
RERERR
Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, Luohu, Com., Off. and Carpark 100% 10,417.58 1997
Shenzhen
RERL YT R A B B - BREREES
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen  Apartment., Com. and 50% 6,252.73 1993
Carpark
ERAE YT R AR A AEREES
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen  Apartment 100% 947.42 1993
ERAR RTRHNEA KRR NG
Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Luohu, Shenzhen  Off. 100% 7,066.10 1991
REAE PRI 2R S8R R B PRE
Noble Times Pingshan, Shenzhen Com 100% 26,975.97 2012
RRER FY( L E [EES
Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Com., Off., 75.05% 136,639.81 1994-2012
Res. and Carpark
BRBIXR AT E B - BAE
FERESES
Shenhua Science & Technology Park Meilin Road, Futian, Shenzhen Com. and Off. 75.05% 15,246.77 1994
REREE RYITE B RIGHE BAERBAE
Tian'an Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen Off., Com., Res. and Carpark 37.53% 81,087.07 1992-2005
ARERBIER AY|TEH R BAE - BEEEREES
Tian'an Nanhai New Cyber-City Phase 2 Nanhai, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 37.53% 42,379.20 2008-2015
RLHEEBIH 2 BREFE B - BREREES
Tian'an Panyu New Cyber-City Panyu, Guangdong Com., Res. and Carpark 37.53% 130,107.97 2010
RREBEEIH BREER BE  AERERS
Tian'an Longgang New Cyber-City Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 37.53% 45,115.54 2010-2014
AR ETEETH BRAERT B¥ - PREREFEES
Tian'an Dongguan New Cyber-City Dongguan, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 37.53% 85,747.32 2012-2017
AR REHEEN BREREM BE  BLEREES
Tian'an Jiangyin Cyber-City Jiangyin, Jiangsu Res. and Off. 37.53% 26,510.35 2012-2017
AR TSR &A™ FERBLE
Tianan Changzhou New Cyber-City Changzhou, Jiangsu Off. and Com. 37.53% 37,289.38 2012
KRR & MNEFHH TEE BT PREREFE



Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment
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Property
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Address
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Interest to
the Group
rEE
bR

TGFA (sg.m.)

HREER
(F5%)

EREYER

Completion year

EREH

Tian'an Qingdao New Cyber-City
AR EBEMEHM

Tian'an Tianjin New Cyber-City
RBERREIEEH

Tian'an Chongging New Cyber-City
AREEHIEIHN

Tian'an Wuxi Cyber-City
AR EHHBW

Tian'an Nantong Cyber-City
REEBETEH

Tian'an Nanjing Cyber-City
RZ B REEH

Shum Yip Garden
RETEE
Sungang Warehouse Zone

FHAERE

Composite Building on Taoyuan Road
R a1

Dormitory Building on Taoyuan Road

RS TE =18

Boxing Building
BEAR

Bolong Building
[EIEIN

Bofeng Building
BYERE

S.Z. Intl. Trust and Investment
Corp. Building

RYEREFRELRRINE

Shenyang Wuai Bus Station
BEREREL

Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station
and Meibo Trading Centre
BEARRBREUREBE S

Qingdao, Shandong
LWREESM
Xiging, Tianjin
REMEFR

Da Du Kou, Chongging
BRMAER

Wuxi,Jiangsu
LB BB T

Nantong, Jiangsu

TEERAT

Nanjing, Jiangsu

THEBRN

Futian, Shenzhen

AT iE

Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen
RmRNEE R

Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen
AT RNEE LK

Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen
AT BEE R R
Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen
YT EE KA
Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen
R R E)E AR
Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen
R B KO

Junction of Zhenxing Road

and Shangbu Zhong Road,

Futian, Shenzhen
RITEEERERR ESPEIR

Shenyang, Liaoning
BELEGT

Shenyang, Liaoning

BEREGT

Off. and Com.
NS

0Off. and Com.
WAERMEE

Com., Off. and Carpark

HE - BAE

Com.

[GES

Com.

GES

Com. and Off.
HERBAE

Com./Res.

A

Com.

[ES

Com.

[GES

Com.
[HES

Off.

Com.

[GES

FES

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

100%

97.68%

97.68%

97.68%

97.68%

97.68%

97.68%

75.05%

93.39%

93.39%

12,004.56

20,130.65

11,628.82

82,763.72

66,169.04

96,971.50

2,646.43

72,564.21

4,812.73

4,835.28

12,861.05

39,284.24

10,070.39

1,316.54

33,089.44

67,939.18

2015-2017

2016

2015

2014

2011

2014-2015

2002

1990-2002

1991

1988

2014

2014

2017

1990

1994-1996

2011
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EREYER

Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment

FEH - AREF A R Z Y S

Property

3

Address

i3k

TGFA (sq.m.)

HREER
(F5K)

Completion year

EBEHD

Coastal International Centre

BB L

Chengdu Jinxiu Workshop
Bk #FBEIS

UpperHills
RE S

Pengji Properties

RS

Xiangli Oasis Club
EnENER

Times Technology Building
BARRAE

Longxi Garden
RERIEE
Nongke Oasis Office Tower

BRGNHLE

Nongke Business Office Tower

RHBEBERAE

Xiangli Garden
E5tE
Tanglang City
SRR

Shum Yip Dongling
RERIS

Jinzhi Properties
ERME

Note to Schedule of Major Properties:

Suzhou, Jiangsu

L&A FMT

Chengdu, Sichuan
)11 B A

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BERERIIT

Shenzhen, Guangdong and
Nanjing, Jiangsu

BRERITRIEHEER
Futian, Shenzhen
RITAEEE
Futian, Shenzhen
AYTEHEER
Futian, Shenzhen
AYTEH R
Futian, Shenzhen
AYITEH R
Futian, Shenzhen
RITEEE
Futian, Shenzhen
RYITEHE
Nanshan, Shenzhen

AR

Luohu, Shenzhen
YRR

Luohu, Shenzhen
YRR

Properties which are insignificant are not included.

Interest to
the Group
REE
Frib R
Com., Apartment. and Off. 100%
BE  RERPRE
Com. and Carpark 87.91%
BEREES
Com., Off. and Carpark 100%
B - BREREES
Com., Res., Off. and Carpark 100%
BE EE - PRERFE
5
Com. 100%
[EE3
Com. and Off. 100%
[SEYE NS
Res 100%
=
Off. 100%
NS
0Off. and Com. 100%
PREREFE
Com. 100%
[EES
Com., Carpark and Res. 50%
BE  FESREE
Com. and Carpark 95%
AEREES
Off. and multiple-use 41.28%
BAEREE
EBYERNE

56,606.73

29,013.03

378,818.21

201,408.40

2,560.00

52,742.86

6,5156.27

5,343.91

859.16

2,560.00

68,639.38

39,485.07

5,054.08

TMERTBIELEEMZ W -

2009

2008

2017-2019

1983-2005

2003

2009

1984-1996

2012

2012

2003

2015-2018

2018

1988
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